
Mayor       Councilmembers 
  Ben White         John Crompton 
Mayor Pro Tem        James Massey 
Ron Gay         Lynn McIlhaney 
City Manager         Chris Scotti 
Glenn Brown         David Ruesink 

 
 

Agenda 
College Station City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, September 27, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, absence requests 
  
Hear Visitors:  A citizen may address the City Council on any item which does not appear on the 
posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk of the City Secretary.  
This form should be completed and delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks 
to three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have thirty seconds 
remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City Council will receive the information, ask 
staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns 
shall be directed to the City Manager. 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITIZENS OF COLLEGE STATION, HOME OF TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, WE WILL 
CONTINUE TO PROMOTE AND ADVANCE THE COMMUNITY'S QUALITY OF LIFE.   

 
Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not posted as a 
public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of the agenda item.  
Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will 
recognize individuals who wish to come forward to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will 
please state their name and address for the record and provided three minutes.  A timer will sound 
after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.  

 
2. Presentation, possible action and discussion of consent agenda items which consists of 

 ministerial or "housekeeping" items required by law.  Items may be removed from the consent 
 agenda by majority vote of the Council.  

 
a. Presentation, possible action, and discussion of City Council minutes for September 13, 

2007. 

1



b. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the award of Bid 07-109, for 
 purchase of an electrical substation transformer from Kuhlman Electric Corporation in the 
 amount of $1,039,178.00; and a resolution declaring intention to reimburse certain 
 expenditures with proceeds from debt. 

 
c. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an amendment to the engineering 

design contract 07-152 with Malcolm-Pirnie, Inc in the amount of $240,000 to provide a 
full-time, on-site Resident Project Representative during the construction phase of the 
Parallel Transmission Line State phase 3, Highway 21 to Villa Maria. 

 
d. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a resolution 
 awarding Contract Number 07-256, a construction contract with Acklam Construction 
 in the amount of $114,876 for the construction of additional improvements to John 
 Crompton Park. 
 
e. Presentation, possible action, and discussion of a user agreement between Texas A&M 

University and the City of College Station authorizing Texas A&M University to provide 
the University Services Complex parking lot area and ingress/egress roads on October, 
20, 2007 to the Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency for the fall Household 
Hazardous Waste & Computer Collection event. 

 
f. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution designating the 
 Request for Competitive Sealed Proposal as an alternative delivery method for the 
 College Station Utilities (CSU) Meeting and Training Facility Project (WF0847168) 
 
g. Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve three real estate contracts for 

potential purchase of properties for Groundwater Wells 8, 9, and 10; and a resolution 
declaring intention to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from debt. 

 
h. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the third and final reading of an 

ordinance granting a non-exclusive medical waste hauling franchise agreement to 
Enviromed. 

 
i. Presentation, possible action and discussion on the third and final reading of a franchise 

agreement with CCAA, LLC d/b/a Brazos Valley Recycling for collection, hauling and 
disposal services for residential and commercial construction debris solid waste for the 
purpose of recycling. 

 
j. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on renewal agreement of Third Party Claims 

Administration with A S & G Claims Administration, Inc. for an annual expenditure of 
$50,000.  Anticipated workers compensation claims for FY 08 are $328,000 and 
anticipated liability claims for FY 08 are $300,000. 
 

k.  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of policy renewal for Excess 
Liability and Workers Compensation to Star National Insurance Company for $261,243; 
policy renewal for Property/Boiler & Machinery to Affiliated FM for $95,600; policy 

2



renewal for Crime coverage to Federal Insurance Company for $4,522; and policy 
renewal for EMT Liability to Western World Insurance Company for $5,077. 

 
l. Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve purchase requests for FY'08, 

items exempt from competitive bidding as described more fully in Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 252.022; and other expenditures for interlocal contracts or 
fees mandated by state law that are greater than $50,000. 

 
m. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of expenditures related to 

copying and printing services to Copy Max ($50,000) and Tops Printing ($25,000) 
through our Interlocal Agreement with CSISD and Copy Corner ($50,000) and 
Newman’s Printing ($25,000) through our Interlocal Agreement with TAMU. 

 
n. Presentation, possible action and discussion on a funding agreement between the City of 

College Station and the Research Valley Partnership for FY08 in the amount of $293,287. 
 

o. Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of the Brazos Valley 
Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB); and presentation, possible action and discussion 
on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and the Brazos Valley 
Convention and Visitors Bureau for FY08 in the amount of $1,060,000. 

 
p. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a competitive matters resolution 

relating to the College Station electric utility. 
 
q. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding minor revisions to the flow chart of 
 the Gateway Grant Policy, approved May 24, 2007.  
 
r. Presentation, possible action, and discussion for Oversize Participation (OP) for a water 

line improvement in the Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 2 being made per City Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 9, Subdivision Regulations, Section 9, Responsibility for Payment for 
Installation Costs, 9-A Oversized Participation for a total requested City participation of 
$153,605.50. 
 

Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted as a public 
hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of the agenda item.  The 
Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state 
their name and address for the record and allowed three minutes. A timer will sound after 2 1/2 
minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 

 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing shall register 
with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the public hearing.   The Mayor 
will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to speak for or against the item.  The speaker 
will state their name and address for the record and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound 
after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    
After a public hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 

3



additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed at the 
discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded in the 
official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual may complete the 
registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, and comments about a city 
related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City Council and City Manager.   
 
1. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance amending Chapter 

10, “Traffic Code,” to restrict parking on Crystal Dove Avenue, Dove Crossing Lane, Dove 
Landing Avenue, Turtle Dove Trail, and Whitewing Lane. 

 
2. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding two ordinances vacating 

and abandoning a portion of the right-of-way of Richards Street and a portion of the right-of-way 
of Sterling Street, said portions being part of the Richards Addition, according to the plat recorded 
in Volume 137, Page 25, of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas. 

 
3. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an ordinance amendment to 

Chapter 12 of the Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Ordinance Section 2.4 Design 
Review Board and Section 2.8 Summary of Review Authority. 

 
4. Public hearing, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance Budget Amendment #3 amending 

ordinance number 2923 which will amend the budget for the 2006-2007 Fiscal Year and 
authorizing amended expenditures in the amount of $167,485; and presentation, possible action, 
and discussion regarding an interfund budget transfer in the amount of $32,000. 

 
5. Presentation, possible action, discussion on an ordinance amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas by amending section 5: Junked 
Motor Vehicles. 

 
6. Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of the Arts Council of Brazos 

Valley; and presentation, possible action and discussion on two (2) funding agreements between 
the City of College Station and the Arts Council of Brazos Valley for FY07 totaling $240,000. 

 
7. Presentation, possible action and discussion on a resolution authorizing banners recognizing the 

Big State Music Festival. 
 
8. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding appointments for the Red Light Photo 

Enforcement Citizen Advisory Committee. 
 
9. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular meeting to discuss 

matters posted on the executive session agenda for September 27, 2007. 
 
10. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
11. Adjourn. 

4



 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an executive session 
will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
________________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College Station, 
Texas will be held on the Thursday, September 27, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to 
wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 24th day of September, 2007 at 2:30 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of the 
City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 
correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 Texas Avenue, in College Station, 
Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the 
general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on September 24, 2007 at 2:30 p.m. 
and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said 
meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station City Hall on the 
following date and time:  __________________________ by ________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2007. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2007. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any request for sign 
interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make arrangements call (979) 764-
3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are 
broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 

5



 

Mayor      Council members 
Ben White        John Crompton 
Mayor Pro Tem       James Massey 
Ron Gay        Lynn McIlhaney 
City Manager        Chris Scotti  
Glenn Brown        David Ruesink  
 
 

Draft Minutes 
City Council Workshop Meeting 

Thursday September 13, 2007 at 3:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNEIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Gay, Council 
members, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares, Management Team. 
 
Mayor White called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 1 – Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
items listed on the consent agenda. 
 
2k – Presentation, discussion and possible action on a resolution approving a contract for 
the loan of HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Program funds for the proposed 
Santour Court Housing Tax Credit development; and authorization for the Mayor to sign 
the resolution and contract. 
 
Community and Economic Development Director David Gwin answered questions of 
Council member Crompton. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 2 – Presentation, possible action and discussion 
regarding public input and planning of road projects from conception to 
construction. 
 
Director of Public Works Mark Smith presented the city’s current processes and practices 
for planning and construction of roadway projects and facilitated discussion to identify 
modifications to the city’s process.   
 

6



City Council Workshop Minutes 9/13/07  Page 2 

Council directed staff to implement a process of notification to citizens and public 
meetings to insure that all measures are being accomplished; including citizens from the 
biking community.   
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 3 – Presentation, possible action and discussion 
regarding an update on the annexation planning process, including areas that may 
be considered as part of the three-year plan. 
 
Assistant Director of Planning and Development Services Lance Simms presented a 
summary of the city’s annexation history since 2000.  He described the legal 
requirements, purpose of proposed annexation, a three year plan process, and annexation 
policies.  Mr. Simms presented a map of various locations that could be included in a 
three-year plan.   
 
Council directed staff to move forward with the project. 
 
Council recessed for a short break at 4:04 p.m. and reconvened the workshop meeting at 
4:15 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 4 – Presentation, possible action and discussion on the 
City’s Economic Development Incentive Guidelines and extent and past 
performance of incentives under the program. 
 
Director of Economic and Community Development David Gwin presented a brief 
overview of the City’s Economic Development Incentive Guidelines and extent and past 
performance of incentives under the program.  The guidelines may be used as a 
mechanism to accomplish the City’s adopted fiscal policies. 
 
Bob Malaise, Vice President of Economic Services with Research Valley Partnership 
provided an overview of their activities, results of analysis and annual status report. 
 
Todd McDaniel, President and CEO of Research Valley Partnership made comments 
pertaining to the Research Valley Partnership activities.  
 
Mr. Gwin encouraged a more aggressive recruiting process for specific development 
types and additional target categories. 
 
Council members concurred with Mr. Gwin’s statements and directed staff to move 
forward with the additional targeted categories on specific development types.  Mr. Gwin 
noted that he will modify the Economic Development Guidelines (Section II) and 
incorporate the revised guidelines into the departmental strategic plan.  Once the 
modifications are completed staff would prepare a future item for council consideration.   
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 5 – Council Calendar 
 
Council reviewed their upcoming events. 

7



City Council Workshop Minutes 9/13/07  Page 3 

 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
future agenda items: A Council Member may inquire about a subject for which 
notice has not been given.  A statement of specific factual information or the 
recitation of existing policy may be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a 
proposal to place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 
 
This item was postponed until after the regular meeting.  Refer to regular minutes of 
September 13, 2007 for any action taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding 
the following meetings:  Arts Council Subcommittee of the Council, Audit 
Committee, Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, 
Cemetery Committee, Design Review Board, Historic Preservation Committee, 
Interfaith Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee, Joint Relief 
Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, Outside Agency Funding 
 
This item was postponed until after the regular meeting.  Refer to regular minutes of 
September 13, 2007 for any action taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 8 – Executive Session 
 
At 5:15 p.m., Mayor White announced in open session that the City Council would 
convene into executive session pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the Open 
Meetings Act, to seek the advice of our attorney with respect to pending and 
contemplated litigation, and economic development negotiations. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071};  The City Council may seek 
advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated litigation subject or 
settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  Litigation is an ongoing 
process and questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or settlement offer, which needs 
to be discussed with the City Council.  Upon occasion the City Council may need 
information from its attorney as to the status of a pending or contemplated litigation 
subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  After executive 
session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in public.  The following 
subject(s) may be discussed: 
Application with TCEQ in Westside/Highway 60 area, near Brushy Water Supply 
Corporation. 
Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility 
District. 
Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 
7/6/05) 
Sewer CCN request. 
Legal aspects of Water Well and possible purchase of or lease of another water site. 

8



City Council Workshop Minutes 9/13/07  Page 4 

Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, JK Development v. College Station. 
Cause No. 06-002318-CV-272, 272nd Judicial District Court, Brazos County, Texas, 
Taylor Kingsley v. City of College Station, Texas and Does 1 through 10, inclusive. 
Cause No. 485-CC, County Court at Law No. 1, Brazos County, Texas, City of College 
Station v. David Allen Weber, et al. 
Bed & Banks Water Rights Discharge Permits for College Station and Bryan 
Cause No. 07-001241-CV-361, 361st Judicial District Court, Brazos County, Texas  
Gregory A. & Agnes A. Ricks v. City of College Station  
Water CCN request 

 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087}; The City Council may 
deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City Council has received  
from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, stay or expand in or 
near the city with which the City Council in conducting economic development 
negotiations may deliberate on an offer of financial or other incentives for a business 
prospect.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in 
public. The following subject(s) may be discussed: 

 a. Hotel and Conference Center  
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- Final action on executive session, or any workshop 
agenda item not completed or discussed in today’s workshop meeting will be 
discussed in tonight’s Regular Meeting if necessary.  
 
Council completed executive session at 6:58 p.m.  No action was taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 -- Adjourn. 
 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m. on Thursday, September 13, 
2007. 
     APPROVED: 
 

_______________________ 
     Mayor Ben White 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 

9



 

 

Mayor      Council members 
Ben White        John Crompton 
Mayor Pro Tem       James Massey 
Ron Gay        Lynn McIlhaney 
City Manager        Chris Scotti  
Glenn Brown        David Ruesink  
 
 

Draft Minutes 
City Council Regular Meeting 

Thursday September 13, 2007 at 3:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNEIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Gay Council 
members, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares, Management Team. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 – Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence 
requests. 
 
Mayor White called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with all council members 
present.  He led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  Director of Economic and 
Community Development David Gwin provided the invocation. 
 
Mayor White and City Manager Glen Brown recognized, expressed thanks, and 
appreciation to the employees of the Wastewater and Water Division for receiving the 
Peak Performance Award for Lick Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant for five years of 
complete and consistent National Pollutant Discharge elimination System permit 
compliance, and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality program award 2006 
for College Station Water. 
 
Hear Visitors 
 
Tom Woodfin, 3215 Innsbruck Circle, addressed the City Council regarding greenways 
and hike and bike paths. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
 

10



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 2 

 

a. Approved by common consent minutes for City Council Meetings, July 16-17, 2007, 
August 3, 2007, August 13, 2007, August 14, 2007, August 23, 2007, August 27, 
2007, August 28, 2007, and September 5, 2007.    

 
b. Approved by common consent the second reading of an ordinance granting a non-

exclusive medical waste hauling franchise agreement to Environed. 
 
c Approved by common consent the second reading of a franchise agreement with 

CCAA, LLC d/b/a Brazos Valley Recycling for collection, hauling and disposal 
services for residential and commercial construction debris solid waste for the 
purpose of recycling. 

 
d. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2d to award Contract 

07-229 to Brazos Valley Services in the amount of $5,521,133.50 for the 
construction of the Parallel Water Transmission Line Phase III.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PARALLEL WATER TRANSMISSION LINE 
PHASE III PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF 
FUNDS. 
 

e. Approved by common consent a Renewal Agreement for an Annual Landscape 
Maintenance Service Contract for thirty-three (33) municipal sites comprised of 
buildings,  parks, and street medians to Green Teams, Inc. (d.b.a: The Greenery) 
for an annual expenditure in the amount of $300,555.00. 

 
f. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2f to award Contract 

07-243 to Weisinger Water Wells in the amount of $2,698,483 for the 
construction of Water Well # 7. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF WATER WELL # 7 PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 
 

g. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2g awarding Contract 
Number 07-249, a construction contract with Dudley Construction in the amount 
of $254,900 for the construction of a basketball pavilion at Oaks Park.  This 
amount includes the base bid, plus two accepted alternates. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 
THE OAKS PARK BASKETBALL PAVILION CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, 
PROJECT NUMBER PK 0706, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS. 

 

11



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 3 

 

 
h. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2h approving a 

construction contract with Tidal Power Services in the amount of $134,000 for 
replacement of a substation electrical transformer load tap changer. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 
THE REPLACEMENT OF A ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION TRANSFORMER 
LOAD TAP CHANGER AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF 
FUNDS. 
 

i. Approved by common consent an annual contract with Pavement Restoration, Inc. 
for the application of Reclimite Pavement Restoration, at a cost not to exceed 
$140,800.00.  

 
j. Approved by common consent ratification of a Change Order No. 1 to Contract 

#06-267 with Doughtie Construction Company in an amount not to exceed 
$61,471.00 for the Nantucket Sewer Line Project.  

 
k. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2k approving a 

contract for the loan of HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Program funds 
for the proposed Santour Court Housing Tax Credit development; and 
authorization for the Mayor to sign the resolution and contract. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR THE LOAN OF HOME INVESTMENT 
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM FUNDS TO SANTOUR COURT, LTD AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COMITTMENT AND EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 

 
l. Approved by common consent the 2007 contracts for employee insurance with 

Pharmacare, Interface EAP, The Standard Insurance Company, and Blue Cross 
Blue Shield for the health plan and reinsurance (stop loss). 

 
m. Approved by common consent the ratification of contracts for employee insurance 

from 2004, 2005, and 2006 with Blue Cross/Blue Shield for the health plan, and 
the 2005 contract with The Standard Insurance Company. 

 
n. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2n for the City of 

College Station to continue to provide Emergency Medical Service and 
Emergency Ambulance Transport in Brazos County.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMS 
PROVIDER/FIRST RESPONDER SERVICES WITH THE CITY OF BRYAN AND 
WITH BRAZOS COUNTY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENTS. 
 

o. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2o to update the Inter 
local Agreement for Emergency Medical Ambulance Service to respond to 

12



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 4 

 

emergencies in Brazos County and to establish the annual fee for FY 2008 at 
$175,000. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, UPDATING THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT TO 
PROVIDE EMERGENCY MEDICAL AMBULANCE SERVICE TO 
UNICORPORATED PORTIONS OF  BRAZOS COUNTY. 
 

p. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2p for the Annual 
Reconfirmation and use of Service and Equipment to be provided by the City of 
College Station in the Event of a Radiological Incident at the Texas A&M 
University Nuclear Science Center.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE ANNUAL 
RECONFIRMATION AND USE OF SERVICE AND EQUIPMENT TO BE 
PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION IN THE EVENT OF A 
RADIOLOGICAL INCIDENT AT THE TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY NUCLEAR 
SCIENCE CENTER. 
 

q. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 9-13-2007-2q for the 
Comprehensive Selective Traffic Enforcement Program grant contract for fiscal 
year 2008. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A TEXAS 
HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY PROGRAM GRANT AGREEMENT FOR 
THE COMPREHENSIVE SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 
PROGRAM WITH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.   
 

r. Approved by common consent a contract with MicroAge of College Station for 
the purchase of Software and Services to upgrade the City’s Data Backup and 
Recovery System in an amount not to exceed $72,652.00. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on an  ordinance rezoning 13.07 acres from A-O, Agricultural Open to R-
1, Single Family Residential consisting of 1 lot in the general vicinity of the area 
northeast of Windwood Subdivision at 2708 Harvey Road. 
 
This item was removed from the regular agenda by the applicant and will be rescheduled 
for a future City Council meeting. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 2 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion regarding recommendations for possible revisions to an ordinance 
amending Chapter 9, "Subdivisions" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
College Station, Texas by amending Section 10, "Parkland Dedication", by 

13



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 5 

 

increasing fees, extending parkland requirements into the ETJ; providing a 
severability clause; declaring a penalty; and providing an effective date.   
 
Director of Parks and Recreation Steve Beachy presented the proposed ordinance 
amending Chapter 9, “Subdivisions” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, by amending Section 10 “Parkland Dedication; by increasing fees, and 
extending park land requirements into the ETJ.  The City Council considered the 
proposed revisions to the ordinance on August 23, 2007.  At that meeting, they directed 
staff to modify the original proposal to set the land value at $24,000 and eliminate the 
proposal to add community parks to the requirements.  Staff recommended approval of 
revisions to the Parkland Dedication Ordinance with a adoption date of January 1, 2008 
as the effective date; and that the revised ordinance be incorporated into the subdivision 
regulations and become effective for areas in the ETJ; and all projects currently “vested” 
in the City of College Station development process be governed by the existing ordinance 
and related fee structure. 
 
Mayor White opened the public hearing.  No one spoke.  Mayor White closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Council member McIlhaney moved to approve Ordinance No. 2997 amending Chapter 9 
“Subdivisions” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, by 
amending Section 10, “Park Land Dedication”; increasing fees, extending park land 
requirements into the ETJ.  Council member Ruesink seconded the motion, which carried 
by a vote of 5-2. 
 
FOR:  White, Crompton, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  Gay, Massey 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 3 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion regarding an ordinance vacating and abandoning a 5029 square foot 
portion of the Public Right of Way of Lodge Street, in the City of College Station. 
 
Acting City Engineer Allen Gibbs described the proposed ordinance vacating and 
abandoning a 5029 square foot portion of the Public Right of Way of Lodge Street.  Staff 
recommended approval of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Mayor White opened the public hearing. 
 
Will McCollum, 4317 Maywood, Bryan, Texas spoke in favor of the proposed ordinance 
vacating and abandoning a 5029 square foot portion of the public right of way for Lodge 
Street. 
 
Mayor White closed the public hearing. 
 
Council member Massey moved to approve Ordinance No. 2998 vacating and 
abandoning a 5029 square foot portion of the Public Right of Way of Lodge Street, in the 

14



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 6 

 

City of College Station.  Council member Crompton seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 4 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding appointments for the Red Light Photo Enforcement Citizen Advisory 
Committee. 
 
Assistant Finance Director Cheryl Turney provided a brief overview of the appointment 
process.     
 
Council member Scotti aappointed Ryan Clark. 
 
Council member Ruesink moved to appoint Tom Herrmann, Don Hellriegel Ph.D., 
William L. Eisele Ph.D., P.E., Mike Perrone, Dillon Briers and Ryan Clark to the Red 
Light Photo Enforcement Citizen Advisory Committee.  Council member Scotti seconded 
the motion, which carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  White, Gay, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 5 – Presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance adopting the City of College Station 2007-2008 Budget; and presentation, 
possible action and discussion ratifying the property tax increase reflected in the 
budget. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Jeff Kersten answered questions of the Council and clarified the 
ratification of the property tax increase reflected in the budget.   
 
Council member Crompton moved to increase the 2007-2008 Budget by $10,000 for 
Brazos Valley Cricket Association.  After a brief discussion, council members did not 
support the motion however; Council member McIlhaney directed staff to survey the 
Parks and Recreation Budget for funding and schedule a regular agenda item in the near 
future with additional information/recommendations. 
 
Council member McIlhaney moved to approve Ordinance No. 2999 adopting the City of 
College Station 2007-2008 Budget as presented, including the changes by staff.  Council 
member McIlhaney abstained from the employee medical benefits.  Council member 
Crompton seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 6-1. 
 
FOR:  White, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  Gay 
 

15



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 7 

 

Council member McIlhaney moved to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the 
budget.  Council member Crompton seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 6-1. 
 
FOR:  White, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  Gay 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
approval of an ordinance adopting the City of College Station 2007-2008 advertised 
ad valorem tax rate of $0.4499 per $100 assessed valuation. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Jeff Kersten presented a summary of the proposed ordinance 
adopting the City of College Station 2007-2008 advertised ad valorem tax rate of $0.4499 
per $100 assessed valuation.  Staff recommended approval of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Council member McIlhaney moved that property taxes be increased by the adoption of a 
tax rate of $0.4394 per $100 assessed valuation (Ordinance No. 3000).  Council member 
McIlhaney seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 6-1. 
 
FOR:  White, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  Gay 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 7 – Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding an ordinance amending Chapter 11, “Utilities”, Section 4, “Electric 
Service” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas having the 
effect of raising rates for electric services on an average of ten percent (10%). 
 
Director of Electric Utilities David Massey remarked that the proposed ordinance 
authorized the implementation of a ten percent (10%) increase in electric rates as 
discussed with Council at the Budget Workshop on August 27, 2007.  The rate increase is 
necessary to cover increased wholesale power costs resulting from higher fuel and 
generation costs in the ERCOT market.  In addition, the rate increase is necessary due to 
system expansion projects associated with transportation, substations and distribution.  
Staff recommended approval of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Council member Ruesink moved to approve Ordinance No. 3001 amending Chapter 11, 
“Utilities”, Section 4, “Electric Service” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas having the effect of raising rates for electric services on an average of ten 
percent (10%).  Council member Massey seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 8 – Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding 
the creation of a joint subcommittee with the College Station Independent School 
District. 

16



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 8 

 

City Manager Glenn Brown described this item. 
 
Council member Crompton moved to appoint a subcommittee of three people to meet 
quarterly with the school board pending the agreement of the College Station School 
Board members.  His motion also included an increase in the number of meetings with 
the school board if necessary.  Council member McIlhaney seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
FOR:  White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding 
the following meetings:  Arts Council Subcommittee of the Council, Audit 
Committee, Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, 
Cemetery Committee, Design Review Board, Historic Preservation Committee, 
Interfaith Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee, Joint Relief 
Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, Outside Agency Funding 
 
Council member Ruesink presented a brief report on the Transportation Summit. 
 
Council member Scotti reported on deliberations held at the Research Valley Partnership 
meeting. 
 
Council member McIlhaney conveyed comments from the Arts Council Board meeting. 
 
Council member Gay made comments regarding the Audit Committee and Transportation 
Committee Meeting. 
 
Council member Massey presented a report on the future Intergovernmental Committee 
Meeting agenda. 
 
Council member Crompton discussed factors from the BVSWMA Meeting. 
 
Mayor White discussed factors associated with the Policy Advisory Committee of the 
Emergency Advisory Center. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- The City Council may convene the executive session 
following the regular meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session 
agenda for September 13, 2007. 
 
The City Council completed their executive session prior to the regular meeting. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 – Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
No action was taken. 

17



City Council Regular Minutes 9/13/07  Page 9 

 

 
Regular Agenda Item No. 11 – Adjourn. 
 
Hearing no objections the meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. on Thursday, September 13, 
2007. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ________________________ 
      Mayor Ben White 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks 
 
 
 

18



 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item No. 2b   

Three Phase Electrical Substation Transformer, Bid 07-109 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of Electric Utilities                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the award of 
Bid 07-107, for purchase of an electrical substation transformer from Kuhlman Electric 
Corporation in the amount of $1,039,178.00; and a resolution declaring intention to 
reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from debt. 
 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends award to the lowest bidder, Kuhlman Electric 
Corporation, in the amount of $1,039,178.00.  Kuhlman Electric Corporation’s bid was also 
found to provide the evaluated best value for the City as shown below under Summary.  
Best value for this item was determined by including total bid price, total installation cost 
and total operating cost of the transformer unit in accordance with the bid specification. 
 
 
Summary: The transformer is necessary to meet future power requirements for the 
customers of College Station.  Listed below are the Bid Price and Evaluated Best Value Price 
for each bidder: 
 

              Bid Price          Evaluated Best Value Price 
Kuhlman Electric Corporation $1,039,178.00 $1,314,769.99 
Virginia Transformer Corporation  $1,186,825.00 $1,471,491.25 
Delta Star $1,326,160.00 $1,592,970.20 
Pennsylvania Transformer $1,349,160.00 $1,676,074.40 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Four (4) sealed competitive bids and two (2) no bids were 
received and opened on August 28, 2007. Bids were evaluated based on cost of operation 
and bid exceptions. $1,200,000 for this item was included as part of the FY07 budget 
amendment #2 and these funds are currently budgeted in the Electric Capital Improvement 
Projects Fund. 
 
 
 
Attachments:  
1.  Bid Tab 
2. Transformer Resolution   
 
 

 

19



BID 07-109 Bidder 1 Bidder 2 Bidder 3 Bidder 4 Bidder 5 Bidder 6 

Vendor Name DAVIDSON & ASSOCIATES PREFERRED SALES AGENCY DELTA STAR POWER REPS Techline Kessler & Assoc
Manufacturer Name KUHLMAN VIRGINIA TRANSFORMER CORP DELTA STAR PENNSYLVANIA TRANSFORMER

 Bid Price $1,039,178.00 $1,186,825.00 $1,326,724.00 $1,349,160.00 No Bid No Bid

20



21



22



23



 

September 27, 2007 
 

Consent Agenda Item  2c 
  

Amendment to Engineering Design Contract for Parallel Transmission Line phase 3 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Coleman, Director of Water Services                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an amendment 
to the engineering design contract 07-152 with Malcolm-Pirnie, Inc in the amount of 
$240,000 to provide a full-time, on-site Resident Project Representative during the 
construction phase of the Parallel Transmission Line phase 3, Highway 21 to Villa Maria. 
 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve this amendment.   
 
 
Summary:  On September 13, 2007 City Council approved the award of the construction 
contract to build phase 3 of the Parallel Water Transmission Line, which will install the last 
phase of the new water pipeline, from SH 21 to Villa Maria Road.  This amendment will 
provide the design firm, Malcolm Pirnie, Inc the funds necessary to provide a fulltime on-
Site Resident Project Representative to inspect the project and report findings to the Project 
Engineer.   This pipe line is a critical part of our water supply infrastructure, and a full-time 
on-site inspector is required to ensure the construction proceeds smoothly and according to 
specifications.  Since the City’s construction inspectors are already fully occupied with other 
construction projects, it is necessary to hire an outside inspector, and Malcolm-Pirnie has 
already located an excellent candidate who is very experienced in this type of work and is 
available for the entire construction period.  Staff recommends Council approve this 
amendment, to protect our $5.5 million investment in water infrastructure. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Additional funds will be needed for this portion of the 
project. These funds will be transferred from the Parallel Wellfield Collection Line project 
which is currently budgeted in the Water Capital Improvement Projects Fund. It is 
anticipated that these funds will be requested back for the Parallel Wellfield Collection Line 
project in the future. 
 
 
Attachment: 
 Amendment 
  
 
 
 

 

24



AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSU1,'I'ANT CONTRACT 

Retween 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION and MALCOLh'I PIRNIE, INC. 

A Contract was executed on April 5.2007 bctween the City of College Station (City) and 
Malcolm Pirnie, Tnc. (Contractor) for Design Services for Parallel Watcr Transmission Line Statc 
Highway 2 1 lo Villa Maria. 

City and Contractor now desire to amend the contract to include the services as described below. 

1. Scope of Services - Exhibit A of the original contract shall be amended to include 
the tasks of the On-Site Resident Pro-ject Rcprcsentative for 2080 hours. Such 
tasks are attached herein as Exhibit A I .  

2. Pi~y~nent - Article I, paragraph I .03 of the original contract shall be amended to 
add two hundred forty thous:tnd dollars ($240,000.00) to the original contract 
amount of one hundred ninety eight thousand, four hundred thirty two dollars 
($198,432.00) bringing the total contract amount to four hundred thirty eight 
thousand four hundred thirty two dollars ($438,432.00). 

MALCOLM PIRNIE, INC. CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

13y: b c w  By: 
printed N:~rnc: 5: -&LW ~ ~ 7 4 3  hfayor 
'~itlc: j//i.p P?,Y/&n j 112 tc: 

Date: 9. /3, 0 7  
ATTEST: 

City Secretary 

APPROVED: 

City Manager 

Chief Financial Officer 

Con t r~c t  Atnenchent  No. 01-1 53 
Y /  1 3/07 

25



'~c~o.rdde 
.lo uog3adsu! '8u!~sa1 1c~3ads sa.rlnba.1 .TO 'uo!lv~~asqo JOJ pa.ral!03un aq plnoys .lo pal3aca~ 
JO pal3a.1~03 aq plnoys 7.10~ paAa!laq s! I! uaqM X~NMO puc p.ro3aa JO .1aau!8ng as!Apv -d 

.A.role.roqe1 Su!isai ayl Aq pn33~10:, sqduros pp!~ puv pal3npuo3 2uysal ~c!~a~our ail] ahrasqo .g 

.luawlCnd 
IW"J 03 JO!J~ pasvurvp uaaq snq .TO 'apm aq ol pa~lnba~ 1u~c>.1ddv .TO sisal 'suo!~~adsu! jo 
sluarua~!nba.r ayl3aau1 lou saop -10 'sluaiun3oa 13e.11~103 ayl 01 u~.rojuo~ IOU saop -10 a~y3ajap 
lo lCl[nc3 'lC.1013vjs!lesun s! 3vql YJOM ~~NMO a43 puv p~o3aa jo .raau!Zug aql 01 uodax .a 

'7.10~ ayj JO uo!ln:,axa ~ado~d JOJ ai!s qo[ ayl in pa~!nba.r uaqM 
'uoyeur~o~u! JO sI!clap ~~?uoy!ppc ~TJNMO WOJJ Su!u?lqo U! IS!SSV \~suo!]e~ado ai!s-uo S,~LJNMO 
IDaJ.JE suo!leJado S,xOL3VxLN03 NOIJ,3flaLSN03 UaqM '~IOLDVXLNO~ NOIL3flXLSN03 
ql!~ uos!vrl S,XZJNMO ST ~LI!AJ~S LI! IS!SSV 'SILI~LU~~O~ ID~JIUO~ UO~I~T~I~SUO~ 3141 JO IU~JU! 3y1 
3u!puc1s~apun u! luapuqurladns 3y1 Is!sse puc ~uapualu!.radns s,~oJ,~v~~No~ NO~L~~~J,SNO~ 
y%no.ryl Allcd!3u!.1d 2uy.10~ 'UOJ~V~J,NO~ NOIJ,~~XLSNO~ ql!~ LIOS!~?!~ ST? aA.raS 

'tIOL3VtI.LN03 NOI.L.3flULSN03 $0 a8~al~ouy IInJ aW Vl!M -10 ~l%no-l~l 
3q XlLl0 IlRqS SJOl3RJlU03qnS lJ!M s8ugvap '~OL~V&LN~~ NOILL3nXLSN03 P" PJ03ax 
JO raau!Sug ayl ~IIM Lluo aq 1e.rauaZ u! Ileys y.roM ays-uo aqi oi 8u!u!v~~ad sJailum u! ssrr!lvap 
s,~dx 'p~o3a~ JO .raarr!Sug ayj JO uo!s!~.radns ayi lapun prle dq pa~m.r!p sv 13~ ll!~ xdx ayL 

26



-ssaua~aldmo~ puv IC~e~n33~ -103 uo!leur.ioju! Su!~e.rp p~o3a.r 
S,~OXJV~LNO~ NOIJ~~~LSNO~ aql Su~~ua~aja.r-sso~r, JO a~qudu:, aq 01 salorr u!a~rr!v~ .a 

.~uaurd!nba pire sle!.lalr?ru jo s.ra!lddns soCuu~ pue s.ro)~enuo3qns '~o;L~v~,T,No~ 
NOI;L~~~LSNO,-J aql jo ~~"qu-~nu auoydalal puu sassasppe 'saurau p~o3ax '3 

.sasnpa30.1d lsai 8u!~.rasqo jo ase3 ayl u! se T!e1ap u! 
suo!lw,rasqo 3gpads pire yu.rauaS u! suo!lcAJasqo 'al!s-uo Xl!~!lov s.1ol~v.r1uo3q ns '~uarud!nba 
aps-uo 'suo!s!3ap 'sa!l!~y~ iCl!ep 's.rolnq!~ls!p puu s~aqddns 's.rolv3!.rqvj 's.ra~npejnuvru jo 
sa~geluas3~da.r pue STL'!~I~JO BU!I!S!A JO  IS!^ 'sr10!13npap .ro Cu.r1Xa jo srro!~sa~ib 01 a~yalas rwp 
'srroy!puo3 .rarljvaM 'aj!s-r~o luaurd!nba uo!~~nr~suo~ .~o!i?rrr 'ai!s qo!' ayl uo parrr.roj~rad y.10~ 
s.io13e.rmoaqn~ pur! ~O;L~V~J,NO~ KO~L~~;~ILSNOJ Su~p.103a.r suoda.r Rl!\?p a.rvda.1d .g 

.s1uarun3op pa1~13.1 ,.r3aTo.rd .iaqlo pua ui.roda~ ssa_r$o.rd 'sluarun3oa 
13v~luo3 ayi jo suo!lela.rdra~u! pug SU~!I~?~!J!.TI?~~ 'IX?.IIUO~ aql jo no!ln3axa ayi 03 
~uanbasqns pansc! S~U!M~J~ leuo!l!ppe 'slap~o pla!d 'srap.10 a8uarl3 'vpuappv llc Surpnlw! 
sluaurn3oa l3c.11~03 lcu!2!~o jo sr1o!i3npo~da.r 'suo!cs!urqn.; saldrum pmm sSu!~c.ra 
doys 'sa3~1a.rajuo3 qof jo sl.roda~ 'a~uapuodsa.r.ro:, .log sal!l ICl~ap.10 3qs clor ayl la u!uju!nK .v 

.sd~i-~.rcis pup sa.rnpa~o.rc1 lcai 
ayl oi aArll?la.l s[!t?131> a~e!.rdo.rdcIt; ~LJ~NI~NLJ o) 1.roda~ puu p.ro3a.r 'aA.rasqo !joa.rarll sp.1ooa.l 
pa.r!nba.r srr!elu!errr ~o~Jv~~Nc>~ NO]L~(IHJ~I,SNOJ luyl pno '1auuos.rad pa.r!nba.r ayl 
jo a~~rasaxcl u! pue sluaurriaoa uo!l3n.llsuo3 ayi Aq pa.r!nba.r ST? pai3npuo3 are sno!lon.rlsu! 
a~uvualu!eru pi10 n9u!ll?.radn prrr? dn-uels snrals6s QUI? ~~arrrd!nba ‘sisal 3vil1 dj!.ra~ 'KJ 

27



'XZJNMO ayl woy le~o~dd~ luorll~,~ iuarud~nb:, JO 

sIu!.ralenr a1nl!jsqns Lut? a~o-rddc .lo sjuamn3oa 1x.rluo3 aql mo.rj suo!le!Aap Lur! az!.roylnv .v 

-a3uu1claxc Srr!u.ra3uo3 XZJNMO puvp~o3aa 
lo .~aau!Sug ayl 01 suo!lepuamurona.r avur pup pai3a.1.10:, .lo p3131drr103 uaaq a,iey ls!l ~~u!j 
uo sirrai! ley] autrulaiap put? Mapa.1 '~OL~VXLN~~ NOIL3nXLSN03 3~1 ur0.1~ an!lou 
Uall!.lM uodn PUF 7.10~ ayj pa~aldu~on serI aOL3VXLN03 NOIL3nXLSN03 3111 J~UV *a 

.sluaurn3oa uo!~~n.rlsuo~ 
arli jo slualuaa!nba.r ayl yj!~ a~uep.ro33e u! pai~a.1.ro3 JO pajaldruo~ aq 01 swal! JO 3sy IGU!J 
e a.mdaJd 'XOL3VNLN03 NOIL3fld.LSN03 Put? XElNMO 'XBElNI9N3 JO Lul?d~r03 
ay7 Lr! uo!l33dsu! I~uY 13llPU03 TIBY5 Xd2l ayl 'XOL~VXLNO~ NOIL3nXLSN03 ayl 
jo 1smb3.r uodn puc YIOM aql paialduro:, s~?q XOJ,~V~J,NO~ NOIJ,J~XLSNO~ aql .laijv '3 

.sysel a~ue1d33ov  nu y 
put? no!~a]druo3 [e!]ul?lsclnS aql jo uo!la[druoo 3rll u! p.ro3ax jo .raau!Srrg ~s!ssr! lleys &-J>I .v 

'xd~ ayi Lcl pado~a~ap s1.roda.r ,Cl!ep ayj ql!~ ~uaru/Ct?d .~oj uo!iv~!~ddr! arlj a.rcdwo3 .g 

'YIOM 3~11 LI! pa~t?.rod.roou! IOU 

lnq alts 3111 it? p3.1a,1!1317 luarud!nba put? s[c!.raierrr put? 'palaldruo3 7.10~ 'sariIt;.~ JO alnpay3S 
aql 01 uo!~~la.r .l!aql .~~.Iv~II~!~.Iv~ 3u!jou 'rro!ss!urqns .r!ayl JOJ a.1npa3o~cf paqs!lqi?is.a aql rp!M 
a~ue!~dwoo .rOj dOL3vdLN03 NOIL3ndLSN03 yl!~%\ IU~LLIAI?~ .ICJ ~~0!1t?3![ddt? Mapad .v 

28



29



 

 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2d 

Award of a Contract for Improvements to John Crompton Park 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation Department 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
resolution awarding Contract Number 07-256, a construction contract with Acklam 
Construction in the amount of $114,876 for the construction of additional improvements to 
John Crompton Park. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends award of the contract to the lowest responsible 
bidder meeting specifications, Acklam Construction.  
 
 
Summary:  The first phase of John Crompton Park was completed in 2005.  The second 
phase of development will provide additional walks, a small shelter near the pond, additional 
area lights, benches, drinking fountain, park sign, drainage improvements, and a pond 
aerator.   
 
This fifteen-acre neighborhood park is the only park located in Park Zone 7.  These 
improvements are consistent with the master plan approved by Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board for this park. 
 
Sealed, competitive bids for Bid Number 07-110 were received from three contracting firms.  
The bid summary is attached. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  This project is funded through Park Zone 7 Park Land 
Dedication fees.  Funds are budgeted and available for this project in the Parks Capital 
Projects fund. 
 
 
Attachments:   
 

1) Resolution 
2) Bid Number 07-110 Bid Tabulation 
3) John Crompton Park Location Map 
4) John Crompton Park Site Plan 

 

30



 
RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR JOHN CROMPTON 
PARK, PHASE II IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, PROJECT NUMBER 
PK0712 AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the construction phase 
of the John Crompton Park, Phase II Improvements Construction Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Acklam Construction Company, Inc. is being recommended as 
the lowest responsible bidder for the construction services related to the John Crompton Park, 
Phase II Construction Project; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Acklam Construction Company, Inc. is 

the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Acklam Construction 

Company, Inc. in the amount of $114,876.00 for the labor, materials, and 
equipment required for the John Crompton Park, Phase II Construction Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this contract shall be as budgeted from the Parks Capital 

Improvement Projects Fund in the amount of $114,876.00 
 
 
ADOPTED this the 27th day of September, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

      
City Attorney 
 
  
 

31



City of College Station
Bid Tabulation

BID TAB FOR: Crompton Park Phase II
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation
BID: 07-110

Qty Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit 
Meas. Description Price Total Price Total Price Total

Crompton Park Phase II
1 Lot Picnic shelter & slab $37,810.00 $37,810.00 $43,042.00 $43,042.00 $52,000.00 $52,000.00
1 Lot Conrete retaining wall $2,300.00 $2,300.00 $5,158.00 $5,158.00 $5,975.00 $5,975.00
1 Sq. Ft. Sidewalks $5.15 sq.ft. $3,975.00 $5.51 sq.ft. $6,620.00 $7.00 sq.ft. $7,000.00
1 Lot Earthwork and seeding $3,350.00 $3,350.00 $4,190.00 $4,190.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00
1 Lot Sign $2,296.00 $2,296.00 $2,297.00 $2,297.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00
1 Lot 6 Area lights & electrical & lights on shelter $28,789.00 $28,789.00 $41,800.00 $41,800.00 $46,000.00 $4,600.00
1 Lot 3/4 “ water line $585.00 $585.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $2,950.00 $2,950.00
1 Lot Drinking fountain with slab $4,850.00 $4,850.00 $4,290.00 $4,290.00 $3,175.00 $3,175.00
1 Lot 4 Benches with concrete slabs at Shelter $7,600.00 $7,600.00 $7,664.00 $7,664.00 $15,725.00 $15,725.00
1 Lot Silt Fencing and Erosion Control $1.00 $1.00 $910.00 $910.00 $800.00 $800.00
1 Lot Furnish & install pond aerator & electrical $23,320.00 $23,320.00 $8,193.00 $8,193.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

Total Bid Price 

Total Number of Calendar Days to Completion
Number of Addenda Acknowledged
Bid Bond
Bid Cetification Page

Staff Award Recommendation

100
1

Y

Dudley Construction
Bryan, TX

180
1

$147,125.00

Y
Y

College Station, TXCollege Station, TX

Y
Y

120
1
Y

08/30/07

$114,876.00 $125,168.00

CLM ConstructionAcklam Construction

 Page 1 of 1 
32



33



34



 

 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2e 

BVSWMA TAMU Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event User Agreement 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion of a user agreement 
between Texas A&M University and the City of College Station authorizing Texas A&M 
University to provide the University Services Complex parking lot area and ingress/egress 
roads on October, 20, 2007 to the Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency for the 
fall Household Hazardous Waste & Computer Collection event. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the user agreement authorizing 
Texas A&M University to provide the University Services Complex parking lot area, and 
ingress/egress roads on October, 20, 2007 to the Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management 
Agency for the fall Household Hazardous Waste & Computer Collection Event. 
 
Summary: The Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency has a semi-annual regional 
Household Hazardous Waste & Computer Collection Event for the safe disposal and recycling 
of household hazardous waste. Previous events have been held at the Brazos Center in 
Bryan. Public participation at the event has increased in recent years, and the Brazos Center 
is no longer a suitable location due to constraints in space for traffic management and 
vehicle unloading. The Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency will be able to 
provide a safe environment for the disposal of hazardous waste and decrease the amount of 
traffic congestion due to the increased space at the University Services Complex. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. User Agreement 
2. Location Map 

 
 
 
 
 

35



36



37



38



VETERANS PARKVETERANS PARK

BRAZOS VALLEY PHYSICIANSBRAZOS VALLEY PHYSICIANS

Ha
rv

ey
 R

d

Univ
er

sit
y D

r E

Dom
ini

k D
r

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

 D
r

Glenhaven Dr

Unive
rsi

ty 
Oak

s B
lvd

Fran
cis

 D
r

Appom
attox Dr

W
oodcrest D

r

O
L D

 T
I R

D

39



 

 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2f 

CSU Meeting and Training Facility (WF0847168) 
Alternate Bid Method 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
designating the Request for Competitive Sealed Proposal as an alternative delivery method 
for the College Station Utilities (CSU) Meeting and Training Facility Project (WF0847168). 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
 
Summary: This item provides for the use of competitive sealed proposals for the 
construction of the CSU Meeting and Training Facility Project (WF0847168). 
 
In entering into a contract for the construction of a facility, a governmental entity may use 
competitive sealed proposals for construction services if the method provides the best value 
for the governmental entity. 
 
There are two reasons that the Request for Competitive Sealed Proposal method will prove 
to be the best value for this project. First, we will be able to consider other evaluation 
factors in awarding this contract, other than the lowest, responsible bid. Factors that we 
may consider include; proposed construction contract amount and contract time, contractor 
experience and qualifications, contractor current work schedule and record, contractor key 
personnel, contractor references and reputation, contractor safety record, contractor 
financial resources. Second, we will be able to negotiate terms, conditions, and pricing 
utilizing the Request for Competitive Sealed Proposal method of procurement. Negotiation of 
terms, conditions, and pricing is not available under the traditional competitive bidding 
process. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The budget for the CSU Meeting and Training Facility 
Project (WF0847168) is $2,000,000. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution 
2. Project Location Map 

 
 
 

40



RESOLUTION NO._______________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, DETERMINING WHICH METHOD PROVIDES FOR THE BEST VALUE TO 
THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE COLLEGE 
STATION UTILITIES (CSU) MEETING AND TRAINING FACILITY PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF THIS PROCUREMENT METHOD FOR PROJECT 
NUMBER (WF0847168) IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 271.114(a) OF THE 
TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, determined a need to 
construct the CSU Meeting and Training Facility Project (Project No. WF0847168); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has considered using a method specified by TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
CODE, Section 271.113(a), other than competitive bidding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the method which provides the best value for 
the City for the construction of the CSU Meeting and Training Facility Project (Project No. 
WF0847168) is the use of competitive sealed proposals for construction services as permitted by 
TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, Section 271.113(a)(2); now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that the use of competitive sealed 

proposals provides the best value for the City in the construction of the CSU 
Meeting and Training Facility (Project No. WF0847168); 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby authorizes the use of competitive sealed 

proposals as the procurement method for the CSU Meeting and Training 
Facility Project (Project No. WF0847168);   

  
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________         
City Secretary      Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

________________________________ 
City Attorney 

41



B
irm

ingham
 R

d

Gra
ha

m R
d

CSU Meeting and Training Facility
Site Map

1 inch equals 100 feet

42



 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda 2g 

Real Estate Contracts for Wells 8, 9, and 10 
 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Coleman, Director of Water Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve three real 
estate contracts for potential purchase of properties for Groundwater Wells 8, 9, and 10; 
and a resolution declaring intention to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from 
debt. 
 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of these contracts; and approval of the 
resolution declaring intention to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from debt. 
 
 
Summary:  City Council approved a Needs Resolution on April 26, 2007 for the purchase of 
land sufficient for water wells 8, 9, and 10 to meet the City’s future water needs.  This land 
purchase is required, since the Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District rules 
require owners of all new water wells to own large parcels of land, with the land being 
contiguous and reasonably reflecting the cone of depression of each well.   
 
The City’s Land Agent has located three willing sellers within, or adjacent to, the areas 
identified in the Needs Resolution: 
 

• Charles Rowe: 199.6 acres @ $2,500 per acre = $499,000.00 
• Willie Allen:      55.0 acres @ $2,500 per acre = $137,500.00 
• Henry Allen:    172.1 acres @ $2,500 per acre = $430,337.50 

   
• Grand Total:    426.7 acres for $1,066,837.50 

 
The attached contracts commit the sellers to close the sale at the stipulated prices, but they 
allow the City to perform site assessments and surveys, and the contracts provide the City 
the option to cancel the contract if we so choose.  
 
If Council approves these three contracts, then Staff will perform all due diligence and make 
a final recommendation to City Council (whether to purchase or cancel) at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds for this project are budgeted in the Water Capital 
Improvement Projects Budget.   
 
 
Attachments:    

1. Charles Rowe contract 
2. Willie Allen contract 
3. Henry Allen contract 
4. Water well land resolution 
5. Map 

 

43



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 
(Fee Purchase) 

This Real Estate Contract ("Contract") is made by and between CHARLES A. ROWE, 
SR., JOINED HEREIN BY HIS SPOUSE, IF MARRIED ("Seller", whether one or more), and 
the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipal corporation, situated 
in Brazos County, Texas ("Buyer"), upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. The 
promises by Buyer and Seller stated in this Contract are the consideration for the formation of 
this Contract. 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

1.1 Seller is the sole owner of fee simple title to the following real property: 

(i) approximately 83.60 acres of land, more or less, in Robertson County, 
Texas, out of Abstract 95, Tract 20, W Cooley, being the same property 
conveyed by instrument recorded in Volume 657, Page 707 of the Real 
Property Records of Robertson County, Texas; and 

(ii) approximately 116.0 acres of and, more or less, in Brazos County, Texas, 
out of A025300 Wright Cooley, Tract 1, 

LESS, SAVE AND EXCEPT all oil, gas and other minerals in, on and under the Land, 
previously retained by a prior owner or owners, provided, however, that this reservation does 
not include the right to use the surface of the Property to access, explore for, drill for, 
excavate, or produce oil, gas or other minerals, or to use any groundwater from the Property 
in connection with the oil, gas or mineral estates, 

collectively, the "Land", which is more fully described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

1.2 For the consideration, and subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Contract, 
Seller agrees to sell and convey to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase and pay for fee 
simple title to the Land, together with all rights and appurtenances pertaining thereto, 
including: 

a. all groundwater now or hereafter located in and under the Land, 

b. all right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent roads, streets, alleys or 
rights-of-way, 

c. all easements appurtenant to the Land; 

d. all development rights related to the Land; 

e. all improvements located on the Land, including all water wells. 

Page 1 

w 44



1.3 The property interests and rights described in Section 1.1 are referred to collectively as 
"Property." 

1.4 If a new survey is provided under the terms of this Contract, the legal description in 
Exhibit "A" will automatically be replaced by the legal description provided by the 
Survey, once it is approved by Seller and Buyer. 

1.5 This Contract is subject to approval by the City Council of the City of College Station, 
Texas; such approval indicated by signature of Buyer's representatives to this Contract. 

ARTICLE I1 
PURCHASE PRICE AND EARNEST MONEY 

Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Property will be the sum of FOUR 
HUNDRED NINETY-NINE THOUSAND AND NO1100 DOLLARS ($499,000.00) 
payable in cash at Closing ("Purchase Price"). The Purchase Price is based on $2,500 per 
acre x 199.60 acres of Land. 

The Purchase Price is subject to adjustment at Closing in the event that any of the acreage 
amounts of the Land, as determined by the Survey, differ from those shown in Section 
1.1. 

Earnest Money. Within 20 days afier this Contract is fully signed, Buyer will pay the 
sum of $7485.00 ("Earnest Money") to Brazos County Abstract Company, Kathy Vicini, 
Closer, 3800 Cross Park Drive, Bryan, TX 77802 (979) 731-1900 ("Title Company") to 
be held by Title Company in escrow in'accordance with the terms of this Contract. Title 
Company will deposit the Earnest Money in an interest-bearing account at a financial 
institution whose accounts are federally insured, and will hold and distribute such Earnest 
Money in accordance with the terms of this Contract. All interest accrued on the Earnest 
Money will become part of the Earnest Money. In the event Buyer terminates this 
Contract during the Inspection Period (as defined in Article 111), Title Company will 
promptly return the Earnest Money to Buyer. If Buyer completes the purchase of the 
Property, the Earnest Money will be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing. 

2.2 Independent Consideration. The sum of $100.00 out of the Earnest Money will 
constitute independent consideration ("Independent Consideration") for Buyer's right to 
terminate this Contract as described in Article 111. If Buyer terminates this Contract 
during the Inspection Period as provided in Article 111, Title Company will pay the 
Independent Consideration to Seller. In all other instances, the Independent 
Consideration will constitute a portion of the Earnest Money, and will be held and paid 
out by Title Company as "Earnest Money" under the terms of this Contract. 

ARTICLE I11 
INSPECTION PERIOD 

Page 2 

CkR 45



Inspection Period. The Buyer shall have an Inspection Period in which to determine 
whether the Property is suitable for Buyer. The Inspection Period shall begin on the 
Effective Date of this Contract, and shall terminate 90 days thereafter. Buyer, at its 
option, may extend the Inspection Period by an additional 30 days by giving Seller 
written notice of the extension before the expiration of the initial 90-day period. In 
addition to the foregoing, in the event that Seller fails to provide the Seller's Records, 
Title Commitment, UCC Search or other information or documentation required to be 
provided by Seller within the time periods required by this Contract, the Inspection 
Period shall be extended by one day for each day any such information is provided after 
its due date, not to exceed 60 days. 

3.2 Seller's Records. Within 20 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, the Seller will 
provide Buyer with copies of the following documents relating to the Property: 

a. Any existing surveys of the Property; 

b. Any drilling logs, permits, or other records regarding Seller's wells located on the 
Property, if requested by the Buyer; 

c. Any notices or other communications received by Seller from any taxing authority 
or government agency regarding a violation of law applicable to the Property or 
its use: 

d. Any notice of threatened condemnation, or intent to condemn all or any portion of 
the Property; 

e. Any litigation proceedings involving the Property; 

f. Any unrecorded leases or other documents granting the right to possession or use 
of the Property; and 

g. Any other records relating to the use or condition of the Property, including any 
legal claims. 

If Seller receives any additional information or records regarding the Property during the 
term of this Contract, Seller will provide copies of such information to Buyer no later 
than 10 days after Seller receives it. 

3.3 Entry onto the Property. Buyer may enter the Property during the Inspection Period and 
at any time before Closing to inspect the Property, and may conduct any and all 
investigations that Buyer deems necessary, including surveys, environmental site 
assessments, appraisals, and investigations to determine the condition of the Property and 
to estimate the quality, quantity and sustainability of the groundwater, including the 
drilling of test holes or wells, and the taking of water samples. Buyer's right to inspect 
will be subject to the following: 

Page 3 

* 46



a. Buyer will endeavor to give Seller advance notice by telephone, in person or in 
writing of Buyer's plans to inspect or conduct tests on the Property. 

b. If the Property is damaged because of Buyer's inspections, Buyer will return the 
Property as closely as possible to its preinspection condition promptly after the 
completion of its inspections. Any test holes drilled by Buyer will be promptly 
plugged in accordance with the requirements of applicable law. 

c. Buyer, at the request of Seller, will deliver to Seller copies of all inspection and 
other reports that Buyer prepares or receives from third-party consultants or 
contractors regarding the Property. 

3.4 Buyer's Right to Terminate. Buyer may terminate this Contract for any reason by 
notifying Seller before the end of the Inspection Period. 

ARTICLE IV 
TITLE MATTERS AND OBJECTIONS 

4.1 Title Commitment. Within 15 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, Buyer, at 
Buyer's expense, will request Title Company to furnish: 

a. a Commitment for an Owner's Policy of Title Insurance (the "Title 
Commitment") to insure Buyer's title to the Property at the time Buyer purchases 
the Property; and 

b. legible copies of all instruments referred to in the Title Commitment. 

4.2 Survey Within 15 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, Buyer, at Buyer's 
expense, may request a surveyor selected by Buyer to perform a survey of the Property. 
Buyer will have the right, at its sole discretion, to obtain (i) a boundary survey of the 
Property, together with field notes, or (ii) a category I A land title survey of the Property, 
together with field notes, and (iii) any other survey of the Property that Buyer chooses to 
obtain. Any survey obtained by Buyer will be certified to Buyer, Seller, Title Company 
and the Title Company's underwriter. 

4.3 Environmental Site Assessment. Buyer, at Buyer's expense, may order a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment to be performed during the Inspection Period. 

4.4 Objections to Title. Buyer will have 20 days after the receipt of the last of the Sellers' 
Records, the Survey, the Title Commitment, and legible copies of the title documents to 
review the same and make objections to the information shown by them. Sellers will 
have 20 days after the receipt of Buyer's objections in which to cure such objections. In 
the event Sellers are unwilling or unable to cure the objections prior to Closing, Buyer 
will have the right to (i) terminate this Contract prior to Closing and receive the Earnest 
Money, or (ii) waive the objections and close on the purchase of the Property. Sellers 
agree to cooperate with Buyer in the event Buyer endeavors to cure any title matters prior 
to Closing. Matters shown on Schedule B of the Title Commitment or Survey and not 
timely objected to by Buyer, or matters objected to and waived by Buyer, will constitute 

Page 4 

47



Permitted Exceptions. The foregoing notwithstanding, all liens, adverse claims affecting 
the Property, errors or discrepancies in the legal description of the Property, or its size or 
location, and matters shown on Schedule C of the Title Commitment will not be 
considered Permitted Exceptions, and Seller must resolve them to the reasonable 
satisfaction of Buyer and Title Company prior to Closing as a condition to Closing, 
without the need for Buyer to make written objections to them. 

4.5 Subsequent or Additional Information. If, at any time prior to Closing, revisions or 
updates are made to the Title Commitment or the Survey, or if Buyer is made aware of 
additional information relating to the condition of or title to the Property, including, but 
not limited to additions to the Seller's Records and changes to the use or condition of the 
Property, then Buyer will have an additional 20 days after receiving the revised Title 
Commitment, Survey, and/or additional information in which to make objections to 
matters disclosed in such documents or information which were not previously disclosed 
to Buyer. Seller will have 20 days after receipt of Buyer's objections in which to cure 
such objections. In the event that Seller is unwilling or unable to do so, Buyer will have 
the right to (i) terminate this Contract prior to Closing, and receive the Earnest Money, or 
(ii) waive the objections and close on the purchase of the Property. The Closing Date will 
be extended, if necessary, to accommodate the additional objection and cure periods. 

4.6 Environmental Matters. If the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment indicates the 
need for further investigation or indicates the presence of contamination, then Buyer will 
notify Seller of the conditions shown by the Environmental Site Assessment within 20 
days after Buyer's receipt of the report. Buyer will have the right, at Buyer's expense, to 
conduct a Phase I1 Environmental Site Assessment or additional testing of the Property or 
groundwater to determine the likelihood or degree of contamination. If environmental 
contamination is found, and the parties are unable to agree in writing prior to the Closing 
Date as to who will pay for the cleanup or remediation, and within what time period, then 
Buyer shall have the right to (i) terminate this Contract at any time prior to Closing, and 
receive the return of the Earnest Money, or (ii) agree to accept the Property in its present 
condition and close on the purchase of the Property. 

4.7 Ad Valorem Taxes and Assessments. Each Seller will be responsible for paying, prior 
to or at Closing, all assessments and ad valorem property taxes due and owing against the 
Property as of the date of Closing, including any and all delinquent taxes and 
assessments, penalties, interest, fees and other charges in connection therewith. At 
Closing, Sellers will pay all taxes against the Property for the year of Closing that are 
payable on the date of Closing. If taxes for the current year are not then payable, Title 
Company will require the tax assessor to determine taxes due against the Property to the 
date of Closing, in accordance with the provisions of Section 26.1 1 of the Texas Tax 
Code, and Sellers shall pay the amount of taxes so assessed at Closing. Unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties in writing, if the Property has been the subject of special 
valuation and reduced tax assessments pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 23, 
Subchapter D, or any other provisions of the Texas Tax Code with respect to any period 
before the Closing and additional taxes are assessed pursuant to Section 23.55 or other 
applicable section of the Texas Tax Code, the following will apply: 

48



(1) Seller will be responsible for paying any additional taxes, penalties or interest 
resulting from a change in ownership or use of the Property by Seller prior to 
Closing; and 

(2) If this sale or Buyer's use of the Property after Closing results in the assessment 
of additional taxes for periods before Closing, Buyer will pay the additional taxes 
as they relate to the Property. 

The provisions of this Section 4.7 shall survive Closing. 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS OF SELLER 

5.1 Seller hereby represents to Buyer that, to the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, the 
following are true and correct as of the Effective Date of this Contract and will be true 
and correct on the Closing Date: 

a. Seller is the sole owner of the Property and has the full right, power, and authority 
to enter into and perform its obligations under this Contract without the consent or 
joinder of any other person. 

b. There are no unrecorded leases or other rights to occupy or use the Property 
except for those disclosed by Seller to Buyer in writing. 

c. Seller has no actual knowledge of any potential, pending or threatened litigation, 
condemnation or other proceedings affecting the Property or any part thereof, or 
which could result in Buyer incurring expenses or losses in connection with the 
Property after the purchase of it. 

d. Seller has not received any notice that a governmental entity is contemplating 
condemnation of any portion of the Property. 

e. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, Seller (i) has paid all ad valorem 
taxes and assessments against the Property as they became due, (ii) is entitled to 
any exemption from property taxes or special use valuation which has been 
claimed by Seller in connection with the Property, and (iii) has complied with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules and restrictions relating to 
the Property, or the use of the Property, or any portion thereof. 

f. Seller has no knowledge that the Property contains any environmental hazards or 
contamination. 

g. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, there are no unpaid charges, debts, 
liabilities, claims or obligations arising from any construction, occupancy, 
ownership, use or operation of the Property, or the business operated thereon, if 
any, which could give rise to any mechanic's or materialmen's or other statutory 
liens' against the Property, or any part thereof, or for which Buyer will be 
responsible. 

Page 6 

& 49



5.2 In the event Seller learns that any of the above statements are untrue or incorrect, or that 
they have become untrue or incorrect, Seller shall promptly notify Buyer in writing. If 
the state or condition is not resolved to Buyer's reasonable satisfaction prior to Closing, 
Buyer will have the right to terminate this Contract prior to Closing, and obtain the return 
of the Earnest Money. In the event Buyer first learns after Closing that any of the above 
statements were untrue or incorrect as of the Date of Closing, Buyer shall have all rights 
and remedies available at law or equity. 

ARTICLE VI 
CONDITION OF PROPERTY 

6.1 Until Closing, Seller (a) will maintain the Property as it existed on the Effective Date of 
this Contract, except for reasonable wear and tear and casualty damage; (b) will operate 
the Property in the same manner as it was operated on the Effective Date of this Contract; 
including any use necessary to maintain any agricultural exemption on the Property; and 
(c) will not grant to any other person without the prior written consent of Buyer, any 
rights or interests in the Property, including easement rights, or rights to use the 
groundwater, or amend any existing agreement relating to the Property, including 
easements, oil and gas leases, or any other documents evidencing or creating an interest 
or right in the Property. Any conveyance or amendment in violation of this provision 
will be void and of no effect, and shall not be binding on Buyer. Seller will be in default 
under this Contract if Seller fails to comply with the provisions of this section. 

6.2 Seller will notify Buyer promptly after discovery of any casualty damage to the Property. 
Seller will have no obligation to repair or replace the Property if it is damaged by casualty 
before Closing. Buyer may terminate this Contract and receive the return of the Earnest 
Money, if the casualty damage that occurs before Closing would materially affect 
Buyer's intended use of the Property, by giving notice to Seller prior to Closing. 

6.3 Seller will notify Buyer promptly after Seller receives notice that any part of the Property 
has been or is threatened to be condemned or otherwise taken by a governmental or quasi- 
governmental authority. Buyer may terminate this Contract and receive the return of the 
Earnest Money if the condemnation would materially affect Buyer's intended use of the 
Property by giving notice to Seller prior to Closing. If Buyer does not terminate this 
Contract, (a) Buyer and Seller will each have the right to appear and defend their 
respective interests in the Property in the condemnation proceedings, (b) any award in 
condemnation with regard to the Property will be assigned to Buyer, and (c) if the taking 
occurs before Closing, the description of the Property will be revised to delete the portion 
taken. 

6.4 Seller will notify Buyer promptly of any claim or administrative hearing that is 
threatened, filed, or initiated before Closing that affects the Property. 

6.5 Seller will cooperate with Buyer (a) before and after Closing, if requested by Buyer, to 
transfer the applications, permits, and licenses held by Seller and used in the operation of 
the Property and to obtain any consents necessary for Buyer to operate the Property after 
Closing; and (b) before Closing, with any reasonable evaluation, assessment, inspection, 

Page 7 * 50



audit, or study of the Property prepared by, for, or at the request of Buyer, and making 
available to Buyer and Buyer's consultants, information known by Seller regarding the 
Property, and the name and contact information for a person (if any) known by Seller to 
be knowledgeable about the condition and use of the Property, if Seller has no such 
knowledge. 

6.6 Prohibited Uses. Without limiting the generality of any of the provisions of this 
Contract, before Closing, and after Closing, if Sellers have any interest in oil, gas or 
minerals in connection with the Land, Sellers will not enter into any oil and gas 
lease, surface use agreement or other agreement affecting the Property, or  any 
portion thereof, that allows (a) flooding of all or  any portion of the Property, (b) 
injection into or disposal of salt water onto all or any portion of the Property, (c) use 
of groundwater or fresh subterranean water located under the Property or any 
portion thereof for any purpose, or (d) drilling of groundwater well(s) or other 
surface use of the Property. Sellers are prohibited from engaging in the same 
activities. This provision will survive Closing, will run with the oil, gas and mineral 
estates, and will be binding on Sellers, their heirs, successors and assigns and 
persons with whom they or any of them contract for the use or production of 
minerals. This provision will be set forth in the Deed. 

ARTICLE VII 
CLOSING 

7.1 The Closing shall be held at the office of the Title Company, within thirty (30) calendar 
days after the expiration of the Inspection Period. The Closing will take place at a date 
and time agreed to by the parties, or, if none has been agreed upon, then at 2:00 p.m. on 
the 30"' day after the expiration of the Inspection Period (the "Closing Date"). The 
Closing Date is subject to extension as provided in Section 4.5 of this Contract. The City 
Attorney for Buyer is authorized to extend the time for Closing. 

7.2 Buyer will pay the cost for preparation of the Special Warranty Deed to be used at 
Closing, which is to be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B" 
modified, as necessary, to reflect the terms of this Contract. 

7.3 At the Closing, Seller shall: 

a. Deliver to Buyer the duly executed and acknowledged Special Warranty Deed 
conveying good and marketable title in and to the Property, free and clear of any 
and all liens, encumbrances, or title matters except for the Permitted Exceptions. 

b. Deliver possession of the Property to Buyer. 

c. Deliver any notice required by law to be given, and satisfactory evidence of 
Seller's authority to sell and convey the Property to Buyer in accordance with this 
Contract. 

Page 8 

@@- 51



d. Deliver to Buyer, as soon as practicable after Closing, a Title Policy issued by 
Title Company in Buyer's favor in the full amount of the Purchase Price, insuring 
Buyer's fee simple absolute title to the Property to be good and indefeasible, 
subject only to the Permitted Exceptions, without exception to any rights of 
parties in possession other than the rights of lessee under any grazing lease 
affecting the Property which constitutes a Permitted Exception. 

e. Execute and deliver an IRS Non-Foreign Person Affidavit, and any other 
documents reasonably required by the Title Company to issue a Title Policy 
meeting the requirements of this Contract, or required by Buyer to evidence or 
carry out the terms of this Contract. 

f. Pay any and all property taxes and assessments as provided in Section 4.7. 

g. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record releases of all liens affecting the 
Property. 

h. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents to cure title objections 
which Seller has agreed to cure, and the costs to record any curative documents 
obtained by Buyer. 

I. Pay for the certificates or reports of ad valorem taxes, and any other costs or 
expenses required to be paid by Seller at Closing under the terms of this Contract. 

j- Pay the Seller's expenses and attorney's fees. 

7.4 Upon such performance by Seller at Closing, Buyer shall: 

a. Pay the balance of the Purchase Price. 

b. Pay the escrow fee charged by Title Company. 

c. Pay the expenses required to be paid by Buyer under this Contract, including any 
title insurance, survey and Environmental Site Assessment costs. 

d. Pay for the brokerage fees of Buyer's Real Estate Broker. 

e. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents other than those to be 
obtained, delivered or recorded at Seller's expense. 

f. Pay the Buyer's expenses and attorney's fees. 

ARTICLE VIII 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

8.1 This sale is made in lieu of condemnation by the Buyer. 

8.2 Disposition of Earnest Money after Termination: 

Page 9 

52



a. To Buyer. If Buyer terminates this Contract in accordance with any of Buyer's 
rights to terminate, Seller will, within five days after receipt of Buyer's 
termination notice, authorize Title Company to deliver the Earnest Money to 
Buyer. If Buyer terminates this Contract under the provisions of Article 111, the 
Independent Consideration will be withheld from the Earnest Money and paid to 
Seller. 

b. To Seller. If Seller terminates this Contract in accordance with any of Seller's 
rights to terminate, Buyer will, within five days after receipt of Seller's 
termination notice, authorize Title Company to deliver the Earnest Money to 
Seller. 

8.3 If this Contract is terminated, Buyer, upon request of Seller, will promptly return to Seller 
all documents relating to the Property that Seller has delivered to Buyer. After return of 
the documents and copies, neither party will have further duties or obligations to the other 
under this Contract, except for those obligations that survive termination of the Contract. 

ARTICLE IX 
BREACH BY SELLER 

9.1 In the event Seller fails to fully and timely perform any of Seller's obligations under this 
Contract or fails to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason except Buyer's 
default, or the Buyer's exercise of a right to terminate this Contract, then, in addition to 
exercising any other rights available at law or equity, Buyer may: 

a. enforce specific performance of this Contract; or 

b. terminate this Contract, and obtain the Earnest Money. 

ARTICLE X 
BREACH BY BUYER 

10.1 In the event Buyer fails to consummate the purchase of the Property for any reason other 
than a default by Seller or the exercise of a right to terminate under this Contract, Seller 
shall have as its exclusive remedy the right to terminate this Contract and retain the 
Earnest Money. 

ARTICLE XI 
BROKERS 

1 1.1 Buyer is represented in this transaction by the following Real Estate Broker: 

John P. Schneider, Jr. 
SCHNEIDER & ASSOCIATES 
3703 Speedway 
Austin, Texas 78705 

Page 10 

53



11.2 Seller is represented in this transaction by the following Real Estate Broker: 

None. 

Buyer will be responsible for paying any commission owed to Buyer's Real Estate 
Broker. Seller will be responsible for paying any commission owed to Seller's Real 
Estate Broker. Any commission agreements between the parties and their respective 
Brokers are in separate agreements and are not a part of this Contract. 

11.3 Brokers' Commissions. Each party represents and warrants to the other that it has not 
used any real estate broker in connection with this Contract except those identified above 
and any appraiser hired by Buyer. Buyer, to the extent it is permitted to do so by 
applicable law, and Seller each indemnify and agree to defend and hold the other party 
harmless from any loss, attorney's fees, and court and other costs arising out of a claim by 
any person or entity claiming by, through, or under the indemnitor for a broker's or 
finder's fee or commission because of this transaction or this Contract, whether the 
claimant is disclosed to the indemnitee or not. At Closing, each party will provide the 
other party with a release of broker's or appraiser's liens from all brokers or appraisers for 
which each party was responsible. The following statutory notice is provided to Buyer on 
behalf of the real estate licensees, if any, involved in this transaction: Buyer is advised that 
it should either have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of 
Buyer's own selection or be furnished with or obtain a policy of title insurance. 

ARTICLE XI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

12.1 Notices. Any notice required by or permitted under this Contract ("Notice") must be in 
writing, unless otherwise provided by this Contract. Any Notice required by this Contract 
will be deemed to be delivered (whether actually received or not) when deposited with 
the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
and addressed to the intended recipient at the address shown in this Contract. Notice may 
also be given by regular mail, personal delivery, courier delivery, or facsimile 
transmission, and will be effective when actually received. Notice may not be given by 
email. Copies of each Notice must be given by one of these methods to the attorney of the 
party to whom Notice is given, if the attorney is identified below or if the name and 
address of the attorney has been provided in writing to the party giving Notice. Any 
party or address for Notice may be changed by written notice delivered as provided 
herein. 

Seller: 
Charles A. Rowe, Sr; 
241 0 Fall Meadow Drive 
Missouri City, Texas 77459-3342 
Phone: 231- q31-5737 
Fax: a g 1 - a t l - 6 8 q s  

With Copy to: 

Page 11 

w 54



Buyer: City of College Station, Texas 
Legal Department 
1 101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Brazos County, Texas, 77840 
Attn.: Carla A. Robinson, First Assistant City Attorney 
Phone: (979) 764-3507 
Fax: (979) 764-3481 

With Copy to: 

Buyer's Attorney: 
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP 
8 16 Congress Ave., Suite 1700 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attn.: Denise CheneyISusan Maxwell 
Phone: (5 12) 472-802 1 
Fax: (512) 320-5638 

Buyer's Broker: 
John P. Schneider, Jr. 
Schneider & Associates 
3703 Speedway 
Austin, TX 78705 
Phone: (512) 477-5827 
Fax: (512) 477-5930 

12.2 Entire Agreement. This Contract, together with its exhibits, and any Closing 
Documents delivered at Closing constitute the entire agreement of the parties concerning 
the sale and use of the Property. There are no oral representations, warranties, 
agreements or promises between the parties pertaining to the sale and use of the Property 
that are not expressly set forth in those documents. All exhibits to this Contract are 
incorporated herein. 

12.3 Amendment. This Contract may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties. 

12.4 Assignment. Buyer may assign this Contract and Buyer's rights under it without the 
need for Seller's consent. This Contract binds, benefits and may be enforced by the 
parties'and their respective heirs, successors and permitted assigns. 

12.5 Survival. The provisions of this Contract which expressly state that they survive 
termination or Closing, all representations and warranties, and all obligations and rights 
set out in this Contract that cannot be performed or exercised before termination of this 

Page 12 

55



Contract or before Closing, or which are performable or exercisable thereafter, will 
survive termination of this Contract or Closing, respectively, and the legal doctrine of 
merger will not apply to these matters. If there is any conflict between the Closing 
Documents executed at Closing and this Contract, the Closing Documents will control. 

12.6 Choice of Law; Venue; Alternative Dispute Resolution. This Contract will be 
construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to 
choice of law rules of any jurisdiction, and all obligations of the parties created by this 
Contract are to be performed in Brazos County, Texas. Venue is in the county in which 
all, or the majority, of the Real Property is located, and in the Federal Courts of the 
Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, except as otherwise provided by applicable 
law. 

12.7 Waiver of Default. It is not a waiver of default if the nondefaulting party fails to 
declare immediately a default or delays taking any action with respect to the default. 

12.8 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries of this Contract. 

12.9 Legal Construction. If any provision in this Contract is for any reason held invalid, 
illegal, or unenforce2.ble in any respect, to the extent such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability does not destroy the basis of the bargain among the parties, the 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and 
this Contract will be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had 
never been a part of the Contract. Whenever context requires, the singular will include 
the plural and neuter will include the masculine or feminine gender, and vice versa. 
Article and Section headings in this Contract are for reference only and are not intended 
to restrict or define the text of any section. 

12.10 Ambiguities Not to Be Construed Against Party Who Drafted Contract. The rule of 
construction that ambiguities in a document will be construed against the party who 
drafted it will not be applied in interpreting this Contract. 

12.11 No Special Relationship. The parties' relationship is an ordinary commercial 
relationship, and the parties do not intend to create the relationship of principal and agent, 
partners, joint venturers, or any other special relationship. 

12.12 Counterparts. If this Contract is executed in multiple counterparts, all counterparts 
taken together will constitute this Contract. The parties agree that signatures transmitted 
by the parties by facsimile or electronic mail will have the same force and effect as 
original signatures. 

12.13 Confidentiality. The parties will keep confidential this Contract, this transaction, and all 
information learned in the course of this transaction, except to the extent disclosure is 
required by law or court order or to enable third parties to advise or assist Buyer to 
investigate the Property or either party to close this transaction. 

12.14 Binding Effect. This Contract and the terms, covenants, and conditions herein contained, 
binds, benefits, and may be enforced by the parties and their respective heirs, executors, 

Page 13 

& 56



administrators, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. The persons 
executing this Contract do so in their capacities as set forth below and in no other 
capacity whatsoever, and such persons shall have no personal liability for executing this 
Contract in a representative capacity. All such liability is limited to the principal for 
which they execute this document as a representative. 

12.15 Attorney's Fees. If either party retains an attorney to enforce this Contract, the party 
prevailing in litigation is entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees as provided by 
Section 271.159 of the Texas Local Government Code, expenses and court and other 
costs from the non-prevailing party. 

12.16 Memorandum of Contract. Upon request of either party, both parties shall promptly 
execute a memorandum of this Contract in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "C", 
suitable for filing of record in the real property records of the County or Counties in 
which the Property is located. 

12.1 7 Time. Time is of the essence. Unless otherwise specified, all references to "days" mean 
calendar days. Business days exclude Saturdays, Sundays, and legal public holidays. If 
the date for performance of any obligation falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal public 
holiday, the date for performance will be the next following regular business day. Legal 
public holidays shall be deemed to include holidays on which the administrative offices 
of Buyer are closed for business. 

12.18 Further Assurances. Each party agrees to take such actions, or to execute such 
documents, as may be reasonably necessary to evidence or carry out the terms of this 
Contract. 

12.19 Effective Date. The Contract will be effective on the date on which this Contract has 
been duly executed by Seller and Buyer. 

12.20 THIS CONTRACT IS A LEGAL DOCUMENT. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT SELLER OBTAIN AN 
ATTORNEY TO ADVISE SELLER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS CONTRACT. 

EXECUTED on the dates set forth below to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

List of Exhibits: 

Exhibit "A" - Legal Description of the Property 
Exhibit "B" - Special Warranty Deed Form 
Exhibit "C" - Form for Memorandum of Contract 

Seller: Buyer: 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

&&;=! RM,j 
Page 14 

e,aa 57



Charles A. Rowe, Sr. BY: 
Mayor 

Date: e 3q a 007 Date: 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 9 
S 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS § 

City Secretary 
Date: 

APPROVED: 

City Manager 
Date: 

Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 

./9.-.?- 
City Attorney 

Date: 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of A 2007 
by , as Mayor of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a Texas home rule 
municipal corporation, on behalf of said municipality. 

Page 15 

M 
58



NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the '3oYhday of h?h~//; 2007, 
by Charles A. Rowe, Sr. .ILLZJ&& 

NOTARY PUBLI 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 9 
S 

COUNTY OF 5 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007, 
by 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

Page 16 

59



EXHIBIT "A" 

Legal Description of the Property 

60



In Re: 200.000 Acres and a 30 foot 
wide - 1.554 acre easement 

Wright Coley Survey, A-95 
~obertson County, Texas 

Wright Coley survey, A-253 

I !  
Brazos  County, Texas 

ain tract or parcel of land being 83.600 acres 
obertson County, Texas and being 116.400 acres of 
in Brazos County, being a part of the Wright CoZey 
act No. 95 (Robertson Co.) and being a part of the 
urvey, Abstract No. 253 (Brazos County) and being a 
alled nFourth Tractn 255 acres as conveyed from 

Henderson, Trustee of Allen Smith, Inc. and Allen Smith to 
by D e e d  of Trust dated May 1, 1934 ( ~ o t  Recorded) 
partialarly descrkbed by metes and bounds as 

at an i r o n  pin s e t  at a fence corner post on an 
ast l i n e  as fenced of a John Smith Survey, Abstract No.  
common Northwest corner of a Moses Hughes Survey, 

act No. 135 and a W. E. Kutzcybach, et ux 478.69 acre t r ac t  
473), same being a common Southwest corner of said Coley 
y, A-253 and said original 255 acre t r a c t  and for the 
w e s t  corner of t h i s  tract;  - 

w i t h  an occupied common l ine  as fenced between said Coley 
and said Smith Survey, same being a common line between 

1 255 acre tract and said Kutzcybach 478.69 acre 
Forbin Investments If. V. qlTract 3" - 833-04 acres, 
(1009/345) as follows: 

1 1?30e40'03t1W (Bearing based upon an occupied common line as 
, fenced between said original Ivan Langford 104.3 acre 

, I  tract (138/069) and a V i r g i n i a  Capps 336 acre tract - 
I !  

624/764 being N6Oo00'0OwE) - 1215.78 feet to a fence  
corner post for the most westerly Northeast corner of / ; said 478.69 acre t rac t ,  same being the Southeast corner 

I I 
I of said 833.04  acre t r ac t  and for  an exterior e l l  
i corner of this tract; 
, NZ9°30*5914W - 1377.48 feet to an i r o n  p i n  s e t  f a r  the 
I Northwest corner of t h i s  tract; 

N60°00t00nE - 3602.88 feet to a point in the c e n t e r  of 
Brazos River, same being a common l i n e  between said 

255 acre tract and a Sanford Johnson 138.06 acre tract 
for the Northeast corner of t h i s  tract (a reference 

set bears S60°00'00"W - 50.00 feet ) ;  

EXHIBIT A 
61



with the center of said Little Brazos River, same being a 
line between said original 2 5 5  acre tract and said Johnson 
acre tract and.a Sanford Johnson 60 acre tract (342/031), 

as follows; 

, S ~ I ~ O B ~ ~ ~ ~ * E  - 136.46 feet to a point  far an interior ell 
I 

. - 
corner of &is tract; 

1 5 3 3 e 2 7 ' 1 5 1 1 ~  - 390.10 feet to a point f o r  an exterior ell 
I corner of this .tract; ... ; .- 
~ ~ 2 1 ~ 2 1 ' 4 0 ~ ~ ~  - 522.82 feet- to a point for an exterior e l l  

corner of t h i s  tract; 
i~16049*44o~ - 435.88 feet to a point for an exterior ell ! ,  

I '  comer of this tract; 
I jS06°26'34uE - 261.96 feet to a point for an exterior e l l  

corner of this tract; 
/ ~ 0 1 ~ 3 6 ' 5 9 ~ ~  - 260-99 feet. to a point for an exterior e l l  
1 corner of this tract; 
! 9 0 7 ~ 4 2 ~ 1 9 ~ ~  - 439.81 feet to a point for an exterior ell 
I corner of t h i s  tract; 

/ I  S23°09'38wW - 544.92 feet to a point on an occupied common 

1 I 

line as fenced between s a i d  Coley Survey and sa id  
Bughes Survey, same being a comon l ine  between said 
original 255 acre tract and said Kutzcybach 478-69 acre 

I tract for the Southwest corner of said Sanford 60 acre 
tract and for the Southeast corner of this t rac t  (a 
reference i r o n  pin set bears S63°12f33wW - 60.00 feet); 

ENC with an occupied common line as fenced between said Coley 
s rvey aud s a i d  Hughes Survey, same being a comon line between 
s id o r i g i n a l  255 acre tract and said Kutzcybach 478 .69  acre 
t act as follows: 4' i S63P12r33ffW - 316.62 feet -. ,-. to ++,. ti a ,- - fence corner post for an 

i n t e r i o r  e l l  corner of t h i s  tract; 
j S60°38'40"W - 897.12 feet to a fence corner post for an 
! i n t e r i o r  e l l  corner of t h i s  tract; 
i S59°31r01mW - 509.48 feet to a fence corner post for an I interior ell corner of t h i s  tract; 

S57"31r35"W - 234.02 feet to a fence corner post fo r  an 
exterior e l l  corner  of t h i s  tract; 

S59°44158MW - 545-55 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and 
containing 200.000 Acres of Land. 

34 FOOT WIDE - 1.554 ACRE E A S E M E T  

ENCING at a point in a common l i n e  between the c e n t e r  of said 
L t t l e  Bra206 River L o r  the Southwest corner of an Ivan Langford -$-- .6  acre tract (113/037), same being the Northwest corner of 

id Johnson 138.06 acre tract (a reference i r o n  pin set at a 
corner post bears N60°31'34nE - 30.00 feet; 

EXHIBIT A 

62



~ $ C E  with a common line between said Langford 70.6 acre t r ac t  
an said Johnson 138.06 acre ttacf,' respectively as follows; 

; N60a31r34'9E - 985.74 feet to a fence corner post; 
i N60"059251tE - 25.15 feet t o  a point on t h e  North l i n e  of 
I 
I said Mumford R o a d  for the Southeast corner of t h i s  
, easement and for the PLACE OF BEGINNING; 
I 

the.South line o'fj' herein-described easement as 
. . 
. , 

N51°10nW - 48.69 feet t o  a point for an interior e l l  corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

S86O24'W - 44.46 feet to. a point far an exterior ell corner 
of this easement; . . 

N50°58tW - 106.35 feet to a post for an interior e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

N74010'W - 78.42 feet to a point for an interior ell corner 
of this easement; 

S7S058 'W - 9 7 - 0 8  feet to a point for an interior el1 corner 
of this easement; 

S62017'W - 152.96 feet to a point for an interior e l l  corner 
of t h i s  easement.;. .< . .= , 

,,S60°13 'W - 266.98- feet .t$,a&ipt Ear .an exterior ell corner 
of this easement; 

S66001'W - 107.96 feet to a point for an interior e l l  comer 
of this easement; 

S5g032'W - 107.85 feet  to a point fo r  an exterior ell corner 
of this easement; 

S74O32'W - 76.36 feet to a-point fo r  an i n t e r i o r  e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

S63O35'W - 109.12 feet t o - a  po.int for  a n  interior ell corner 
of this easement; 

S58O24'W - 65.29 feet to a point f o r  an in te r ior  ell corner 
o f  this easement; 

S55O15'W - 107-92 feet  to a p o i n t  for an exterior e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

S64O01'W - 62.63 feet to a point for an interior e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

S 4 I o 5 9 ' W  - 90.30 feet to a point f o r  an i n t e r i o r  e l l  corner  
of this easement; 

S17"26'W - 9 7 . 2 9  feet to a point f o r  an interior ell comer 
of this easement; 

~ 0 1 ~ 0 3 ' ~  - 270.84 feet  to a point f o r  an i n t e r io r  e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

S04O14'E - 179.61 Eeet to a-point  for a n  interior e l l  corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

S0604gfE - 119.53 feet to a point fo r  a n  exterior  e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

EXHIBIT A 

63



S03"Ol'E - 19.09 feet to a point on a common Line between 
said 200 acre tract and a 5 5 . 0 0 0  acre tract as surveyed 
by me this date for the Southwest corner of this 
easement (said point being S6O000'OO"W - 764.34 feet 
from the Southeast corner of said 5 5  acre tract, same 
being the Northeast corner of said 200.000 acre t rac t ;  

'JTIENCE S60~00 -.' 33 :6.7' feet"+ith','&.aid commdn line to a point 
fo r  the Northwest comer of this easement; 

THENCE with the North line of herein described easement as 
follows: 

N03°01tW - 33.37 feet to a point f o r  an i n t e r i o r  ell corner 
of this easement; 

N06O49'W - 119.21 feet tg a poipt for an exterior e l l  comer 
of this easement; 

N04614fW - 181.12 feet to a point for an exterior ell corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

N01°03pW - 276.56 feet to a point for an exterior ell corner 
of this easement; 

N17O26'E - 108.69 feet to a point for an exterior ell comer 
of t h i s  easement; 

N41459'E - 102-67 feet to a point for an exterior e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

W64O0I1E - 66.17 feet to a point fo r  an i n t e r i o r  ell comer 
of this easement; - 

N55°15yE - 106.44 feet to a point for an exterior e l i  corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

. . . - - ,  af5a024 'E - 8X.47 feet ta;~' for an exterior ell c o r n e r  
of this easement; 

N63O35'E - 113.35 feat to a point  for an ertterior ell corner 
of this easement; 

N74O32.E - 75.29 feet to a point for an i n t e r i o r  ell corner 
of this easement; 

N5g632'E - 105-60 feet to a point for  an exterior ell corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

N66°01'E - 108.14 feet to :.a pbint f o i  an i n t e r i o ;  ell corner 
of this easement; 

N60°13'E - 266.00 feet to a point f o r  an exterior e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

N62O17'E - 157.10 feet to a point  for  an exterior  ell corner 
of this casement; 

N75O58'E - 108.68 feet to a p o i n t  for an exterior e l l  corner 
of this easement; 

S74OlO'E - 92-58 feet to a point f o r  an exterior  ell corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

S50°58'E - 100.80 feet to a po in t  fo r  an i n t e r i o r  e l l  corner 
of t h i s  easement; 

N86O24'E - 44-40 -feet t o  a W i n t  f o r  an exterior a11 corner 
of this easement; 

EXHIBIT A 
64



S51°10'E - 72.01 feet to a point on the N o r t h  line of said 
Mumford R o a d ,  same being a common Line between s a i d  
Langford 70.6 acre tract and said Johnson 138.06 acre 
tract f o r  the'~orfiheast corner of this easement;.. 

THENCE S60e05 '25t1W - 32..19 w&th:.the North line of said Mumford 
Road, same being a common.line between s'aid Lungford 70.6 acre 
t rac t  and s a i d  Johnson 138.06'acre tract  to the PLACE OF 
J3EGLNNLPG and containing 1.554 Acre of Land. 

I, W. L. Ferguson, Reyistered Professional Land Sunreyor No. 2547, 
in the State of texas, do hereby certify that the above survey 
was performed on the .groOqd cug@er my,,supervision and the f i e l d  
notes hereon are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Given under my hand and seal this 28th day of May, 2996. 

EXHIBIT A 
65



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 
(Fee Purchase) 

This Real Estate Contract ("Contract") is made by and between WILLIE E. ALLEN, 
JOINED HEREIN BY HIS SPOUSE, IF MARRIED ("Seller", whether one or more), and the 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipal corporation, situated in 
Brazos County, Texas ("Buyer"), upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. The promises 
by Buyer and Seller stated in this Contract are the consideration for the formation of this 
Contract. 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

1.1 Seller is the sole owner of fee simple title to the following real property: 

Approximately 55.0 acres of land more or less, in Robertson County, Texas, out of 
Abstract 95, Tr 20, W Cooley, being the same property conveyed by instrument recorded 
in Volume 657, Page 746 of the Real Property 'Records of Robertson County, Texas, 

LESS, SAVE AND EXCEPT all oil, gas and other minerals in, on and under the Land, 
previously retained by a prior owner or owners, provided, however, that this reservation does 
not include the right to use the surface of the Property to access, explore for, drill for, 
excavate, or produce oil, gas or other minerals, or to use any groundwater from the Property 
in connection with the oil, gas or mineral estates, 

collectively, the "Land", which is more h l ly  described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

1.2 For the consideration, and subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Contract, 
Seller agrees to sell and convey to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase and pay for fee 
simple title to the Land, together with all rights and appurtenances pertaining thereto, 
including: 

a. all groundwater now or hereafter located in and under the Land, 

b. all right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent roads, streets, alleys or 
rights-of-way, 

c. all easements appurtenant to the Land; 

d. all development rights related to the Land; 

e. all improvements located on the Land, including all water wells. 

1.3 The property interests and rights described in Section 1.1 are referred to collectively as 
"Property." 

Page 1 

66



1.4 If a new survey is provided under the terms of this Contract, the legal description in 
Exhibit "A" will automatically be replaced by the legal description provided by the 
Survey, once it is approved by Seller and Buyer. 

1.5 This Contract is subject to approval by the City Council of the City of College Station, 
Texas; such approval indicated by signature of Buyer's representatives to this Contract. 

ARTICLE I1 
PURCHASE PRICE AND EARNEST MONEY 

Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Property will be the sum of ONE HUNDRED 
THIRTY-SEVEN THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED AND NO1100 DOLLARS 
($137,500.00) payable in cash at Closing ("Purchase Price"). The Purchase Price is based 
on $2,500 per acre x 55.00 acres of Land. 

The Purchase Price is subject to adjustment at Closing in the event that any of the acreage 
amounts of the Land, as determined by the Survey, differ from those shown in Section 
1.1. 

2.1 Earnest Money. Within 20 days after this Contract is fully signed, Buyer will pay the 
sum of $2,062.00 ("Earnest Money") to Brazos County Abstract Company, Kathy Vicini, 
Closer, 3800 Cross Park Drive, Bryan, TX 77802 (979) 73 1-1900 ("Title Company") to 
be held by Title Company in escrow in accordance with the terms of this Contract. Title 
Company will deposit the Earnest Money in an interest-bearing account at a financial 
institution whose accounts are federally insured, and will hold and distribute such Earnest 
Money in accordance with the terms of this Contract. All interest accrued on the Earnest 
Money will become part of the Earnest Money. In the event Buyer terminates this 
Contract during the Inspection Period (as defined in Article 111), Title Company will 
promptly return the Earnest Money to Buyer. If Buyer completes the purchase of the 
Property, the Earnest Money will be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing. 

2.2 Independent Consideration. The sum of $100.00 out of the Earnest Money will 
constitute independent consideration ("Independent Consideration") for Buyer's right to 
terminate this Contract as described in Article 111. If Buyer terminates this Contract 
during the Inspection Period as provided in Article 111, Title Company will pay the 
Independent Consideration to Seller. In all other instances, the Independent 
Consideration will constitute a portion of the Earnest Money, and will be held and paid 
out by Title Company as "Earnest Money" under the terms of this Contract. 

ARTICLE 111 
INSPECTION PERIOD 

3.1 Inspection Period. The Buyer shall have an Inspection Period in which to determine 
whether the Property is suitable for Buyer. The Inspection Period shall begin on the 
Effective Date of this Contract, and shall terminate 90 days thereafter. Buyer, at its 

Page 2 

67



option, may extend the Inspection Period by an additional 30 days by giving Seller 
written notice of the extension before the expiration of the initial 90-day period. In 
addition to the foregoing, in the event that Seller fails to provide the Seller's Records, 
Title Commitment, UCC Search or other information or documentation required to be 
provided by Seller within the time periods required by this Contract, the Inspection 
Period shall be extended by one day for each day any such information is provided after 
its due date, not to exceed 60 days. 

3.2 Seller's Records. Within 20 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, the Seller will 
provide Buyer with copies of the following documents relating to the Property: 

a. Any existing surveys of the Property; 

b. Any drilling logs, permits, or other records regarding Seller's wells located on the 
Property, if requested by the Buyer; 

c. Any notices or other communications received by Seller from any taxing authority 
or government agency regarding a violation of law applicable to the Property or 
its use; 

d. Any notice of threatened condemnation, or intent to condemn all or any portion of 
the Property; 

e. Any litigation proceedings involving the Property; 

f. Any unrecorded leases or other documents granting the right to possession or use 
of the Property; and 

g. Any other records relating to the use or condition of the Property, including any 
legal claims. 

If Seller receives any additional information or records regarding the Property during the 
term of this Contract, Seller will provide copies of such information to Buyer no later 
than 10 days after Seller receives it. 

-3 Entry onto the Property. Buyer may enter the Property during the Inspection Period and 
at any time before Closing to inspect the Property, and may conduct any and all 
investigations that Buyer deems necessary, including surveys, environmental site 
assessments, appraisals, and investigations to determine the condition of the Property and 
to estimate the quality, quantity and sustainability of the groundwater, including the 
drilling of test holes or wells, and the taking of water samples. Buyer's right to inspect 
will be subject to the following: 

a. Buyer will endeavor to give Seller advance notice by telephone, in person or in 
writing of Buyer's plans to inspect or conduct tests on the Property. 

b. If the Property is damaged because of Buyer's inspections, Buyer will return the 
Property as closely as possible to its preinspection condition promptly after the 

Page 3 

68



completion of its inspections. Any test holes drilled by Buyer will be promptly 
plugged in accordance with the requirements of applicable law. 

c. Buyer, at the request of Seller, will deliver to Seller copies of all inspection and 
other reports that Buyer prepares or receives from third-party consultants or 
contractors regarding the Property. 

3.4 Buyer's Right to Terminate. Buyer may terminate this Contract for any reason by 
notifying Seller before the end of the Inspection Period. 

ARTICLE IV 
TITLE MATTERS AND OBJECTIONS 

4.1 Title Commitment. Within 15 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, Buyer, at 
Buyer's expense, will request Title Company to furnish: 

a. a Commitment .for an Owner's Policy of Title Insurance (the "Title 
Commitment") to insure Buyer's title to the Property at the time Buyer purchases 
the Property; and 

b. legible copies of all instruments referred to in the Title Commitment. 

4.2 Survey Within 15 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, Buyer, at Buyer's 
expense, may request a surveyor selected by Buyer to perform a survey of the Property. 
Buyer will have the right, at its sole discretion, to obtain (i) a boundary survey of the 
Property, together with field notes, or (ii) a category I A land title survey of the Property, 
together with field notes, and (iii) any other survey of the Property that Buyer chooses to 
obtain. Any survey obtained by Buyer will be certified to Buyer, Seller, Title Company 
and the Title Company's underwriter. 

4.3 Environmental Site Assessment. Buyer, at Buyer's expense, may order a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment to be performed during the Inspection Period. 

4.4 Objections to Title. Buyer will have 20 days after the receipt of the last of the Sellers' 
Records, the Survey, the Title Commitment, and legible copies of the title documents to 
review the same and make objections to the information shown by them. Sellers will 
have 20 days after the receipt of Buyer's objections in which to cure such objections. In 
the event Sellers are unwilling or unable to cure the objections prior to Closing, Buyer 
will have the right to (i) terminate this Contract prior to Closing and receive the Earnest 
Money, or (ii) waive the objections and close on the purchase of the Property. Sellers 
agree to cooperate with Buyer in the event Buyer endeavors to cure any title matters prior 
to Closing. Matters shown on Schedule B of the Title Commitment or Survey and not 
timely objected to by Buyer, or matters objected to and waived by Buyer, will constitute 
Permitted Exceptions. The foregoing notwithstanding, all liens, adverse claims affecting 
the Property, errors or discrepancies in the legal description of the Property, or its size or 
location, and matters shown on Schedule C of the Title Commitment will not be 
considered Permitted Exceptions, and Seller must resolve them to the reasonable 

Page 4 

69



satisfaction of Buyer and Title Company prior to Closing as a condition to Closing, 
without the need for Buyer to make written objections to them. 

4.5 Subsequent or Additional Information. If, at any time prior to Closing, revisions or 
updates are made to the Title Commitment or the Survey, or if Buyer is made aware of 
additional information relating to the condition of or title to the Property, including, but 
not limited to additions to the Seller's Records and changes to the use or condition of the 
Property, then Buyer will have an additional 20 days after receiving the revised Title 
Commitment, Survey, and/or additional information in which to make objections to 
matters disclosed in such documents or information which were not previously disclosed 
to Buyer. Seller will have 20 days after receipt of Buyer's objections in which to cure 
such objections. In the event that Seller is unwilling or unable to do so, Buyer will have 
the right to (i) terminate this Contract prior to Closing, and receive the Earnest Money, or 
(ii) waive the objections and close on the purchase of the Property. The Closing Date will 
be extended, if necessary, to accommodate the additional objection and cure periods. 

4.6 Environmental Matters. If the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment indicates the 
need for further investigation or indicates the presence of contamination, then Buyer will 
notify Seller of the conditions shown by the Environmental Site Assessment within 20 
days after Buyer's receipt of the report. Buyer will have the right, at Buyer's expense, to 
conduct a Phase I1 Environmental Site Assessment or additional testing of the Property or 
groundwater to determine the likelihood or degree of contamination. If environmental 
contamination is found, and the parties are unable to agree in writing prior to the Closing 
Date as to who will pay for the cleanup or remediation, and within what time period, then 
Buyer shall have the right to (i) terminate this Contract at any time prior to Closing, and 
receive the return of the Earnest Money, or (ii) agree to accept the Property in its present 
condition and close on the purchase of the Property. 

4.7 Ad Valorem Taxes and Assessments. Each Seller will be responsible for paying, prior 
to or at Closing, all assessments and ad valorem property taxes due and owing against the 
Property as of the date of Closing, including any and all delinquent taxes and 
assessments, penalties, interest, fees and other charges in connection therewith. At 
Closing, Sellers will pay all taxes against the Property for the year of Closing that are 
payable on the date of Closing. If taxes for the current year are not then payable, Title 
Company will require the tax assessor to determine taxes due against the Property to the 
date of Closing, in accordance with the provisions of Section 26.1 1 of the Texas Tax 
Code, and Sellers shall pay the amount of taxes so assessed at Closing. Unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties in writing, if the Property has been the subject of special 
valuation and reduced tax assessments pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 23, 
Subchapter D, or any other provisions of the Texas Tax Code with respect to any period 
before the Closing and additional taxes are assessed pursuant to Section 23.55 or other 
applicable section of the Texas Tax Code, the following will apply: 

(1) Seller will be responsible for paying any additional taxes, penalties or interest 
resulting from a change in ownership or use of the Property by Seller prior to 
Closing; and 

Page 5 

70



(2) If this sale or Buyer's use of the Property after Closing results in the assessment 
of additional taxes for periods before Closing, Buyer will pay the additional taxes 
as they relate to the Property. 

The provisions of this Section 4.7 shall survive Closing. 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS OF SELLER 

5.1 Seller hereby represents to Buyer that, to the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, the 
following are true and correct as of the Effective Date of this Contract and will be true 
and correct on the Closing Date: 

a. Seller is the sole owner of the Property and has the full right, power, and authority 
to enter into and perform its obligations under this Contract without the consent or 
joinder of any other person. 

b. There are no unrecorded leases or other rights to occupy or use the Property 
except for those disclosed by Seller to Buyer in writing. 

c. Seller has no actual knowledge of any potential, pending or threatened litigation, 
condemnation or other proceedings affecting the Property or any part thereof, or 
which could result in Buyer incurring expenses or losses in connection with the 
Property after the purchase of it. 

d. Seller has not received any notice that a governmental entity is contemplating 
condemnation of any portion of the Property. 

e. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, Seller (i) has paid all ad valorem 
taxes and assessments against the Property as they became due, (ii) is entitled to 
any exemption from property taxes or special use valuation which has been 
claimed by Seller in connection with the Property, and (iii) has complied with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules and restrictions relating to 
the Property, or the use of the Property, or any portion thereof. 

f. Seller has no knowledge that the Property contains any environmental hazards or 
contamination. 

g. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, there are no unpaid charges, debts, 
liabilities, claims or obligations arising from any construction, occupancy, 
ownership, use or operation of the Property, or the business operated thereon, if 
any, which could give rise to any mechanic's or materialmen's or other statutory 
liens against the Property, or any part thereof, or for which Buyer will be 
responsible. 

5.2 In the event Seller learns that any of the above statements are untrue or incorrect, or that 
they have become untrue or incorrect, Seller shall promptly notifj Buyer in writing. If 
the state or condition is not resolved to Buyer's reasonable satisfaction prior to Closing, 

Page 6 

71



Buyer will have the right to terminate this Contract prior to Closing, and obtain the return 
of the Earnest Money. In the event Buyer first learns after Closing that any of the above 
statements were untrue or incorrect as of the Date of Closing, Buyer shall have all rights 
and remedies available at law or equity. 

ARTICLE VI 
CONDITION OF PROPERTY 

6.1 Until Closing, Seller (a) will maintain the Property as it existed on the Effective Date of 
this Contract, except for reasonable wear and tear and casualty damage; (b) will operate 
the Property in the same manner as it was operated on the Effective Date of this Contract; 
including any use necessary to maintain any agricultural exemption on the Property; and 
(c) will not grant to any other person without the prior written consent of Buyer, any 
rights or interests in the Property, including easement rights, or rights to use the 
groundwater, or amend any existing agreement relating to the Property, including 
easements, oil and gas leases, or any other documents evidencing or creating an interest 
or right in the Property. Any conveyance or amendment in violation of this provision 
will be void and of no effect, and shall not be binding on Buyer. Seller will be in default 
under this Contract if Seller fails to comply with the provisions of this section. 

6.2 Seller will notify Buyer promptly after discovery of any casualty damage to the Property. 
Seller will have no obligation to repair or replace the Property if it is damaged by casualty 
before Closing. Buyer may terminate this Contract and receive the return of the Earnest 
Money, if the casualty damage that occurs before Closing would materially affect 
Buyer's intended use of the Property, by giving notice to Seller prior to Closing. 

6.3 Seller will notify Buyer promptly after Seller receives notice that any part of the Property 
has been or is threatened to be condemned or otherwise taken by a governmental or quasi- 
governmental authority. Buyer may terminate this Contract and receive the return of the 
Earnest Money if the condemnation would materially affect Buyer's intended use of  the 
Property by giving notice to Seller prior to Closing. If Buyer does not terminate this 
Contract, (a) Buyer and Seller will each have the right to appear and defend their 
respective interests in the Property in the condemnation proceedings, (b) any award in 
condemnation with regard to the Property will be assigned to Buyer, and (c) if the taking 
occurs before Closing, the description of the Property will be revised to delete the portion 
taken. 

6.4 Seller will noti@ Buyer promptly of any claim or administrative hearing that is 
threatened, filed, or initiated before Closing that affects the Property. 

6.5 Seller will cooperate with Buyer (a) before and after Closing, if requested by Buyer, to 
transfer the applications, permits, and licenses held by Seller and used in the operation of 
the Property and to obtain any consents necessary for Buyer to operate the Property after 
Closing; and (b) before Closing, with any reasonable evaluation, assessment, inspection, 
audit, or study of the Property prepared by, for, or at the request of Buyer, and making 
available to Buyer and Buyer's consultants, information known by Seller regarding the 
Property, and the name and contact information for a person (if any) known by Seller to 

Page 7 

72



be knowledgeable about the condition and use of the Property, if Seller has no such 
knowledge. 

6.6 Prohibited Uses. Without limiting the generality of any of the provisions of this 
Contract, before Closing, and after Closing, if Sellers have any interest in oil, gas or 
minerals in connection with the Land, Sellers will not enter into any oil and gas 
lease, surface use agreement or other agreement affecting the Property, or  any 
portion thereof, that allows (a) flooding of all or  any portion of the Property, (b) 
injection into or disposal of salt water onto all or  any portion of the Property, (c) use 
of groundwater or fresh subterranean water located under the Property or any 
portion thereof for any purpose, or  (d) drilling of groundwater well(s) or other 
surface use of the Property. Sellers are prohibited from engaging in the same 
activities. This provision will survive Closing, will run with the oil, gas and mineral 
estates, and will be binding on Sellers, their heirs, successors and assigns and 
persons with whom they or any of them contract for the use or production of 
minerals. This provision will be set forth in the Deed. 

ARTICLE VII 
CLOSING 

7.1 The Closing shall be held at the office of the Title Company, within thirty (30) calendar 
days after the expiration of the Inspection Period. The Closing will take place at a date 
and time agreed to by the parties, or, if none has been agreed upon, then at 2:00 p.m. on 
the 3oth day after the expiration of the Inspection Period (the "Closing Date"). The 
Closing Date is subject to extension as provided in Section 4.5 of this Contract. The City 
Attorney for Buyer is authorized to extend the time for Closing. 

7.2 Buyer will pay the cost for preparation of the Special Warranty Deed to be used at 
Closing, which is to be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B" 
modified, as necessary, to reflect the terms of this Contract. 

7.3 At the Closing, Seller shall: 

a. Deliver to Buyer the duly executed and acknowledged Special Warranty Deed 
conveying good and marketable title in and to the Property, ftee and clear of any 
and all liens, encumbrances, or title matters except for the Permitted Exceptions. 

b. Deliver possession of the Property to Buyer. 

c. Deliver any notice required by law to be given, and satisfactory evidence of 
Seller's authority to sell and convey the Property to Buyer in accordance with this 
Contract. 

d. Deliver to Buyer, as soon as practicable after Closing, a Title Policy issued by 
Title Company in Buyer's favor in the full amount of the Purchase Price, insuring 
Buyer's fee simple absolute title to the Property to be good and indefeasible, 
subject only to the Permitted Exceptions, without exception to any rights of 

Page 8 

73



parties in possession other than the rights of lessee under any grazing lease 
affecting the Property which constitutes a Permitted Exception. 

e. Execute and deliver an IRS Non-Foreign Person Affidavit, and any other 
documents reasonably required by the Title Company to issue a Title Policy 
meeting the requirements of this Contract, or required by Buyer to evidence or 
carry out the terms of this Contract. 

f. Pay any and all property taxes and assessments as provided in Section 4.7. 

g. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record releases of all liens affecting the 
Property. 

h. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents to cure title objections 
which Seller has agreed to cure, and the costs to record any curative documents 
obtained by Buyer. 

1. Pay for the certificates or reports of ad valorem taxes, and any other costs or 
expenses required to be paid by Seller at Closing under the terms of this Contract. 

j. Pay the Seller's expenses and attorney's fees. 

7.4 Upon such performance by Seller at Closing, Buyer shall: 

a. Pay the balance of the Purchase Price. 

b. Pay the escrow fee charged by Title Company. 

c. Pay the expenses required to be paid by Buyer under this Contract, including any 
title insurance, survey and Environmental Site Assessment costs. 

d. Pay for the brokerage fees of Buyer's Real Estate Broker. 

e. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents other than those to be 
obtained, delivered or recorded at Seller's expense. 

f. Pay the Buyer's expenses and attorney's fees. 

ARTICLE VIII 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

8.1 This sale is made in lieu of condemnation by the Buyer. 

8.2 Disposition of Earnest Money after Termination: 

a. To Buyer. If Buyer terminates this Contract in accordance with any of Buyer's 
rights to terminate, Seller will, within five days after receipt of Buyer's 
termination notice, authorize Title Company to deliver the Earnest Money to 

Page 9 

74



Buyer. If Buyer terminates this Contract under the provisions of Article 111, the 
Independent Consideration will be withheld from the Earnest Money and paid to 
Seller. 

b. To Seller. If Seller terminates this Contract in accordance with any of Seller's 
rights to terminate, Buyer will, within five days after receipt of Seller's 
termination notice, authorize Title Company to deliver the Earnest Money to 
Seller. 

8.3 If this Contract is terminated, Buyer, upon request of Seller, will promptly return to Seller 
all documents relating to the Property that Seller has delivered to Buyer. After return of 
the documents and copies, neither party will have further duties or obligations to the other 
under this Contract, except for those obligations that survive termination of the Contract. 

ARTICLE IX 
BREACH BY SELLER 

9.1 In the event Seller fails to fully and timely perform any of Seller's obligations under this 
Contract or fails to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason except Buyer's 
default, or the Buyer's exercise of a right to terminate this Contract, then, in addition to 
exercising any other rights available at law or equity, Buyer may: 

a. enforce specific performance of this Contract; or 

b. terminate this Contract, and obtain the Earnest Money. 

ARTICLE X 
BREACH BY BUYER 

10.1 In the event Buyer fails to consummate the purchase of the Property for any reason other 
than a default by Seller or the exercise of a right to terminate under this Contract, Seller 
shall have as its exclusive remedy the right to terminate this Contract and retain the 
Earnest Money. 

ARTICLE XI 
BROKERS 

1 1.1 Buyer is represented in this transaction by the following Real Estate Broker: 

John P. Schneider, Jr. 
SCHNEIDER & ASSOCIATES 
3703 Speedway 
Austin, Texas 78705 

11.2 Seller is represented in this transaction by the following Real Estate Broker: 

None. 

Page 10 

75



Buyer will be responsible for paying any commission owed to Buyer's Real Estate 
Broker. Seller will be responsible for paying any commission owed to Seller's Real 
Estate Broker. Any commission agreements between the parties and their respective 
Brokers are in separate agreements and are not a part of this Contract. 

11.3 Brokers' Commissions. Each party represents and warrants to the other that it has not 
used any real estate broker in connection with this Contract except those identified above 
and any appraiser hired by Buyer. Buyer, to the extent it is permitted to do so by 
applicable law, and Seller each indemnify and agree to defend and hold the other party 
harmless from any loss, attorney's fees, and court and other costs arising out of a claim by 
any person or entity claiming by, through, or under the indemnitor for a broker's or 
finder's fee or commission because of this transaction or this Contract, whether the 
claimant is disclosed to the indemnitee or not. At Closing, each party will provide the 
other party with a release of broker's or appraiser's liens from all brokers or appraisers for 
which each party was responsible. The following statutory notice is provided to Buyer on 
behalf of the real estate licensees, if any, involved in this transaction: Buyer is advised that 
it should either have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of 
Buyer's own selection or be furnished with or obtain a policy of title insurance. 

ARTICLE XI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Seller: 

Notices. Any notice required by or permitted under this Contract ("Notice") must be in 
writing, unless otherwise provided by this Contract. Any Notice required by this Contract 
will be deemed to be delivered (whether actually received or not) when deposited with 
the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
and addressed to the intended recipient at the address shown in this Contract. Notice may 
also be given by regular mail, personal delivery, courier delivery, or facsimile 
transmission, and will be effective when actually received. Notice may not be given by 
email. Copies of each Notice must be given by one of these methods to the attorney of the 
party to whom Notice is given, if the attorney is identified below or if the name and 
address of the attorney has been provided in writing to the party giving Notice. Any 
party or address for Notice may be changed by written notice delivered as provided 
herein. 

Willie E. Allen 
991 1 Sageorchard Lane 
Houston, Texas 77089-3630 
Phone: 
Fax: 

With Copy to: 

Page 11 

76



Buyer: City of College Station, Texas 
Legal Department 
1 1 0 1 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Brazos County, Texas, 77840 
Attn.: Carla A. Robinson, First Assistant City Attorney 
Phone: (979) 764-3507 
Fax: (979) 764-348 1 

With Copy to: 

Buyer's Attorney: 
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP 
8 16 Congress Ave., Suite 1700 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attn.: Denise CheneyISusan Maxwell 
Phone: (5 12) 472-802 1 
Fax: (512) 320-5638 

Buyer's Broker: 
John P. Schneider, Jr. 
Schneider & Associates 
3703 Speedway 
Austin, TX 78705 
Phone: (5 12) 477-5827 
Fax: (5 12) 477-5930 

2.2 Entire Agreement. This Contract, together with its exhibits, and any Closing 
Documents delivered at Closing constitute the entire agreement of the parties concerning 
the sale and use of the Property. There are no oral representations, warranties, 
agreements or promises between the parties pertaining to the sale and use of the Property 
that are not expressly set forth in those documents. All exhibits to this Contract are 
incorporated herein. 

12.3 Amendment. This Contract may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties. 

12.4 Assignment. Buyer may assign this Contract and Buyer's rights under it without the 
need for Seller's consent. This Contract binds, benefits and may be enforced by the 
parties and their respective heirs, successors and permitted assigns. 

12.5 Survival. The provisions of this Contract which expressly state that they survive 
termination or Closing, all representations and warranties, and all obligations and rights 
set out in this Contract that cannot be performed or exercised before termination of this 
Contract or before Closing, or which are performable or exercisable thereafter, will 
survive termination of this Contract or Closing, respectively, and the legal doctrine of 
merger will not apply to these matters. If there is any conflict between the Closing 
Documents executed at Closing and this Contract, the Closing Documents will control. 

Page 12 

77



12.6 Choice of Law; Venue; Alternative Dispute Resolution. This Contract will be 
construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to 
choice of law rules of any jurisdiction, and all obligations of the parties created by this 
Contract are to be performed in Brazos County, Texas. Venue is in the county in which 
all, or the majority, of the Real Property is located, and in the Federal Courts of the 
Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, except as otherwise provided by applicable 
law. 

12.7 Waiver of Default. It is not a waiver of default if the nondefaulting party fails to 
declare immediately a default or delays taking any action with respect to the default. 

12.8 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries of this Contract. 

12.9 Legal Construction. If any provision in this Contract is for any reason held invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, to the extent such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability does not destroy the basis of the bargain among the parties, the 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and 
this Contract will be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had 
never been a part of the Contract. Whenever context requires, the singular will include 
the plural and neuter will include the masculine or feminine gender, and vice versa. 
Article and Section headings in this Contract are for reference only and are not intended 
to restrict or define the text of any section. 

12.10 Ambiguities Not to Be Construed Against Party Who Drafted Contract. The rule of 
construction that ambiguities in a document will be construed against the party who 
drafted it will not be applied in interpreting this Contract. 

12.11 No Special Relationship. The parties' relationship is an ordinary commercial 
relationship, and the parties do not intend to create the relationship of principal and agent, 
partners, joint venturers, or any other special relationship. 

12.12 Counterparts. If this Contract is executed in multiple counterparts, all counterparts 
taken together will constitute this Contract. The parties agree that signatures transinitted 
by the parties by facsimile or electronic mail will have the same force and effect as 
original signatures. 

12.13 Confidentiality. The parties will keep confidential this Contract, this transaction, and all 
information learned in the course of this transaction, except to the extent disclosure is 
required by law or court order or to enable third parties to advise or assist Buyer to 
investigate the Property or either party to close this transaction. 

12.14 Binding Effect. This Contract and the terms, covenants, and conditions herein contained, 
binds, benefits, and may be enforced by the parties and their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. The persons 
executing this Contract do so in their capacities as set forth below and in no other 
capacity whatsoever, and such persons shall have no personal liability for executing this 

Page 13 

78



Contract in a representative capacity. All such liability is limited to the principal for 
which they execute this document as a representative. 

12.15 Attorney's Fees. If either party retains an attorney to enforce this Contract, the party 
prevailing in litigation is entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees as provided by 
Section 271.159 of the Texas Local Government Code, expenses and court and other 
costs from the non-prevailing party. 

12.16 Memorandum of Contract. Upon request of either party, both parties shall 
promptly execute a memorandum of this Contract in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
"C", suitable for filing of record in the real property records of the County or Counties in 
which the Property is located. 

12.17 Time. Time is of the essence. Unless otherwise specified, all references to "days" 
mean calendar days. Business days exclude Saturdays, sundays, and legal public 
holidays. If the date for performance of any obligation falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or ' 

legal public holiday, the date for performance will be the next following regular business 
day. Legal public holidays shall be deemed to include holidays on which the 
administrative offices of Buyer are closed for business. 

12.18 Further Assurances. Each party agrees to take such actions, or to execute such 
documents, as may be reasonably necessary to evidence or carry out the terms of this 
Contract. 

12.19 Effective Date. The Contract will be effective on the date on which this Contract has 
been duly executed by Seller and Buyer. 

12.20 THIS CONTRACT IS A LEGAL DOCUMENT. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT SELLER OBTAIN AN 
ATTORNEY TO ADVISE SELLER M CONNECTION WITH THIS CONTRACT. 

EXECUTED on the dates set forth below to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

List of Exhibits: 

Exhibit "A" - Legal Description of the Property 
Exhibit "B" - Special Warranty Deed Form 
Exhibit "C" - Form for Memorandum of Contract 

Seller: Buyer: 

?& CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

Willie E. Allen BY: 
Mayor 

Page 14 

79



Date: !ImLt5+ .a , 

Date: 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 9 
3 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS § 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 
Date: 

APPROVED: 

'City Manager 
Date: 

Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 

City Attorney 
Date: 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007 
by , as Mayor of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a Texas home rule 
municipal corporation, on behalf of said municipality. 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

Page 15 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 
(Fee Purchase) 

This Real Estate contract ("Contract") is made by and HENRY L. ALLEN, JOINED 
HEREIN BY HIS SPOUSE, IF MARRIED ("Seller", whether one or more), and the CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipal corporation, situated in Brazos 
County, Texas ("Buyer"), upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. The promises by Buyer 
and Seller stated in this Contract are the consideration for the formation of this Contract. 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

1.1 Seller is the sole owner of fee simple title to the following real property: 

(i) approximately. 101.535 acres of~land, more or less, in Robertson County, 
Texas, out of Abstract 95, Tr 1'4, W Cooley, being the same property 
conveyed by instrument recorded in Volume 657, Page 770 of the Real 
Property Records of Robertson County, Texas; and 

(ii) approximately 70.60 acres of land, more or less, out of Abstract 95, Tr 16, 
W Cooley, being the same property conveyed by instrument recorded in 
Volume 657, Page 770 of the Real Property Records of Robertson County, 
Texas, 

LESS, SAVE AND EXCEPT all oil, gas and other minerals in, on and under the Land, 
previously retained by a prior owner or owners, provided, however, that this reservation does 
not include the right to use the surface of the Property to access, explore for, drill for, 
excavate, or produce oil, gas or other minerals, or to use any groundwater from the Property 
in connection with the oil, gas or mineral estates, 

collectively, the "Land", which is more filly described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

1.2 For the consideration, and subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Contract, 
Seller agrees to sell and convey to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase and pay for fee 
simple title to the Land, together with all rights and appurtenances pertaining thereto, 
including: 

a. all groundwater now or hereafter located in and under the Land, 

b. all right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent roads, streets, alleys or 
rights-of-way, 

c. all easements appurtenant to the Land; r 

/. 

d. all development rights related to the Land; 

Page 1 

92



e. all improvements located on the Land, including all water wells. 

1.3 The property interests and rights described in Section 1.1 are referred to collectively as 
"Property." 

1.4 If a new survey is provided under the terms of this Contract, the legal description in 
Exhibit "A" will automatically be replaced by the legal description provided by the 
Survey, once it is approved by Seller and Buyer. 

1.5 This Contract is subject to approval by the City Council of the City of College Station, 
Texas; such approval indicated by signature of Buyer's representatives to this Contract. 

ARTICLE I1 
PURCHASE PRICE AND EARNEST MONEY 

Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Property will be the sum of FOUR 
HUNDRED THIRTY THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED THIRTY-SEVEN AND 
501100 DOLLARS ($430,337.50) payable in cash at Closing ("Purchase Price"). The 
Purchase Price is based on $2,500 per acre x 172.135 acres of Land. 

The Purchase Price is subject to adjustment at Closing in the event that any of the acreage 
amounts of the Land, as determined by the Survey, differ fiom those shown in Section 
1.1. 

2.1 Earnest Money. Within 20 days after this Contract is fully signed, Buyer will pay the 
sum of $6455.00 ("Earnest Money") to Brazos County Abstract Company, Kathy Vicini, 
Closer, 3800 Cross Park Drive, Bryan, TX 77802 (979) 731-1900 ("Title Company") to 
be held by Title Company in escrow in accordance with the terms of this Contract. Title 
Company will deposit the Earnest Money in an interest-bearing account at a financial 
institution whose accounts are federally insured, and will hold and distribute such Earnest 
Money in accordance with the terms of this Contract. All interest accrued on the Earnest 
Money will become part of the Earnest Money. In the event Buyer terminates this 
Contract during the Inspection Period (as defined in Article 111), Title Company will 
promptly return the Earnest Money to Buyer. If Buyer completes the purchase of the 
Property, the Earnest Money will be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing. 

2.2 Independent Consideration. The sum of $100.00 out of the Earnest Money will 
constitute independent consideration ("Independent Consideration") for Buyer's right to 
terminate this Contract as described in Article 111. If Buyer terminates this Contract 
during the Inspection Period as provided in Article 111, Title Company will pay the 
Independent Consideration to Seller. In all other instances, the Independent 
Consideration will constitute a portion of the Earnest Money, and will be held and paid 
out by Title Company as "Earnest Money" under the terms of this Contract. 

ARTICLE I11 

Page 2 

93



INSPECTION PERIOD 

3.1 Inspection Period. The Buyer shall have an Inspection Period in which to determine 
whether the Property is suitable for Buyer. The Inspection Period shall begin on the 
Effective Date of this Contract, and shall terminate 90 days thereafter. Buyer, at its 
option, may extend the Inspection Period by an additional 30 days by giving Seller 
written notice of the extension before the expiration of the initial 90-day period. In 
addition to the foregoing, in the event that Seller fails to provide the Seller's Records, 
Title Commitment, UCC Search or other information or documentation required to be 
provided by Seller within the time periods required by this Contract, the Inspection 
Period shall be extended by one day for each day any such information is provided after 
its due date, not to exceed 60 days. 

3.2 Seller's Records. Within 20 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, the Seller will 
provide Buyer with copies of the following documents relating to the Property: 

a. Any existing surveys of the Property; 

b. Any drilling logs, permits, or other records regarding Seller's wells located on the 
Property, if requested by the Buyer; 

c. Any notices or other communications received by Seller from any taxing authority 
or government agency regarding a violation of law applicable to the Property or 
its use; 

d. Any notice of threatened condemnation, or intent to condemn all or any portion of 
the Property; 

e. Any litigation proceedings involving the Property; 

f. Any unrecorded leases or other documents granting the right to possession or use 
of the Property; and 

g. Any other records relating to the use or condition of the Property, including any 
legal claims. 

If Seller receives any additional information or records regarding the Property during the 
term of this Contract, Seller will provide copies of such information to Buyer no later 
than 10 days after Seller receives it. 

3.3 Entry onto the Property. Buyer may enter the Property during the Inspection Period and 
at any time before Closing to inspect the Property, and may conduct any and all 
investigations that Buyer deems necessary, including surveys, environmental site 
assessments, appraisals, and investigations to determine the condition of the Property and 
to estimate the quality, quantity and sustainability of the groundwater, including the 
drilling of test holes or wells, and the taking of water samples. Buyer's right to inspect 
will be subject to the following: 

Page 3 

94



a. Buyer will endeavor to give Seller advance notice by telephone, in person or in 
writing of Buyer's plans to inspect or conduct tests on the Property. 

b. If the Property is damaged because of Buyer's inspections, Buyer will return the 
Property as closely as possible to its preinspection condition promptly after the 
completion of its inspections. Any test holes drilled by Buyer will be promptly 
plugged in accordance with the requirements of applicable law. 

c. Buyer, at the request of Seller, will deliver to Seller copies of all inspection and 
other reports that Buyer prepares or receives from third-party consultants or 
contractors regarding the Property. 

3.4 Buyer's Right to Terminate. Buyer may terminate this Contract for any reason by 
notifying Seller before the end of the Inspection Period. 

ARTICLE IV 
TITLE MATTERS AND OBJECTIONS 

4.1 Title Commitment. Within 15 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, Buyer, at 
Buyer's expense, will request Title Company to furnish: 

a. a Commitment for an Owner's Policy of Title Insurance (the "Title 
Commitment") to insure Buyer's title to the Property at the time Buyer purchases 
the Property; and 

b. legible copies of all instruments referred to in the Title Commitment. 

4.2 Survey Within 15 days after the Effective Date of this Contract, Buyer, at Buyer's 
expense, may request a surveyor selected by Buyer to perform a survey of the Property. 
Buye? will have the right, at its sole discretion, to obtain (i) a boundary survey of the 
Property, together with field notes, or (ii) a category I A land title survey of the Property, 
together with field notes, and (iii) any other survey of the Property that Buyer chooses to 
obtain. Any survey obtained by Buyer will be certified to Buyer, Seller, Title Company 
and the Title Company's underwriter. 

4.3 Environmental Site Assessment. Buyer, at Buyer's expense, may order a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment to be performed during the Inspection Period. 

4.4 Objections to Title. Buyer will have 20 days after the receipt of the last of the Sellers' 
Records, the Survey, the Title Commitment, and legible copies of the title documents to 
review the same and make objections to the information shown by them. Sellers will 
have 20 days after the receipt of Buyer's objections in which to cure such objections. In 
the event Sellers are unwilling or unable to cure the objections prior to Closing, Buyer 
will have the right to (i) terminate this Contract prior to Closing and receive the Earnest 
Money, or (ii) waive the objections and close on the purchase of the Property. Sellers 
agree to cooperate with Buyer in the event Buyer endeavors to cure any title matters prior 
to Closing. Matters shown on Schedule B of the Title Commitment or Survey and not 
timely objected to by Buyer, or matters objected to and waived by Buyer, will constitute 

Page 4 

95



Permitted Exceptions. The foregoing notwithstanding, all liens, adverse claims affecting 
the Property, errors or discrepancies in the legal description of the Property, or its size or 
location, and matters shown on Schedule C of the Title Commitment will not be 
considered Permitted Exceptions, and Seller must resolve them to the reasonable 
satisfaction of Buyer and Title Company prior to Closing as a condition to Closing, 
without the need for Buyer to make written objections to them. 

4.5 Subsequent or Additional Information. If, at any time prior to Closing, revisions or 
updates are made to the Title Commitment or the Survey, or if Buyer is made aware of 
additional information relating to the condition of or title to the Property, including, but 
not limited to additions to the Seller's Records and changes to the use or condition of the 
Property, then Buyer will have an additional 20 days after receiving the revised Title 
Commitment, Survey, and/or additional information in which to make objections to 
matters disclosed in such documents or information which were not previously disclosed 
to Buyer. Seller will have 20 days after receipt of Buyer's objections in which to cure 
such objections. In the event that Seller is unwilling or unable to do so, Buyer will have 
the right to (i) terminate this Contract prior to Closing, and receive the Earnest Money, or 
(ii) waive the objections and close on the purchase of the Property. The Closing Date will 
be extended, if necessary, to accommodate the additional objection and cure periods. 

4.6 Environmental Matters. If the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment indicates the 
need for further investigation or indicates the presence of contamination, then Buyer will 
notifL Seller of the conditions shown by the Environmental Site Assessment within 20 
days after Buyer's receipt of the report. Buyer will have the right, at Buyer's expense, to 
conduct a Phase I1 Environmental Site Assessment or additional testing of the Property or 
groundwater to determine the likelihood or degree of contamination. If environmental 
contamination is found, and the parties are unable to agree in writing prior to the Closing 
Date as to who will pay for the cleanup or remediation, and within what time period, then 
Buyer shall have the right to (i) terminate this Contract at any time prior to Closing, and 
receive the return of the Earnest Money, or (ii) agree to accept the Property in its present 
condition and close on the purchase of the Property. 

Ad Valorem Taxes and Assessments. Each Seller will be responsible for paying, prior 
to or at Closing, all assessments and ad valorem property taxes due and owing against the 
Property as of the date of Closing, including any and all delinquent taxes and 
assessments, penalties, interest, fees and other charges in connection therewith. At 
Closing, Sellers will pay all taxes against the Property for the year of Closing that are 
payable on the date of Closing. If taxes for the current year are not then payable, Title 
Company will require the tax assessor to determine taxes due against the Property to the 
date of Closing, in accordance with the provisions of Section 26.1 1 of the Texas Tax 
Code, and Sellers shall pay the amount of taxes so assessed at Closing. Unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties in writing, if the Property has been the subject of special 
valuation and reduced tax assessments pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 23, 
Subchapter D, or any other provisions of the Texas Tax Code with respect to any period 
before the Closing and additional taxes are assessed pursuant to Section 23.55 or other 
applicable section of the Texas Tax Code, the following will apply: 

Page 5 

96



(1) Seller will be responsible for paying any additional taxes, penalties or interest 
resulting from a change in ownership or use of the Property by Seller prior to 
Closing; and 

(2) If this sale or Buyer's use of the Property after Closing results in the assessment 
of additional taxes for periods before Closing, Buyer will pay the additional taxes 
as they relate to the Property. 

The provisions of this Section 4.7 shall survive Closing. 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS OF SELLER 

5.1 Seller hereby represents to Buyer that, to the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, the 
following are true and correct as of the Effective Date of this Contract and will be true 
and correct on the Closing Date: 

a. Seller is the sole owner of the Property and has the full right, power, and authority 
to enter into and perform its obligations under this Contract without the consent or 
joinder of any other person. 

b. There are no unrecorded leases or other rights to occupy or use the Property 
except for those disclosed by Seller to Buyer in writing. 

c. Seller has no actual knowledge of any potential, pending or threatened litigation, 
condemnation or other proceedings affecting the Property or any part thereof, or 
which could result in Buyer incurring expenses or losses in connection with the 
Property after the purchase of it. 

d. Seller has not received any notice that a governmental entity is contemplating 
condemnation of any portion of the Property. 

e. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, Seller (i) has paid all ad valorem 
taxes and assessments against the Property as they became due, (ii) is entitled to 
any exemption from property taxes or special use valuation which has been 
claimed by Seller in connection with the Property, and (iii) has complied with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules and restrictions relating to 
the Property, or the use of the Property, or any portion thereof. 

f. Seller has no knowledge that the Property contains any environmental hazards or 
contamination. 

g. To the best of Seller's knowledge and belief, there are no unpaid charges, debts, 
liabilities, claims or obligations arising from any construction, occupancy, 
ownership, use or operation of the Property, or the business operated thereon, if 
any, which could give rise to any mechanic's or materialmen's or other statutory 
liens against the Property, or any part thereof, or for which Buyer will be 
responsible. 

Page 6 

97



5.2 In the event Seller learns that any of the above statements are untrue or incorrect, or that 
they have become untrue or incorrect, Seller shall promptly notify Buyer in writing. If 
the state or condition is not resolved to Buyer's reasonable satisfaction prior to Closing, 
Buyer will have the right to terminate this Contract prior to Closing, and obtain the return 
of the Earnest Money. In the event Buyer first learns after Closing that any of the .above 
statements were untrue or incorrect as of the Date of Closing, Buyer shall have all rights 
and remedies available at law or equity. 

ARTICLE VI 
CONDITION OF PROPERTY 

6.1 Until Closing, Seller (a) will maintain the Property as it existed on the Effective Date of 
this Contract, except for reasonable wear and tear and casualty damage; (b) will operate 
the Property in the same manner as it was operated on the Effective Date of this Contract; 
including any use necessary to maintain any agricultural exemption on the Property; and 
(c) will not grant to any other person without the prior written consent of Buyer, any 
rights or interests in the Property, including easement rights, or rights to use the 
groundwater, or amend any existing agreement relating to the Property, including 
easements, oil and gas leases, or any other documents evidencing or creating an interest 
or right in the Property. Any conveyance or amendment in violation of this provision 
will be void and of no effect, and shall not be binding on Buyer. Seller will be in default 
under this Contract if Seller fails to comply with the provisions of this section. 

6.2 Seller will notify Buyer promptly after discovery of any casualty damage to the Property. 
Seller will have no obligation to repair or replace the Property if it is damaged by casualty 
before Closing. Buyer may terminate this Contract and receive the return of the Earnest 
Money, if the casualty damage that occurs before Closing would materially affect 
Buyer's intended use of the Property, by giving notice to Seller prior to Closing. 

6.3 Seller will notify Buyer promptly after Seller receives notice that any part of the Property 
has been or is threatened to be condemned or otherwise taken by a governmental or quasi- 
governmental authority. Buyer may terminate this Contract and receive the return of the 
Earnest Money if the condemnation would materially affect Buyer's intended use of the 
Property by giving notice to Seller prior to Closing. If Buyer does not terminate this 
Contract, (a) Buyer and Seller will each have the right to appear and defend their 
respective interests in the Property in the condemnation proceedings, (b) any award in 
condemnation with regard to the Property will be assigned to Buyer, and (c) if the taking 
occurs before Closing, the description of the Property will be revised to delete the portion 
taken. 

6.4 Seller will notify Buyer promptly of any claim or administrative hearing that is 
threatened, filed, or initiated before Closing that affects the Property. 

6.5 Seller will cooperate with Buyer (a) before and after Closing, if requested by Buyer, to 
transfer the applications, permits, and licenses held by Seller and used in the operation of 
the Property and to obtain any consents necessary for Buyer to operate the Property after 
Closing; and (b) before Closing, with any reasonable evaluation, assessment, inspection, 

Page 7 

98



audit, or study of the Property prepared by, for, or at the request of Buyer, and making 
available to Buyer and Buyer's consultants, information known by Seller regarding the 
Property, and the name and contact information for a person (if any) known by Seller to 
be knowledgeable about the condition and use of the Property, if Seller has no such 
knowledge. 

6.6 Prohibited Uses. Without limiting the generality of any of the provisions of this 
Contract, before Closing, and after Closing, if Sellers have any interest in oil, gas or 
minerals in connection with the Land, Sellers will not enter into any oil and gas 
lease, surface use agreement or other agreement affecting the Property, or any 
portion thereof, that allows (a) flooding of all or  any portion of the Property, (b) 
injection into or disposal of salt water onto all or  any portion of the Property, (c) use 
of groundwater or fresh subterranean water located under the Property or any 
portion thereof for any purpose, or  (d) drilling of groundwater well(s) or  other 
surface use of the Property. Sellers are prohibited from engaging in the same 
activities. This provision will survive Closing, will run with the oil, gas and mineral 
estates, and will be binding on Sellers, their heirs, successors and assigns and 
persons with whom they or any of them contract for the use or production of 
minerals. This provision will be set forth in the Deed. 

ARTICLE VII 
CLOSING 

7.1 The Closing shall be held at the office of the Title Company, within thirty (30) calendar 
days after the expiration of the Inspection Period. The Closing will take place at a date 
and time agreed to by the parties, or, if none has been agreed upon, then at 2:00 p.m. on 
the 30th day after the expiration of the Inspection Period (the "Closing Date"). The 
Closing Date is subject to extension as provided in Section 4.5 of this Contract. The City 
Attorney for Buyer is authorized to extend the time for Closing. 

7.2 Buyer will pay the cost for preparation of the Special Warranty Deed to be used at 
Closing, which is to be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B" 
modified, as necessary, to reflect the terms of this Contract. 

7.3 At the Closing, Seller shall: 

a. Deliver to Buyer the duly executed and acknowledged Special Warranty Deed 
conveying good and marketable title in and to the Property, free and clear of any 
and all liens, encumbrances, or title matters except for the Permitted Exceptions. 

b. Deliver possession of the Property to Buyer. 

c. Deliver any notice required by law to be given, and satisfactory evidence of 
Seller's authority to sell and convey the Property to Buyer in accordance with this 
Contract. 

Page 8 

99



d. Deliver to Buyer, as soon as practicable after Closing, a Title Policy issued by 
Title Company in Buyer's favor in the full amount of the Purchase Price, insuring 
Buyer's fee simple absolute title to the Property to be good and indefeasible, 
subject only to the Permitted Exceptions, without exception to any rights of 
parties in possession other than the rights of lessee under any grazing lease 
affecting the Property which constitutes a Permitted Exception. 

e. Execute and deliver an IRS Non-Foreign Person Affidavit, and any other 
documents reasonably required by the Title Company to issue a Title Policy 
meeting. the requirements of this Contract, or required by Buyer to evidence or 
carry out the terms of this Contract. 

f. Pay any and all property taxes and assessments as provided in Section 4.7. 

g. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record releases of all liens affecting the 
Property. 

h. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents to cure title objections 
which Seller has agreed to cure, and the costs to record any curative documents 
obtained by Buyer. 

1. Pay for the certificates or reports of ad valorem taxes, and any other costs or 
expenses required to be paid by Seller at Closing under the terms of this Contract. 

j. Pay the Seller's expenses and attorney's fees. 

7.4 Upon such performance by Seller at Closing, Buyer shall: 

a. Pay the balance of the Purchase Price. 

b. Pay the escrow fee charged by Title Company. 

c. Pay the expenses required to be paid by Buyer under this Contract, including any 
title insurance, survey and Environmental Site Assessment costs. 

d. Pay for the brokerage fees of Buyer's Real Estate Broker. 

e. Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents other than those to be 
obtained, delivered or recorded at Seller's expense. 

f. Pay the Buyer's expenses and attorney's fees. 

ARTICLE VIII 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

8.1 This sale is made in lieu of condemnation by the Buyer. 

8.2 Disposition of Earnest Money after Termination: 

Page 9 

100



a. To Buyer. If Buyer terminates this Contract in accordance with any of Buyer's 
rights to terminate, Seller will, within five days after receipt of Buyer's 
termination notice, authorize Title Company to deliver the Earnest Money to 
Buyer. If Buyer terminates this Contract under the provisions of Article 111, the 
Independent Consideration will be withheld from the Earnest Money and paid to 
Seller. 

b. To Seller. If Seller terminates this Contract in accordance with any of Seller's 
rights to terminate, Buyer will, within five days after receipt of Seller's 
termination notice, authorize Title Company to deliver the Earnest Money to 
Seller. 

8.3 If this Contract is terminated, Buyer, upon request of Seller, will promptly return to Seller 
all documents relating to the Property that Seller has delivered to Buyer. After return of 
the documents and copies, neither party will have further duties or obligations to the other 
under this Contract, except for those obligations that survive termination of the Contract. 

ARTICLE IX 
BREACH BY SELLER 

9.1 In the event Seller fails to fully and timely perform any of Seller's obligations under this 
Contract or fails to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason except Buyer's 
default, or the Buyer's exercise of a right to terminate this Contract, then, in addition to 
exercising any other rights available at law or equity, Buyer may: 

a. enforce specific performance of this Contract; or 

b. terminate this Contract, and obtain the Earnest Money. 

ARTICLE X 
BREACH BY BUYER 

10.1 In the event Buyer fails to consummate the purchase of the Property for any reason other 
than a default by Seller or the exercise of a right to terminate under this Contract, Seller 
shall have as its exclusive remedy the right to terminate this Contract and retain the 
Earnest Money. 

ARTICLE XI 
BROKERS 

1 1.1 Buyer is represented in this transaction by the following Real Estate Broker: 

John P. Schneider, Jr. 
SCHNEIDER & ASSOCIATES 
3703 Speedway 
Austin, Texas 78705 

Page 10 

101



11.2 Seller is represented in this transaction by the following Real Estate Broker: 

None. 

Buyer will be responsible for paying any commission owed to Buyer's Real Estate 
Broker. Seller will be responsible for paying any commission owed to Seller's Real 
Estate Broker. Any commission agreements between the parties and their respective 
Brokers are in separate agreements and are not a part of this Contract. 

11.3 Brokers' Commissions. Each party represents and warrants to the other that it has not 
used any real estate broker in connection with this Contract except those identified above 
and any appraiser hired by Buyer. Buyer, to the extent it is permitted to do so by 
applicable law, and Seller each indemnify and agree to defend and hold the other party 
harmless from any loss, attorney's fees, and court and other costs arising out of a claim by 
any person or entity claiming by, through, or under the indemnitor for a broker's or 
finder's fee or commission because of this transaction or this Contract, whether the 
claimant is disclosed to the indemnitee or not. At Closing, each party will provide the 
other party with a release of broker's or appraiser's liens from all brokers or appraisers for 
which each party was responsible. The following statutory notice is provided to Buyer on 
behalf of the real estate licensees, if any, involved in this transaction: Buyer is advised that 
it should either have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of 
Buyer's own selection or be furnished with or obtain a policy of title insurance. 

ARTICLE XI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Notices. Any notice required by or permitted under this Contract ("Notice") must be in 
writing, unless otherwise provided by this Contract. Any Notice required by this Contract 
will be deemed to be delivered (whether actually received or not) when deposited with 
the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
and addressed to the intended recipient at the address shown in this Contract. Notice may 
also be given by regular mail, personal delivery, courier delivery, or facsimile 
transmission, and will be effective when actually received. Notice may not be given by 
email. Copies of each Notice must be given by one of these methods to the attorney of the 
party to whom Notice is given, if the attorney is identified below or if the name and 
address of the attorney has been provided in writing to the party giving Notice. Any 
party or address for Notice may be changed by written notice delivered as provided 
herein. 

Seller: 
Henry L. Allen 
3 102 Cherryhill Drive 
Missouri City, Texas 77459-341 4 

Phone: 
Fax: 

Page 11 

102



With Copy to: 

Buyer: City of College Station, Texas 
Legal Department 
1 10 1 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Brazos County, Texas, 77840 
Attn.: Carla A. Robinson, First Assistant City Attorney 
Phone: (979) 764-3507 
Fax: (979) 764-348 1 

With Copy to: 

Buyer's Attorney: 
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP 
81 6 Congress Ave., Suite 1700 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attn.: Denise CheneyISusan Maxwell 
Phone: (5 12) 472-802 1 
Fax: (512) 320-5638 

Buyer's Broker: 
John P. Schneider, Jr. 
Schneider & Associates 
3703 Speedway 
Austin, TX 78705 
Phone: (5 12) 477-5827 
Fax: (5  12) 477-5930 

12.2 Entire Agreement. This Contract, together with its exhibits, and any Closing 
Documents delivered at Closing constitute the entire agreement of the parties concerning 
the sale and use of the Property. There are no oral representations, warranties, 
agreements or promises between the parties pertaining to the sale and use of the Property 
that are not expressly set forth in those documents. All exhibits to this Contract are 
incorporated herein. 

12.3 Amendment. This Contract may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties. 

12.4 Assignment. Buyer may assign this Contract and Buyer's rights under it without the 
need for Seller's consent. This Contract binds, benefits and may be enforced by the 
parties and their respective heirs, successors and permitted assigns. 

12.5 Survival. The provisions of this Contract which expressly state that they survive 
termination or Closing, all representations and warranties, and all obligations and rights 

Page 12 

103



set out in this Contract that cannot be performed or exercised before termination of this 
Contract or before Closing, or which are performable or exercisable thereafter, will 
survive termination of this Contract or Closing, respectively, and the legal doctrine of 
merger will not apply to these matters. If there is any conflict between the Closing 
Documents executed at Closing and this Contract, the Closing Documents will control. 

12.6 Choice of Law; Venue; Alternative Dispute Resolution. This Contract will be 
construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to 
choice of law rules of any jurisdiction, and all obligations of the parties created by this 
Contract are to be performed in Brazos County, Texas. Venue is in the county in which 
all, or the majority, of the Real Property is located, and in the Federal Courts of the 
Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, except as otherwise provided by applicable 
law. 

12.7 Waiver of Default. It is not a waiver of default if the nondefaulting party fails to 
declare immediately a default or delays taking any action with respect to the default. 

12.8 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries of this Contract. 

12.9 Legal Construction. If any provision in this Contract is for any reason held invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, to the extent such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability does not destroy the basis of the bargain among the parties, the 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and 
this Contract will be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had 
never been a part of the Contract. Whenever context requires, the singular will include 
the plural and neuter will include the masculine or feminine gender, and vice versa. 
Article and Section headings in this Contract are for reference only and are not intended 
to restrict or define the text of any section. 

12.10 Ambiguities Not to Be Construed Against Party Who Drafted Contract. The rule of 
construction that ambiguities in a document will be construed against the party who 
drafted it will not be applied in interpreting this Contract. 

12.11 No Special Relationship. The parties' relationship is an ordinary commercial 
relationship, and the parties do not intend to create the relationship of principal and agent, 
partners, joint venturers, or any other special relationship. 

12.12 Counterparts. If this Contract is executed in multiple counterparts, all counterparts 
taken together will constitute this Contract. The parties agree that signatures transmitted 
by the parties by facsimile or electronic mail will have the same force and effect as 
original signatures. 

12.13 Confidentiality. The parties will keep confidential this Contract, this transaction, and all 
information learned in the course of this transaction, except to the extent disclosure is 
required by law or court order or to enable third parties to advise or assist Buyer to 
investigate the Property or either party to close this transaction. 

Page 13 

104



12.14 Binding Effect. This Contract and the terms, covenants, and conditions herein contained, 
binds, benefits, and may be enforced by the parties and their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. The persons 
executing this Contract do so in their capacities as set forth below and in no other 
capacity whatsoever, and such persons shall have no personal liability for executing this 
Contract in a representative capacity. All such liability is limited to the principal for 
which they execute this document as a representative. 

12.15 Attorney's Fees. If either party retains an attorney to enforce this Contract, the party 
prevailing in litigation is entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees as provided by 
Section 271 .I59 of the Texas Local Government Code, expenses and court and other 
costs from the non-prevailing party. 

12.16 Memorandum of Contract. Upon request of either party, both parties shall promptly 
execute a memorandum of this Contract in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "C", 
suitable for filing of record in the real property records of the County or Counties in 
which the Property is located. 

12.17 Time. Time is of the essence. Unless otherwise specified, all references to "days" mean 
calendar days. Business days exclude Saturdays, Sundays, and legal public holidays. If 
the date for performance of any obligation falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal public 
holiday, the date for performance will be the next following regular business day. Legal 
public holidays shall be deemed to include holidays on which the administrative offices 
of Buyer are closed for business. 

12.18 Further Assurances. Each party agrees to take such actions, or to execute such 
documents, as may be reasonably necessary to evidence or carry out the terms of this 
Contract. 

12.19 Effective Date. The Contract will be effective on the date on which this Contract has 
been duly executed by Seller and Buyer. 

12.20 THIS CONTRACT IS A LEGAL DOCUMENT. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT SELLER OBTAIN AN 
ATTORNEY TO ADVISE SELLER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS CONTRACT. 

EXECUTED on the dates set forth below to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

List of Exhibits: 

Exhibit "A" - Legal Description of the Property 
Exhibit "B" - Special Warranty Deed Form 
Exhibit "C" - Form for Memorandum of Contract 

Seller: Buyer: 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

Page 14 

105



Henry L. All Mayor 

Date: 0 5) a 0 0 7 Date: 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 
Date: 

APPROVED: 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
§ 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 

City Manager 
Date: 

Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 

Date: 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Page 15 

106



This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007 
by , as Mayor of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a Texas home rule 
municipal corporation, on behalf of said municipality. 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 3 
8 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF rocbP&u\d 3 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 5% day of , 2007 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 4 
8 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF 9 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007 
by 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

Page 16 

107



TITLE COMPANY'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

Title Company acknowledges receipt of Earnest Money in the amount of $ on the 
day of ,2007 and a copy of this Contract executed by both Buyer and Seller. 

Title Company hereby agrees to hold the Earnest Money as directed in this Contract, and to 
distribute the Earnest Money in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Contract. 

Brazos County Abstract Company 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

Page 17 

108



109



uu u r  LO-ua r y .  t 

mACT I: 

In Re: 172.135 Acres 
Wright Coley Survey, A-95 
Robertson County, Texas 

A l l  t h a t  certain tract or parcel of land situated in ~ o b e r t s o n  
County, Texas, being a part of the Wright Coley survey, Abstract 
No. 95 and being a l l  of a so called 7 0 . 6  acre tract as conveyed 
from Robert Dorsey, st ux to Ivan Langford by Deed dated November 
2 7 ,  2936 and being recorded i n  Volume 113, Page 037 of the Deed 
Records of said Robertson County and be ing  e part of a so called 
104.3 acre tract as conveyed from 5 .  G. Lightsey-, et ux to Ivan 
Langford by D e e d  dated September 12, 1945 and being recorded in 
Volume 138, Page 069 of s a i d  Deed Records and being more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as fo.llows, t o  wit: 

. ./ 
BEGXWNING at an iron p i n  set at a fence c o r n e r a s t  on an 
occupied common line as fenced between said Coley' Survey and a 
John Smith Survey, Abstract No. 334, same being the East l i n e  of 
a Forbin  Investments N. V .  IITxact 311 833.04  acres (1009/345) 
for the Southwest corner of a Virginia L. Capps 336 acre t r a c t  
(624/764), same being t h e  Northwest corner  of said original 104.3 
acre t r ac t  and for the Northwest corner  of this t ract ;  

THENCE N 6 0 ° 0 0 f O 0 1 1 E  (Deed Bearing) - 3191.63 feet with an occupied 
com,on line as fenced and its prolongation between s a i d  original 
104.3 acre t r a c t  and said Capps 336  acre t r a c t  to a point i n  a 
common line between the center o f  L i t t l e  Brazos River and s a i d  
70 .6  acre tract f o r  the Southeast corner of said 336 acre tract, 
same being the Northeast corner of said original 104.3  acre tract 
and fo r  an interfor e l l  corner of this tract (a raference i r o n  
pin set bears S60°001001tW - 50.00 feet); 

~ 2 9 ~ 5 0 ~ 5 3 ~ W  - 2 6 . 9 7  with the center of said Little Brazos  
River, same being a common line between said original 70.6 acre 
tract and s a i d  Capps 336 acre t ract  to a point  f o r  the Southwest 
corner of a Sanford Johnson " F i r s t  TractM - 9 acres (234/078), 
same being the Northwest corner of said original 70.6 acre tract 
and f o r  an exterior ell corner of t h i s  tract (a reference irog 
set at s fence corner post bears N 7 O o 2 1 * 5 l f l E  - 41 .00  feet); 

THENCE w i t h  a common line between said original 70.6 acre tract 
and said Johnson 9 acre tract and a Sanford Johnson, et ux 25 
acre tract (234/065), respectively as follows: 

N7Oo21'51"E - 381.99 feet  with an occupied fence line 
prolongation to a fence corner post for  an i n t e r i o r  ell 
corner  of t h i s  t ract;  ., 

N68Q59'34"E - 1537.60 feet with an occup~ed  fence line t o  a 
fence corner post for the Northeast corner of this 
tract ; 

N89°11'38'1E - 253.87 feet w i t h  an occupied fence l i n e  to a 
fence corner  post for an exterior ell corner of this 
tract ; - 1 -- 

110



TRACT I COTJTII4UED 

S65°42f3311E - 357.70 feet w i t h  an occupied fence line to a 
fence .corner post  f o r  an e x t e r i o r  e l l  corner of this 
tract; 

S58°56f19"E - 62.75 feet w i t h  an occupied fence line to a 
fence corner  post for an exterior e l l  corner of t h i s  
t r ac t ;  

S37°01448nE - 898.15 feet with an occupied fence line to an 
iron p i n  s e t  at  a fence corner post  on a common line 
.between the N.orth l i n e  (?f Mumford Road (County) and a 
Sanford Johnson 138.06 acre tract (269/314), same being 
a common line between said.Coley Survey and a Henry 
Fullerton Survey, Abstract.No. 253.Eo-r; the Southwest 

. corner  of said Johnson 25 acre t ract ,  same being the 
Southeast corner  of said original 7 0 . 6  acre tract and 
for  the Southeast corner of t h i s  tracc%;-' :/ 

THENCE w i t h  the North l i n e  of said Mumford Road a& occupied by a 
fence line, same being a common l i n e  between said Coley Survey 
and said Fullerton Survey, same being'a camon l i n e  between said 
original 7 0 . 6  acre tract and said Johnson 138 .06  acre tract as 
follows; 

S60°05f25nW - 1135.74 feet to a fence corner post for an 
exterior ell corner of this tract; 

S60°31r34"W - 985 .74  feet to a point in a common line 
between the center of said ~ i t t l e  Braeos River and an 
Ivan Langford I1Fourth Tractn 255  acres (D.O.T. not 
recorded - May 1, 1934) for the N o r t h w e s t  corner of 
said Johnson 138.06 acre tract, same being the 
Southwest corner of said or ig ina l  7C.6 acre t ract  and 
for the most easterly gouthwest corner of this tract (a 
reference iron pin set at a - f e n a e  corner post bears 
N60°31f34ME - 30.00 feet; 

THENCE N29O48'08nW - 327.75 feet with t h e  center  of said L i t t l o  
Brazos ~iver, same being a common line between said Langford 255 
acre t r a c t  and said original 70.6 acre tract and said  o r i g i n a l 4  
104.3 acre t r a c t ,  respectively to a p o i n t  for an i n t e r i o r  e l l ,  
corner of this t ract  ( a  reference iron pin set bears 
S60°00f00"W - 50.00 feet); 

THENCE S 6 0 6 0 0 t 0 0 ~ W  - 3542.36 feet to an iron pin set on an 
occupied common line as fenced between said Coley Survey and sa id  
Bmith Survey, same bein a common l i n e  between said original 
1 0 4 . 3  acre t r a c t  and sa 4 d Forbin 833.04 acre tract For the most 
westerly Southwest corner o f  thia tract; x -. 
THEHCE N29°44t401tW - 1304.11 with en occupiid xommon line as 
fenced between said Coley survey and said Smith Survey, same 
being a common line between said original 104.3 acre tract and 
said Forbin 833.04 acre tract to the PLACE OF BEGINNING and 
containing 172.135 Acres of Land. 

111



I, W. L. Ferguson, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 2547  
in the S t a t e  of texas, do hereby certify t h a t  the above survey 
w a s  performed on the ground under my supervision and the  field 
notes  hereon are true and correct to t h e  best of my knowledge. 

Given under my hand and seal this 28th day of May, 1996. 

112



EXHIBIT "B" 

Special Warranty Deed 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR 
STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT 
TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 

Effective Date: ,2007 

Grantor: Henry L. Allen, joined herein by his wife, 

Grantor's Mailing Address: 3 102 Cherryhill Drive 
Missouri City, Texas 77459-3414 

Grantee: The City of College Station 

Grantee's Mailing Address: 1 101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77842 

Consideration: Good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
acknowledged, and for which no lien, express or implied is retained by Grantor. 

Property (including any improvements): 

Reservations fi-om Conveyance: All oil, gas and other minerals interest in on and under the 
Property retained by in that Deed dated and recorded in of the Real Property 
Records of Nueces County, Texas, provided, however, that this reservation does not include the 
right to use the surface of the property to access, explore for, drill for, excavate, or produce oil, 
gas or other minerals, or to use the groundwater fi-om the Property in connection with the oil, gas 
and mineral estates, and Grantor, on behalf of himself, his heirs, successors and assigns, hereby 
waives and releases all rights to use the surface of the Property to access, explore for, excavate or 
produce oil, gas or other minerals and to use the groundwater from the Property in connection 
therewith. 

Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty: 

[To Be Filled in with Permitted Exceptions] 

Exhibit "B" Page I 

113



Prohibition on Use. 

Without limiting the generality of any of the forgoing provisions, Grantor will not enter 
into any oil and gas lease, surface use agreement or other agreement affecting the Property, 
or any portion thereof, that allows (a) flooding of all or  any portion of the Property, (b) 
injection into or disposal of salt water onto all or any portion of the Property, (c) use of 
groundwater or fresh subterranean water located under the Property or any portion 
thereof for any purpose, or (d) drilling of groundwater well(s) or other surface use of the 
Property. Grantor is prohibited from engaging in the same activities. This provision will 
survive Closing, will run with the oil, gas and mineral estates, and will be binding on 
Grantor, Grantor's heirs, successors and assigns and persons with whom they or any of 
them contract in connection with the use or production of minerals. 

Grantor, for the Consideration and subject to the Reservations from Conveyance and the 
Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty, grants, sells, and conveys to Grantee the Property, 
together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, to have 
and to hold it to Grantee and Grantee's heirs, successors, and assigns forever. Grantor binds 
Grantor and Grantor's heirs and successors to warrant and forever defend all and singular the 
Property to Grantee and Grantee's heirs, successors, and assigns against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof, except as to the 
Reservations from Conveyance and the Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty, when the claim 
is made by, through or under the Grantor, but not otherwise. 

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns include the plural. 

HENRY L. ALLEN 

STATE OF TEXAS 8 
§ 

COUNTY OF 5 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this the day of , 2007 
by Henry L. Allen. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

Exhibit "B" Page 2 
114



STATE OF TEXAS 3 
§ 

COUNTY OF 3 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this the day of , 2007 
by 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

After Recording, Return to: 

Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta L.L.P. 
Attn. Denise Cheney 
816 Congress Ave., Suite 1700 
Austin, Texas 78701 -2443 

Exhibit "B" Page 3 

115



EXHIBIT "C" 

MEMORANDUM OF CONTRACT 

Henry L. Allen joined by his spouse, if any ("Seller") and the City of College Station, Texas 
("Buyer") have entered into a Real Estate Contract ("Contract") for the purchase by the Buyer of 
the property described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"). 

The Contract provides in part that: 

During the term of the Contract, Seller will not grant to any other person without the prior 
written consent of Buyer, any rights or  interests in the Property, including easement rights, 
oil and gas leases, or rights to use the groundwater, or amend any existing agreement 
relating to the Property, including easements, oil and gas leases, or any other documents 
evidencing or creating an interest or right in the Property. Any conveyance or amendment 
in violation of this provision will be void and of no effect, and shall not be binding on the 
Buyer. 

Without limiting the generality of any of the provisions of this Contract, before Closing, 
and after Closing, if Sellers have any interest in oil, gas or minerals in connection with the 
Land, Sellers will not enter into any oil and gas lease, surface use agreement or other 
agreement affecting the Property, or any portion thereof, that allows (a) flooding of all or 
any portion of the Property, (b) injection into or disposal of salt water onto all or  any 
portion of the Propert==, jcj iise of g i ~ u i i d ~ ~ ; a i e r  or fresh subterranean water iocated under 
the Property or any portion thereof for any purpose, (d) drilling of groundwater well(s) or  
other surface use of the Property, or (e) use of groundwater or of fresh subterranean water. 
Sellers are prohibited from engaging in the same activities. This provision will survive 
Closing, will run with the oil, gas and mineral estates, and will be binding on Sellers, their 
heirs, successors and assigns and persons with whom they or any of them contract for the 
use or production of minerals. This provision will be set forth in the Deed. 

The Contract was entered into on the Effective Date of this Memorandum and if the Contract 
does not result in a sale, the Buyer will record a notice of the termination of the Contract in the 
Real Property Records of Brazos and Robertson Counties, Texas. The Contract may be modified 
or extended without the necessity of modifying this Memorandum of Contract. 

Executed to be effective as of ,2007 ("Effective Date"). 

Henry L. Allen 

Exhbit "C" Page 1 
116



The City of College Station, Texas 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
5 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF 5 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007, 
by Henry L. Allen. 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
5 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF 5 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007, 
by 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
6 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of ,2007, 
by , as of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a Texas 
home rule municipal corporation, on behalf of said municipality. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

Exhibit "C" Page 2 117



After Recording, Return to: 

Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP 
8 16 Congress Avenue, Suite 1700 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attention: Denise Cheney or Susan Maxwell 

Exhibit "C" 

in and for The STATE OF TEXAS 

Page 3 

118



119



120



121



Land for Wells 8, 9, and 10

1.  Allen, Hank - 172 Acres

2.  Allen, Willie - 55 Acres

3.  Cisneros - 33 Acres

4.  Forbin - 1000 Acres

5.  Hanson - 471 Acres

6.  Kutzschbach - 482 Acres

7.  Rowe - 200 Acres

8.  Various Landowners - 440 Acres

Existing Well Sites

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Total = 2853 Acres I
122



 

 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2h 

Enviromed Medical Waste Hauling Franchise Third and Final Reading 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Hayden Migl, Assistant to the City Manager                         
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the third and final 
reading of an ordinance granting a non-exclusive medical waste hauling franchise 
agreement to Enviromed. 
  
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval. 
  
 
Summary:  The proposed franchise agreement allows Enviromed to engage in the business 
of collecting, hauling and disposing of treated and untreated medical waste from various 
health care facilities within the city limits. The disposal of medical waste, a State mandated 
service, was privatized because untreated medical waste cannot be deposited in the 
BVSWMA landfill and staff has determined that privatizing this service is the most cost-
effective way to offer this service to our community. 
 
Enviromed had a franchise with the City for a term of five years beginning July 2002 and 
has paid all franchise fees and provided all reports to the City as required. 
 
Other companies having similar non-exclusive medial waste hauling franchise agreements 
with the City are Tejas Medical Waste, Stericycle, Inc. and American Medical Waste 
Management, Inc. 
  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The franchise agreement requires Enviromed to pay five 
percent (5%) of the company's gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from the 
company's business of collecting and disposing of treated and untreated medical waste 
within the City. College Station receives approximately $2,000 annually through this 
franchise agreement.  
 
 
Attachments:  

1. Franchise Ordinance 
 

123



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING ENVIROMED, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A 
NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR THE PRIVILEGE AND USE OF PUBLIC STREETS, 
ALLEYS, AND PUBLIC WAYS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF ENGAGING IN THE BUSINESS OF 
COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF TREATED AND UNTREATED MEDICAL WASTE 
FROM VARIOUS HEALTH CARE-RELATED FACILITIES WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS; 
PRESCRIBING THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, OBLIGATIONS, AND LIlVIITATIONS 
UNDER WHICH SAID FRANCHISE SHALL BE EXERCISED; PROVIDING FOR THE 
CONSIDERATION; FOR PERIOD OF GRANT; FOR ASSIGNMENT; FOR METHOD OF 
ACCEPTANCE; FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND FOR PARTIAL 
INVALIDITY. 

WHEREAS, the City of College Station regulates the collection and disposal of all solid 
waste generated from within the corporate limits of the City of College Station; and 

WHEREAS, the City of College Station may, pursuant to Article XI of its Charter, grant 
franchises to other entities for the use of public streets, alleys and thoroughfares within the 
corporate limits of CITY and for the collection and disposal of treated and untreated medical 
wastes generated from within the corporate limits of the City of College Station; and 

WHEREAS, High Horizon, Inc. d/b/a Enviromed of Temple (hereinafter referred to as 
"Enviromed") is engaged in the business of collection and disposal of treated and untreated 
medical waste from health care-related facilities and is requesting a franchise to operate its 
business within the City limits of the City of College Station; and 

WHEREAS, the City of College Station (hereinafter referred to as "CITY"), believes it is 
in the best interest of College Station to offer Enviromed, a franchise on such terms and 
conditions as will provide College Station with control and options necessary to provide for the 
public good; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, THAT: 

I. 
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 For the purposes of this Ordinance, when not inconsistent with the context, words used in 
the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural include the singular, and words in 
the singular include the plural, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders 
whenever the sense requires. The words "shall" and "will" are mandatory and the word "may" is 
permissive. Words not defined in this Ordinance shall be given their common and ordinary 
meaning. 

Page 1 

124



Ordinance No. 

1.2 For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words, terms, phrases and their 
derivations shall have the meanings given below: 

Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency Landfill or B VS WMA landfill means a 
permitted municipal solid waste facility jointly owned by the Cities of Bryan and College Station 
and operated by the City of College Station on behalf of the cities as authorized by an interlocal 
agreement. 

CITY means the City of College Station, a home rule municipal corporation in the State 
of Texas. 

City Council or "Council" means the governing body of the City of College Station. 

City Manager means the City official appointed by the City Council who is responsible 
for the daily operation of the City of College Station. 

COMPANY means Enviromed, a privately held corporation incorporated in the State of 
Texas which provides medical waste management services for the healthcare industry as well as 
providing destruction services to major pharmaceutical manufacturers and which operates in the 
State of Texas as well as other states. 

Customers. Those health care-related facilities located within the CITY that generate 
treated and untreated medical waste. 

Force Majeure means, without limitation, by the following enumeration, acts of God and 
the public enemy, the elements, fire, or accidents. 

Franchise means this ordinance and all rights and obligations established herein or as it 
may be amended. 

Medical Wastes means medical wastes as that term is defined in 30 T.A.C. 330 as it now 
exists or as is hereafter amended. 

T.A.C. means the Texas Administrative Code as it now exists or as it is hereinafter 
amended. 

TCEQ means Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

Treated or Processed Medical Waste is medical waste that has been treated as provided 
in 30 T.A.C. 330 as it now exists or as it is hereafter amended. 

II. 

Page 2 
Contract No. 

125



Ordinance No. 

GRANT O F  NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

2.1 CITY hereby grants to COMPANY a nonexclusive franchise to operate and establish in 
College Station, as constituted as of the effective date of this Franchise, or as may hereafter be 
coi~stituted to collect and dispose of treated and untreated medical waste from various customers 
with health care-related facilities within the jurisdictional limits of CITY, and COMPANY is 
hereby granted passage and right-of-way on, along and across the streets, avenues, rights-of-way, 
alleys, and highways within the corporate limits of College Station, for any such service and 
lawful purpose as herein mentioned; provided that all such work, activity and undertakings by 
COMPANY shall be subject to the terms and provisions of this Franchise and the continuing 
exercise by College Station of its governmental and police powers, and provided further that 
nothing herein shall be construed to require or authorize COMPANY to exceed any rights 
granted herein or by the TCEQ. 

2.2 Nothing in this Franchise shall be construed as granting any exclusive franchise or right. 

III. 
FRANCHISE AND RENTAL FEES 

3.1. For and in consideration of the use of the CITY'S rights-of-way, streets, alleys. 
highways, avenues and thoroughfares as well as in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, COMPANY agrees to and shall pay to CITY upon acceptance of 
this Agreement and thereafter during the term hereof, a sum equivalent to five percent (5%) of 
COMPANY'S monthly gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from COMPANY'S 
provision of collection and disposal of treated and untreated medical waste services within the 
CITY. Said payment shall be paid quarterly to the CITY'S Finance Department and shall be due 
by the twentieth of the month following the end of the previous quarter. 

3.2 The franchise fee shall be in lieu of any and all other College Station imposed rentals or 
compensation or franchise, license, privilege, instrument, occupation, excise or revenue taxes or 
fees and all other exaction's or charges (except ad valorem property taxes, special assessments 
for local improvements, city sales tax, and such other charges for utility services imposed 
uniformly upon persons, firms or corporations then engaged in business within College Station) 
or perinits upon or relating to the business, revenue, franchise, equipment, and other facilities of 
COMPANY and all other property of COMPANY and its activities, or any part thereof, in 
College Station which relate to the operation of COMPANY'S medical waste collection 
business. 

3.3 Payment after that date shall incur a ten percent (10%) penalty on the outstanding amount 
owed under this article, and after written notice by CITY, may constitute a basis for forfeiture or 
termination under this Franchise pursuant to Article VIII herein. 

IV. 

Page 3 
Contract No. 

126



Ordinance No. 

TERM O F  FRANCHISE 

4.1 The term of this franchise shall be for a period of five (5) years beginning on the 26"' day 
of November, 2007. 

V. 
SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED BY COMPANY 

5.1 COMPANY shall furnish service consistent with the requirements and intent of this 
Franchise, and specified in this ordinance as now or hereafter approved by the Council or other 
regulatory authority having jurisdiction, without unreasonable discrimination, to all areas of 
College Station. 

5.2 COMPANY shall maintain its property and equipment in good order and working 
condition, consistent with the needs of the services rendered therefrom and in accordance with 
30 T.A.C. 330. 

5.3 COMPANY agrees that a standby vehicle shall always be available. 

5.4 COMPANY'S vehicles shall at all times be clearly marked with COMPANY'S name and 
TCEQ registration number in letters not less than three (3) inches in height. 

5.5 COMPANY'S operations shall be conducted in a manner that minimizes noise, 
disturbance, and commotion. 

5.6 COMPANY shall use all proper skill and care, and exercise all due and proper 
precautions that meet or exceed industry standards and TCEQ regulatory requirements to prevent 
injury to any person or person(s) and damage to any property. 

5.7 COMPANY shall register their operations with the TCEQ prior to commencing 
operations under this Franchise and shall provide proof of such registration and renewal thereof 
annually to CITY. 

5.8 AD VALOREM TAXES 

COMPANY agrees to render a list annually of all personal property utilized in its treated and 
untreated medical waste operation services to Brazos County Appraisal District so that said 
personal property will be subject to ad valorem taxation by the applicable taxing entities. 

5.9 DISPOSAL SITE FOR TREATED MEDICAL WASTE 

Page 4 
Contract No. 

127



Ordinance No. 

Unless approved otherwise in writing by CITY, COMPANY shall utilize the BVSWMA landfill 
located on Rock Prairie Road, College Station or any other municipal landfill site designated by 
CITY for its municipal solid waste disposal for disposal of all treated medical waste collected by 
COMPANY from within the corporate limits of the City of College Station. Untreated medical 
waste collected by COMPANY within the corporate limits of the City of College Station will be 
treated and disposed of at any site of COMPANY'S selection, provided however, that any site 
used shall be permitted to accept this classification of waste by the appropriate regulatory 
authority. 

5.10 CITY shall have access to all books of accounts and records of its business operations 
from which Gross Receipts may be determined. 

5.11 COMPANY further agrees CITY may review its books and records, during normal 
business hours and on a non-disruptive basis, as reasonably necessary to monitor compliance 
with the terms hereof, or as otherwise required by law 

(a) COMPANY shall keep complete and accurate books of accounts and records of 
its business and operations from which Gross Receipts may be determined. 

(b) The following records and reports shall be filed monthly with the City Manager 
or his delegate: 

i. Reports of all complaints and investigations received from any 
customer or regulatory authority and remedial action taken by 
COMPANY in response to said complaints. 

ii. A listing of all COMPANY'S customer accounts and monthly revenue 
derived from collections made in the CITY under the terms of this 
Agreement. The reports shall include customer's name, address, 
frequency of pick-up, number of containers, pounds of waste collected 
by customer separated by treated and untreated, and monthly charges. 

5.12 COMPLAINTS 

COMPANY shall respond to any customer complaints. Any customer complaints 
received by CITY shall be forwarded to COMPANY within twenty-four (24) hours of their 
receipt. COMPANY shall notify CITY of action taken within twenty-four (24) hours following 
receipt of complaint. Failure to timely respond to Customer complaints by COMPANY may 
result in the imposition of a Fifty ($50.00) per incident charge from CITY payable with the next 
payment due to CITY under Article 111 of this Agreement. 

5.13 COMPANY agrees to provide free service to CITY during periodic CITY clean-up 
campaigns and following natural disasters or Acts of God. 

Page 5 
Contract No. 

128



Ordinance No. 

5.14 TERMINATION OF SERVICE 

COMPANY must notify CITY in writing of termination of any customer's service for cause via 
registered mail within forty-eight (48) hours of said termination and the basis therefor. 

VI. 
TITLE TO WASTE 

6.1 Sole and exclusive title to all treated and untreated medical waste collected by 
COMPANY under this Agreement shall pass to COMPANY when said waste is placed on 
COMPANY'S truck. 

VII. 
RATES, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

7.1 The COMPANY shall charge for the aforementioned services according to the rates set 
out in the Schedule of Rates attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by 
reference. The Schedule of Rates may be revised periodically and must be submitted to the City 
Manager or his delegate upon each revision and will be attached to the original franchise 
agreement. 

VIII. 
FORFEITURE AND TERMINATION OF FRANCHISE 

8.1 In addition to all other rights and powers retained by CITY under this Franchise or 
otherwise, CITY reserves the right to declare this Franchise forfeited and to terminate the 
Franchise and all rights and privileges of COMPANY hereunder in the event of a material 
breach of the terms, covenants, or conditions herein set forth. A material breach by COMPANY 
shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

1. Failure to pay the fee prescribed by Article 111; 

2. Failure to materially provide the services provided for in this Franchise; 

3. Material misrepresentation of fact in the application for or negotiation of this 
Franchise; 

4. Conviction of any director, officer, employee, or agent of COMPANY of the 
offense of bribery or fraud connected with or resulting from the awarding of this 
Franchise; 

Page 6 
Contract No. 

129



Ordinance No. 

5.  Material misrepresentations of fact knowingly made to CITY with respect to or 
regarding COMPANY'S operations, management, revenues, services or reports 
required pursuant to this Franchise; 

6. Revocation or denial of registration or renewal of registration by TCEQ; 

7. Excessive interruption in service for a period of seventy-two (72) hours or more 
due to causes other than force majeure. 

8.2 COMPANY shall not be excused by mere economic hardship nor by misfeasance or 
malfeasance of its directors, officers or employees. 

8.3 CITY may after a hearing as described herein, revoke and cancel the Franchise by and 
between the parties and said Franchise shall be null and void. CITY shall mail notice to 
COMPANY, at the address designated herein or at such address as may be designated from time 
to time. by registered mail. The notice shall specify the time and place of the hearing and shall 
include the allegations being asserted for the revocation of this Agreement. The hearing shall be 
conducted in public before the City Council and COMPANY shall be allowed to present 
evidence and be given an opportunity to answer all reasons for the termination set forth in the 
notice. In the event that the Council determines that the allegations set forth are true as set forth 
in the notice, it may by majority vote cancel this Agreement between the parties at no penalty to 
the CITY. 

IX. 
RECEIVERSHIP AND BANKRUPTCY 

9.1 The Council shall have the right to cancel this Franchise one hundred twenty (120) days 
after the appointment of a receiver or trustee to take over and conduct the business of 
COMPANY, whether in receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy, other action or proceeding, 
whether voluntary or involuntary, unless such receivership or trusteeship shall have been vacated 
prior to the expiration of said one hundred twenty (120) days, unless: 

9.2 Within one hundred twenty (120) days after his election or appointment, such receiver or 
trustee shall have fully complied with all the provisions of this Franchise and remedied all 
defaults thereunder; or 

9.3 Such receiver or trustee, within one hundred twenty (120) days, shall have executed an 
agreement, duly approved by the court having jurisdiction, whereby the receiver or trustee 
assumes and agrees to be bound by each and every provision of this Franchise. 

X. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

Page 7 
Contract No. 

130



Ordinance No. 

10.1 COMPANY shall not dispose of any untreated medical waste, special waste o r  other 
hazardous waste o r  any waste that the landfill is not permitted to accept by applicable 
TCEQ standards in the BVSWMA landfill. COMPANY hereby agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold CITY harmless for disposal of any such waste in the BVSWMA landfill 
whether intentional o r  inadvertent. 

10.2 COMPANY shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any and all injuries to 
persons o r  claims of damage to property caused by COMPANY, its agents, employees, and 
representatives. 

10.3 COMPANY agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless CITY, its officers, 
agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of 
action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, and 
attorney's fees, for injury to o r  death of any person, o r  for damage to any property, arising 
out of o r  in connection with the sewices provided o r  medical waste collected, treated, or  
disposed of by COMPANY under this contract, regardless of whether such injuries, death 
o r  damages are  caused in whole o r  in part by the negligence, including but not limited to 
the contractual comparative negligence, concurrent negligence o r  gross negligence, of 
CITY. 

10.4 COMPANY assumes responsibility and liability and hereby agrees to indemnify the 
City of College Station from any liability caused by COMPANY'S failure to comply with 
applicable federal, state o r  local laws and regulations, touching upon the maintenance of a 
safe and protected working environment, and the safe use and operation of machinery and 
equipment in that working environment. 

XI. 
INSURANCE 

11.1 COMPANY shall procure and maintain at its sole cost and expense for the duration of 
the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by COMPANY, its 
agents, representatives, volunteers, employees or subcontractors. 

11.2 COMPANY'S insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the CITY, 
its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
CITY, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be considered in excess of the COMPANY's 
insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

11.3 COMPANY shall include all subcontractors as additional insured under its policies or 
shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for 
subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein. 

Page 8 
Contract No. 

131



Ordinance No. 

11.4 All Certificates of Insurance and endorsements shall be furnished to the CITY'S 
Representative at the time of execution of this Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and 
approved by the CITY before work commences. 

A. Standard Insurance Policies Required: 

1. Commercial General Liability Policy 
2. Automobile Liability Policy 
3. Workers' Compensation Policy 
4. Pollution Liability Policy 
5.  Excess Liability Policy 

B. General Requirements Applicable to all Policies: 

1. Only Insurance Carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 
Texas will be accepted. 

2. Deductibles shall be listed on the Certificate of Insurance and are acceptable 
only on a per occurrence basis for property damage only. 

3. "Claims Made" policies will not be accepted. 

4. Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
has been given to the City of College Station. 

5. Upon request, certified copies of all insurance policies shall be furnished to 
the City of College Station. 

6. The City of College Station, its officials, employees and volunteers, are to be 
added as "Additional Insured" to all applicable Liability policies. The 
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the CITY, its officials, employees or volunteers. 

C. Commercial General Liability 

1. General Liability insurance shall be written by a carrier with a A-:VII or 
better rating in accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide. 

2. Minimum Limit of $1,000,000.00 per and $2,000,000.00 annual aggregate. 

3. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Service's Office Number CG 
00 01. 

4. No coverage shall be deleted from the standard policy without notification of 
individual exclusions being attached for review and acceptance. 

5 .  The coverage shall include but not be limited to the following: 
premises/operations; independent contracts; products/completed operations; 

Page 9 
Contract No. 

132



Ordinance No. 

contractual liability (insuring the indemnity provided herein); and where 
exposures exist, "Explosion, Collapse, and Underground" coverage. 

I). Automobile Liability 

1. Business Automobile Liability insurance shall be written by a carrier with a 
A-:VII or better rating in accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide. 

2. Minimum Combined Single Limit of $2,000,000.00 per occurrence for bodily 
injury and property damage. 

3. The Business Auto Policy must show Symbol 1 in the Covered Autos portion 
of the liability section in Item 2 of the declarations page. 

4. The coverage shall include owned or leased autos, non-owned autos, and 
hired cars. Where applicable endorsement MCS-90, (Motor Carrier Policies 
for Insurance for Public Liability) is required. 

5. COMPANY is responsible for any liability andlor costs that exceed the dollar 
limits set forth in this section. 

E. Workers' Compensation 

1. Employer's Liability limits of $500,000/$500,000/$500,000 are required. 

2. City of College Station shall be named as Alternate Employer on endorsement 
WC 99 03 01 unless written through TWCARP. 

3. Texas Waiver of Our Right to Recover from Others Endorsement, WC 42 03 
04 shall be included in this policy. 

4. Texas must appear in Item 3A of the Workers' Compensation coverage or 
Item 3C must contain the following: All States except those listed in Item 3A 
and the States of NV, ND, OH, WA, WV, WY. 

F .  Pollution Liability 

1. Minimum acceptable limit $2,000,000 aggregate and $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. 

2. Pollution coverage endorsement CG 04 22 required. 

1. Minimum acceptable limit $5,000,000 aggregate and $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. 

H .  CertiJicates of Insurance 

Page 10 
Contract No. 

133



Ordinance No. 

Certificates of Insurance shall be prepared and executed by the insurance 
company or it's authorized agent, and shall contain the following provisions and 
warranties: 

1. The company is licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Texas. 

2. The insurance policies provided by the insurance company are underwritten 
on forms that have been provided by the Texas State Board of Insurance or 
ISO. 

3. All endorsements and insurance coverages according to requirements and 
instructions contained herein. 

4. The form of the notice of cancellation, termination, or change in coverage 
provisions to the City of College Station. 

5. Original endorsements affecting coverage required by this section shall be 
furnished with the certificates of insurance. 

11.5 The coverage requirements set forth in this Article are in addition to those required under 
30 T.A.C. 37. COMPANY shall provide proof that it has met the requirements of 30 T.A.C. 37 
to CITY upon the execution of this Franchise by COMPANY. 

11.6 COMPANY shall notify CITY by certified mail of the commencement of voluntary 
proceedings under Title 11 (Bankruptcy), United States Code, naming the COMPANY as 
debtor, within ten (1 0) business days after the commencement of the proceeding. 

11.7 If COMPANY is deemed to be without financial assurance pursuant to 30 T.A.C. 37. 
COMPANY'S operations shall be suspended until COMPANY establishes other acceptable 
financial assurance with the TCEQ and provides proof of same to CITY. 

XII. 
GOVERNING LAW; LIMITATIONS; COMPLIANCE 

12.1 This ordinance shall be construed in accordance with the CITY'S Charter and Code in 
effect on the Effective Date of this ordinance to the extent that such Charter and Code are not in 
conflict with or in violation of the constitution and laws of the United States or the State of 
Texas. 

12.2 This ordinance shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

12.3 Notwithstanding any other provision in this franchise to the contrary, CITY and 
COMPANY shall at all times comply with all laws, rules and regulations of the state and federal 
government and any administrative agencies thereof, with respect to the subject matter of this 
ordinance. 

XVIII. 
ASSIGNMENT 

Contract No. 
Page 11 

134



Ordinance No. 

13.1 This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by 
COMPANY without the specific prior written approval of the City Council. 

XIV. 
NOTICES 

14.1 All notices required under the terms of this Contract to be given by either party to the 
other shall be in writing, and unless otherwise specified in writing shall be sent to the parties at 
the addresses following: 

CITY: 
City Manager 
City of College Station 
P.O. Box 9960 
College Station, Texas 77842 

COMPANY: 
J. L. Ranly 
Administrator 
P.O. Box 1052 
Temple, TX 76503 

14.2 All notices shall be deemed to have been properly served only if sent by Registered or 
Certified Mail, to the person(s) at the address designated as above provided, or to any other 
person at the address which either party may hereinafter designate by written notice to the other 
P a q .  

x v .  
AMENDMENTS 

15.1 It is understood and agreed by the parties to this Franchise that no alteration or variation 
to the terms of this Franchise shall be effective unless made in writing, approved by both parties. 
and attached to this Agreement to become a part hereof. 

Page 12 
Contract No. 

135



Ordinance No. 

XVI. 
SEVERABILITY 

16.1 If any section, sentence, clause or paragraph of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 
be invalid or illegal, or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not 
affect the remaining portions of the Ordinance other than the part or parts held invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

XVII. 
AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE 

17.1 The parties signing the Franchise shall provide adequate proof of their authority to 
execute this Agreement. The Franchise shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
parties hereto and their respective successors or assigns, but shall not be assignable by either 
party without the written consent of the other party. 

XVIII. 
ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE BY COMPANY 

18.1 In accordance with CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CITY CHARTER, SECTION 103, this 
Ordinance shall be effective sixty (60) days after its adoption. COMPANY shall file its written 
acceptance of the terms and conditions of the Ordinance with the City Secretary within thirty 
(30) days from the final adoption of this Ordinance. Such acceptance shall be typed or printed 
on the letterhead of COMPANY and, with the blank spaces appropriately completed, shall be as 
follows: 

Attn: City Manager 

Envirorned acting by and through the undersigned who is 
acting within hislher official capacity and authority, hereby accepts the franchise to 
operate a medical waste collection service within the City of College Station, Texas 
("College Station") as said franchise is set forth and provided in Ordinance No. 
(the "Ordinance"). Enviromed agrees to be bound and governed by each term, 
provision and condition of the Ordinance, to accept and to give the benefits provided for 
in the Ordinance in a business like and reasonable manner and in compliance with the 
Ordinance. 

High Horizon, Inc 
d/b/a Envirorned of Temple 

By: 
Name: J.L. Ranly 
Title: Administrator 

Page 13 
Contract No. 

136



Ordinance No. 

XIX. 
PUBLIC HEARING 

19.1 It is hereby found and determined that the meetings at which this ordinance was passed 
were open to the pubic, as required by TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 3 55 1 (Vernon 1994, Vernon 
Supp. 2003), as amended, and that advance public notice of time, place, and purpose of said 
meetings was given. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Council of the City of 
College Station on this the day of ,2007. 

HIGH HORIZON, INC. 
d/b/a ENVIROMED OF TEMPLE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

BY: 
Mayor 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 
Date: 

APPROVAL: 

City Manager 
Date: 

Page 14 
Contract No. 

137



Ordinance No. 

First Consideration and Approval: 

Second Consideration and Approval: 

Third Consideration and Approval: 

Page 15 
Contract No. 

138



Ordinance No. 

Exhibit "A" 

SCHEDULE OF RATES 

OUR RATES ARE AS FOC1,OWS: 

DES I'R\ICTION OF LARGE BOX Ok' MEDICAT* WASTE 

RZliC; t S10.00 1'0 Fi40.00 PEli BOX 

DESI'KUCTIBN OF 28 GAL1 .ON R!-USmLE COhl'lAINEK 

KANGE 578.00 TO $30.00 PER CONTAIXER 

Page 16 
Contract No. 

139



Exhibit "B" 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 

Page 17 

140



A C ORL)7.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
PRODUCER Tom Stewart Insurance 

1001 S. Dairy Ashford. Suite 225 

Houston, TX 77077 
Phone (281)589-0004 Fax (281)589-8889 

INSURED High Horizons, Inc. DBA: Medtrak DBA:Enviromed 
DBA: All Med Disposal 
PO Box 1052 
Temple, TX 76503 

 SURER D: -- 

I INSURER E: p-,...-- 1 ~- ~ - 

INSR ADD'L 
LTR IFISRQ _ _ .VPE OF INSURANCE 

COVERAGES 

- -- 

I 
1 POLICY NUMBER 1 -- 

LIMITS -- .- -. 

INSURER F 

I 
GENERAL L l A B l L l N  I 

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMEDABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR 
MAY PERTAIN THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS. EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH 
POLLCES AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HALE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS 

- - - -- 

4 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY FBCAT 0041 103 

- 1  CLAIMS MADE 191 OCCUR 
A 4 -  I 

r 
1. -- 
EEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER 

- - POLICY J PROJECT 3 LOC -- -- - - -- 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY I 

- ANY AUTO / FBCAT 0041103 
_ ALL OWNED AUTOS 

SCHEDULED AUTOS A !c 1: 
A HIRED AUTOS - 
4 NON OWNED AUTOS - : - - 9, Broad Pollut~on -. .- 

I 1  

GARAGE LIABILITY - -- 
-- ANY AUTO -- 

EXCESS L l A B l L l N  
I 

- I 
. OCCUR 1 CLAIMSMADE , 

EACd OCCLRRENCE 1,000 000 
. - 

D A ~ G - E  TO RENTED- 
PREMISES (Ea occurence) , 100,000 

1 MED EXP (Any one person) 5,000 1 
I 

PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY ~ ,ooo ,ooo~  

Included / -- 

I 

1 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ,OOO,OOOi 
(Ea accident) --j.- .- -- -- -- 

I BODILY INJURY 
1 (Per ~erson)  

BODILY INJURY 
(Per accident) 

i PROPERTY DAMAGE 
I 

1 (Per accident) 

AUTO ONLY - EAACCIDENT 

OTHER THAN EAACC - - -  
AUTO ONLY 

AGG 2 - - - 

/ EACH OCCURRENCE 

OTHER 

_1 

-- 
L DEDUCTIBLE 

E RETENTION I 05115107 1 
- 

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
TSF-0001105699 0511 5108 EMPLOYERS' L l A B l L l N  

B ANY PROPRIETOR I PARTNER I EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER I MEMBER EXCLUDED? I 

If yes descrlbe under I 

SPLCIAL P_R_QVl./lIONS below 

Medical Waste Hauler i 
Certificate holder is hereby granted Additional Insured status with regards to Commercial General Liability in accordance with pdicy terms, conditions and exclusions. 
!Blanket Waiver of Subrogation applies with regards to workers compensation in accordance with pdicy terms, conditions and exclusions. i 

i 

- - .. -- - - - - -- 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

I 

City of College Station 
Attn: Risk Management 
PO box 9960 
College Station, TX 77842 

I 

WC STATU- :AH- 
TORY LIMITS 

E L EACH ACCIDENT 

E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 

- ~ 
I 

ACORD 25 (2001108) 

1 
500,000~ 
500,000 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 
EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, THE ISSUING INSURER W l U  ENDEAVOR TO MAIL 
10 DAYS WRllTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO 

THEFT, BUT FAILURE TO DO SO SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY 
OF ANY KIND UPON THE INSURER, ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE amh 
OACORD CORPORATION 1988 

E L DISEASE - POLICY L I M I T  500,000 

141



ENDORSEMENT FOR Form Approved 
MOTOR CARRIER POLICIES OF INSURANCE FOR PUBLIC LIABILITY OMB No. 2125-0074 

UNDER SECTIONS 29 AND 30 OF THE MOTOR CARRIER ACT OF 1980 

Issued to H I G H  IIORIZONS, INC. of PO BOX 1052, TEMPLE TX 76503 

Dated at DENVER, CO this 19TH day of APRIL, 2007 

Amending Policy No. FBCATOO4 1103 Effective Date 04-18-2007 

Name of Insurance Company ARCH INSURANCE COMPANY 

Telephone Number ( 203) 388-3220 . Countersigned by 
Aulhorlzed Company F&resen(awe 

The policy to which this endorsement is attached provides primary or excess insurance, as Indicated by @, for the limits shown: 

/ This insurance is primary and the company shall not be liable for amounts in excess of $ 1,000,000 for each accident 

This insurance is excess and the company shall not be liable for amounts in excess of $ for each accident. 
in excess of the underlying limit of $ for each accident. 

Whenever required by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) or the lnterstate Commerce Commission (ICC), the company 
agrees to furnish the FHWA or the ICC a duplicate of said policy and all its endorsements. The company also agrees, upon telephone 
request by an authorized representative of the FHWA or the ICC, to verify that the policy is in force as of a particular date. 

Cancellation of this endorsement may be effected by the company or the insured by giving (1) thirty-five (35) days notice in writing to 
the other party (said 35 days notice to commence from the date the notice is mailed, proof of mailing shall be sufficient proof of 
notice), and (2) if the insured is subject to the ICC's jurisdiction, by providing thirty (30) days notice to the ICC (said 30 days notice to 
commence from the date the notice is received by the ICC at its office in Washington, D.C.). 

DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THIS ENDORSEMENT 
ACCIDENT includes continuous or repeated exposure to loss. damage, or destruction of natural resources arising out of 
conditions which results in bodily injury, property damage, or the accidental discharge, dispersal, release or escape into or 
environmental damage which the insured neither expected nor upon the land, atmosphere, watercourse, or body of water, of any 
intended commodity transported by a motor carrier. This shall include the 

cost of removal and the cost of necessary measures taken to 
MOTOR VEI-KLE means a land vehicle, machine, truck, h d o r ,  minimbe or mitigate damage to human heaRh, the natural 
trailer, or semitrailer propelled or drawn by mechanical power environment, fish, shellfish, and wildlife. 
and used on a highway for transporting property. or any 
combination thereof. PROPERTY DAMAGE means damage to or loss of use of 

BODILY INJURY means injury to the body, sickness, or disease tangible property. 

to any person, including death resulting from any of these. PUBLIC LIABILITY means liability for bodily injury, property 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION means restitution for the damage, and environmental restoration. 

The insurance policy to which this endorsement is attached endorsement thereon, or violation thereof, shall relieve the 
provides automobile liability insurance and is amended to assure company from liability or fmm the payment of any final 
compliance by the insured, within the limits stated herein, as a judgment, within the limits of liability herein described, 
motor carrier of property, with Sections 29 and 30 of the Motor irrespective of the financial condition, insolvency or bankruptcy of 
Carrier Act of 1980 and the rules and regulations of the Federal the insured. However, all terms, conditions and limitations in the 
Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Interstate Commerce policy to which the endorsement is attached shall remain in full 
Commission (ICC). force and effect as binding between the insured and the 

company. The insured agrees to reimburse the company for any 
payment made by the company on account of any accident, 

In consideration of the premium stated in the policy to which this daim, or suit involving a breach of the terms of the policy, and 
endorsement is attached, the insurer (the company) agrees to for any payment that the company would not have been 
pay, within the limits of liability described any final obligated to make under the provisions of the policy except for the 
judgment recovered against the insured for public liability contained in this endorsement. 
resulting from negligence in the operation, maintenance or use of 
motor vehicles subject to the financial responsibility Eq~irements It is fumer understood and agreed that, upon failure of the 
of Sections 29 and 30 of the Motor Carrier Act of 1980 regardless company to pay any final judgment recovered against the 
of whether or not each motor vehicle is specifically described in insured as provided herein, the judgment creditor may maintain 
the policy and whether or not such negligence m%urs on any an action in any court of competent jurisdiction against the 
route or in any territory authorized to be served by the insured or company to compel such payment. 
elsewhere. Such insurance as is afforded, for public liability, 
does not apply to injury to or death of the insured's employees The limits of the company's liability for the amounts prescribed in 
while engaged in the course of their employment, or property this endorsement apply separately, to each accident, and any 
transported by the insured, designated as cargo. It is understood payment under the policy because of any one accident shall not 
and agreed that no condition, provision, stipulation. or limitation operate to reduce the liability of the company for the payment of 
contained in the policy, this endorsement, or any other final judgments resulting from any other accident. 
The Motor Carrier Act of 1980 requires limits of financial responsibility according to the type of carriage and commodity transported 
by the motor carrier. It is the MOTOR CARRIER'S obligation to obtain the required limits of financial responsibility. 
THE SCHEDULE OF LIMITS SHOWN ON THE NU(T PAGE DOES NOT PROVIDE COVERAGE. 
The limits shown in the schedule are for information purposes only. 

Form MCS-93 (Over) UNIFORM INFORMATION SERVICES, INC. MC 1622k (10-99) 

142



SCHEDULE OF LIMITS 
Public Liability 

Type of Carnage Commodity Transported 
Minimum 
Insurance 

(I) For-hire (In interstate or foreign 
commerce). 

Property (nonhazardous) 

(2) For-hire and Private (In interstate, Hazardous substances, as defined in 49 CFR 171..8, 
foreign, or intrastate commerce). transported in cargo tanks. portable tanks, or hopper- 

type vehicles with capacities in excess of 3,500 water 
gallons; or In bulk Divisions 1 1 ,  1 2, and 1 3 materials; 
any quantity of Division 2.3 Hazard Zone A or Division 
6.1, Packing Group 1 ,  Hazard Zone A material; in bulk 
Division 2 1 or 2.2; or highway route controlled 
quantities of a Class 7 material as defined in 49 CFR 
173.403. 

(3) For-hire and Private (In interstate 
or foreign commerce: in any 
quantity) or (In intrastate com- 
merce: in bulk only) 

(4) For-hire and Private (In interstate 
or foreign commerce) 

Oil listed in 49 CFR 172.101, hazardous materials and 
hazardous substances defined in 49 CFR 171.8 and 
listed in 49 CFR 172 101, but not mentioned in (2) 
above or (4) below 

Any quantity of Division 1 1 ,  1.2 or 1.3 material; any 
quantity of a Division 2 3, Hazard Zone A, or Division 
6 1, Packing Group 1, Hazard Zone A material; or 
highway route controlled quantities of Class 7 material 
as defined in 49 CFR 173 403. 

Note: The type of carriage listed under (I), (2), and (3) applies to vehicles with a gross vehicle weight rating of 10,000 
pounds or more The type of carriage listed under number (4) applies to all vehicles with a gross vehicle weight rating of 
less than 10,000 pounds 

Schedule of Limits 
Public Liability 

For-hire motor carriers of passengers operating in interstate or foreign commerce 

Minimum 
Vehicle Seating Capacity Insurance 

(1) Any vehicle with a seating capacity of 16 passengers or more. $ 5,000,000 

(2) Any vehicle with a sealing capacity of 15 passengers or less. 1,500,000 

MC 1622k (10-99) UNIFORM INFORMATION SERVICES, INC Form MCS-90 

143



 

 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2i 

Construction and Demolition Debris Hauling Franchise Third and Final Reading 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Hayden Migl, Assistant to the City Manager                         
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion on the third and final 
reading of a franchise agreement with CCAA, LLC d/b/a Brazos Valley Recycling for 
collection, hauling and disposal services for residential and commercial construction debris 
solid waste for the purpose of recycling. 
  
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval. 
  
 
Summary:  The proposed non-exclusive five (5) year franchise agreement allows for the 
collection, hauling and disposal services for residential and commercial construction and 
demolition debris generated within the corporate limits of the City of College Station for the 
purpose of recycling the debris.   
 
This company has a current franchise under Stop 'N Go Potties which is limited only to 
residential areas, roll-off containers not to exceed fifteen (15) cubic yards in volume, and 
does not allow a provision to recycle collected debris. 
 
The roll-off container method allows contractors to keep their construction sites clean during 
construction and provides a better method of hauling the debris. 
 
Section 120 of the City Charter states that "The City of College Station shall have the power 
by ordinance to grant any franchise or right mentioned in the preceding sections hereof, 
which ordinance, however, shall not be passed finally until it shall have been read at three 
(3) separate regular meetings of the City Council." 
  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The franchise agreement contains a tiered fee schedule 
requiring Brazos Valley Recycling to pay five percent (5%) of the company's gross delivery 
and hauling revenues if they recycle over 60% of the debris collected, six and one half 
percent (6.5%) if they recycle at least fifty-five percent (55%) but less than sixty percent 
(60%), and eight percent (8%) if they recycle less than fifty-five percent (55%) of the 
debris collected. 
 
 
Attachments:  

1. Franchise Ordinance 
 

144



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CCAA, LLC, D/B/A BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, A NONEXCLUSIVE 
FRANCHISE FOR THE PRIVILEGE AND USE OF PUBLIC STREETS, ALLEYS 
AND PUBLIC WAYS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF ENGAGING IN THE BUSINESS OF 
COLLECTING DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF RECYCLING;  PRESCRIBING THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, 
OBLIGATIONS, AND LIMITATIONS UNDER WHICH SAID FRANCHISE SHALL 
BE EXERCISED; PROVIDING FOR THE CONSIDERATION; FOR PERIOD OF 
GRANT; FOR ASSIGNMENT; FOR METHOD OF ACCEPTANCE; FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; FOR PARTIAL INVALIDITY AND ASSESSING A 
PENALTY FOR VIOLATION. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of College Station, by ordinance, provides exclusively all 
solid waste collection and disposal services for solid waste generated from within the 
corporate limits of the City of College Station; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of College Station may, by ordinance and charter, grant 
franchises to other entities for the use of public streets, alleys and thoroughfares within 
the corporate limits of the City of College Station and for the collection and disposal of 
solid waste generated from within the corporate limits of the City of College Station; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of College Station desires to exercise the authority provided 
to it by ordinance and charter to grant a franchise for the collection and disposal of a 
certain classification of solid waste generated within the corporate limits of the City of 
College Station under the terms of this Franchise Agreement as set out below; and  
  
 WHEREAS, CCAA, LLC d/b/a BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING desires to 
obtain a franchise to provide for the collection, hauling and disposal of construction 
debris solid waste from the City of College Station;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

I. 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 1. Franchise Agreement means this franchise between the City of College 
Station and CCAA, LLC d/b/a BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING for provision of a roll-
off container demolition and construction debris collection service for the purpose of 
recycling within the City of College Station, under certain terms and conditions set out 
herein. 

Page 1 
145



Ordinance No. __________ 

 2. BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING means CCAA, LLC d/b/a BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING conducting the roll-off container demolition and construction 
debris collection service for the purpose of recycling. 
 
 3. Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency or BVSWMA means a 
landfill jointly owned by the Cities of Bryan and College Station and operated by the City 
of College Station on behalf of the cities as authorized through an interlocal agreement. 
 
 4. City of College Station or CITY means the City of College Station, Texas 
a Home-Rule Municipal Corporation incorporated under the laws of Texas. 
 
 5. City Council or "COUNCIL" means the governing body of the City of 
College Station, Texas. 
 
 6. Customers means those industrial, residential, and/or commercial premises 
located within the CITY that generate demolition and construction debris.   
 
 7. Demolition and Construction Debris means any building material waste 
resulting from demolition, remodeling, repairs, or construction as well as materials 
discarded during periodic temporary facility clean-up generated within the CITY. 
 
 8. Roll-Off Containers or container means that type of solid waste industry 
container loaded by winch truck or hook not to exceed thirty (30) cubic yards in volume. 
 

II. 
GRANT OF NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCISE 

 
 For and in consideration of the compliance by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING 
with the covenants and conditions herein set forth CITY hereby grants to BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING a NONEXCLUSIVE franchise for use of designated public 
streets, alleys and thoroughfares within the corporate limits of City for the sole purpose 
of engaging in the business of collecting demolition and construction debris for the 
purpose of recycling within the jurisdictional limits of CITY using roll-off containers. 
 
 

III. 
DISPOSAL SITE TO BE USED 

 
 Unless approved otherwise in writing by ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
WORKS, BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall utilize the BVSWMA landfill located 
on Rock Prairie Road, College Station, Texas or any other site designated for their 
municipal solid waste disposal for the disposal of all non-recyclable demolition and 
construction debris collected by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING under this Franchise 
Agreement. BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall not dispose of any asbestos or 
other hazardous wastes at the BVSWMA landfill. 
 

Page 2 
Contract No.     

146



Ordinance No. __________ 

IV. 
RATES TO BE CHARGED BY BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING 

 
 Attached hereto as Exhibit "A” and incorporated herein by reference is the 
Schedule of Rates, which BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall charge for the 
aforementioned services. The rates provided herein shall be renegotiated at any time that 
the costs to the company of doing business have increased, due to the operation of new 
governmental regulation or due to increased costs of material or labor required to provide 
the services hereunder, or due to increased costs of disposal in a landfill operation.  
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING agrees to use due diligence to keep costs from 
increasing. 
 

V. 
PAYMENTS TO CITY 

 
 For and in consideration of the grant of the franchise herein, BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING agrees and shall pay to CITY upon acceptance of this Franchise 
Agreement and thereafter during the term hereof, a sum based on the following graduated 
fee schedule depending on the percentage of aggregate recycling accomplished.  
 
A fee equivalent to five percent (5%) of BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING's monthly 
gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING's 
provision of demolition and construction debris roll-off container collection services 
within the CITY excluding landfill tipping charges is required if BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING reports aggregate recycling of at least sixty percent (60%) of demolition 
and construction debris collected.   
 
A fee equivalent to six and one half percent (6.5%) of BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING's monthly gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING's provision of demolition and construction debris roll-off 
container collection services within the CITY excluding landfill tipping charges is 
required if BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING reports aggregate recycling of at least 
fifty-five percent (55%) but less than sixty percent (60%) of demolition and construction 
debris collected.   
 
A fee equivalent to eight percent (8%) of BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING's monthly 
gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING's 
provision of demolition and construction debris roll-off container collection services 
within the CITY excluding landfill tipping charges is required if BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING reports aggregate recycling less than fifty-five percent (55%) of 
demolition and construction debris collected.   
 
The exclusion is limited only to the amount BVSWMA charges BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING for landfill tipping charges.  Any revenue received by BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING in excess of the landfill tipping charges will be subject to the franchise fee 
and shall be computed into BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING 's monthly gross delivery 

Page 3 
Contract No.     

147



Ordinance No. __________ 

and hauling revenue.  Said payment shall be paid quarterly to the City Manager or his 
delegate and shall be due by the twentieth of the month following the end of the previous 
quarter.  Payment after that date shall incur a ten percent (10%) late fee on the 
outstanding amount owed under this Article V.   
 
Failure by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING to pay any amount due under this franchise 
constitutes a Failure to Perform under this contract and is subject to the provisions of 
Article XV of this Franchise Agreement (FAILURE TO PERFORM). 

 
VI. 

ACCESS TO RECORDS & REPORTING 
 
 CITY shall have the right, upon reasonable notice, to inspect during normal 
business hours BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s records, billing records of those 
customers served by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING and all papers relating to the 
operation of demolition and construction debris collection and disposal within the CITY.  
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall cooperate in allowing CITY to conduct the 
inspections.   
 
Along with the payment to the CITY of the CITY’s agreed share of revenue from the 
delivery and hauling of demolition and construction debris, BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING shall provide a Monthly Recycling Activity Report that shall be due to the 
CITY no later than the twentieth calendar day of each month and summarizing recycling 
activity for the previous calendar month.  BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s report 
shall include the following information: 
 

1. Summaries of tonnage of all recyclable commodities collected from all 
customers, broken down by commodity. 

  
2. Summaries of tonnage of demolition and construction debris collected from 

all customers. 
 
3. Summaries of tonnage of demolition and construction debris collected only in 

the CITY. 
 

4. Reports of the results of all complaints and investigations received and action 
taken by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING. 

 
5. A listing of all BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING accounts served and 

monthly revenue derived from roll-off containers placed in the CITY under 
terms of this franchise.  The reports will include customer’s address, 
frequency of pick-up, size of container, and monthly charges. 

 
6. Such information concerning the business of collection, processing and 

marketing of recyclable materials as may be required by the City’s 
representative. 

Page 4 
Contract No.     

148



Ordinance No. __________ 

 
VII. 

PLACEMENT OF ROLL-OFF CONTAINERS 
 
 All roll-off containers placed in service shall be located in such a manner so as 
not to be a safety or traffic hazard.  Under no circumstances shall BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING place containers on public streets, alleys and/or thoroughfares without the 
prior written approval of the CITY.  CITY reserves the right to designate the exact 
location of any or all roll-off container(s) placed in service in the CITY. 
 

VIII. 
CONTAINER AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING agrees to properly maintain in a safe, clean 

and sanitary condition, and paint all roll-off containers placed out for service within the 
CITY.   

 
All equipment necessary for the performance of this franchise shall be in good 

condition and repair.   
 
All vehicles used by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING in the removal of 

demolition and construction debris shall be covered during transport to prevent spillage, 
blowing, or scattering of refuse onto public streets or rights of way, private property or 
adjacent property. A standby vehicle shall always be available.  

 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s vehicles shall at all times be clearly marked 

with BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s name, address, telephone number and if 
applicable, state permit number, in letters not less than three (3) inches in height. 

 
IX. 

COMPLAINTS REGARDING SERVICE/SPILLAGE 
 

BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall handle directly any complaints 
pertaining to customer service, property damage or personal injury from their roll-off 
container service.  Any such complaints received by CITY shall be forwarded to 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING within twenty-four (24) hours of their receipt by 
CITY.  BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall respond to all complaints within twenty-
four (24) hours of receiving notice of such complaint from CITY, resolve such 
complaints promptly and shall report to CITY the action taken.  Failure by BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING to respond and report to CITY on action taken within this 
twenty-four (24) hour period may subject BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING to a $50.00 
per incident charge from CITY payable with the next payment due CITY under Article V 
of this Franchise Agreement. 

 
 
 

Page 5 
Contract No.     

149



Ordinance No. __________ 

X. 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall comply with all applicable federal, state 

and local laws, policies, rules and regulations, and ordinances with regard to the 
collection, hauling and disposal of solid waste, including but not limited to the 
requirement that all persons on the BVSWMA landfill premises wear a hard hat.  All 
operations conducted by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall be conducted without 
unnecessary noise, disturbance, or commotion. 
 

XI. 
UNDERSTANDINGS PERTAINING TO NON-EXCLUSIVITY 

 
 This Franchise Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed on by the 
parties and no other agreements, or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this 
franchise shall be of any force or effect.   

   
Both parties agree and understand that nothing in this Franchise Agreement 

conveys to BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING an exclusive franchise for the services 
described in this franchise and that this franchise is nonexclusive. 
 

XII. 
OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS 

 
 Sole and exclusive title to all demolition and construction debris collected by 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING under this Franchise Agreement shall pass to 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING when said debris is placed on BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING’s truck. 
 

XIII 
CITY SERVICE 

 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING agrees to provide free service to CITY 
following natural disasters or Acts of God.  
 

XIV. 
INTERRUPTION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE  

 
 A. Termination in Service.  In the event that BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING terminates service to any customer within the CITY’s limit, BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING must notify CITY through registered mail within forty-eight 
(48) hours of termination and state the cause of such termination. 
 
 B. Excessive Interruption in Service.  If the interruption in service continues 
for a period of seventy-two (72) hours or more, then it may constitute Failure to Perform 

Page 6 
Contract No.     

150



Ordinance No. __________ 

under this contract and CITY may invoke the provisions of Article XV of this Franchise 
Agreement (FAILURE TO PERFORM). 
 

XV. 
FAILURE TO PERFORM 

 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties that if at any time BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING shall fail to perform any of the terms, covenants, or conditions 
herein set forth, CITY may after hearing as described herein, revoke and cancel the 
Franchise Agreement by and between the parties and said Franchise Agreement shall be 
null and void.  Upon the determination by the staff of CITY that a hearing should be held 
before the Council of said CITY, CITY shall mail notice to BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING, at the address designated herein or at such address as may be designated 
from time to time, by registered mail.  The notice shall specify the time and place of the 
hearing and shall include the allegations being asserted for the revocation of this 
Franchise Agreement.  The hearing shall be conducted in public before the City Council 
and BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall be allowed to present evidence and given an 
opportunity to answer all reasons for the termination set forth in the notice.  In the event 
that the Council determines that the allegations set forth are true as set forth in the notice 
it may by majority vote cancel this Franchise Agreement between the parties at no 
penalty to the CITY. 
 

Page 7 
Contract No.     

151



Ordinance No. __________ 

XVI. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 In the event CITY is damaged due to the act, omission, mistake, fault or 
default of BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING, then BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless for such damage. 
 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless 
for any disposal of any solid waste for which the BVSWMA landfill is not permitted 
whether intentional or inadvertent. 
 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless 
from any and all injuries to or claims of adjacent property owners caused by 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING, its agents, employees, and representatives. 
 

BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING agrees to and shall indemnify and hold 
the CITY , its officers, agents and employees, harmless from and against any and all 
claims, losses, damages, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind and 
character, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, and reasonable attorney’s 
fees, for injury to or death of any person, or for damage to any property, arising out 
of or in connection with the services provided and business operated by BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING under this Franchise Agreement, regardless of whether 
such injuries, death or damages are caused in whole or in part by the negligence, 
including but not limited to the contractual comparative negligence, concurrent 
negligence or gross negligence, of CITY. 
 

XVII. 
INSURANCE 

 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall procure and maintain at its sole cost 

and expense for the duration of the Franchise Agreement insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING, its agents, representatives, volunteers, employees or subcontractors. 
 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance with respect to the CITY, it’s officials, employees and volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the CITY, its officials, employees or 
volunteers shall be considered in excess of the BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s 
insurance and shall not contribute to it. 
 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall include all subcontractors as 
additional insured under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and 
endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be 
subject to all of the requirements stated herein. 
 

Page 8 
Contract No.     

152



Ordinance No. __________ 

 Certificates of Insurance and endorsements shall be furnished to CITY and 
approved by CITY before BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING provides services in 
the CITY. 
 
 A. STANDARD INSURANCE POLICIES REQUIRED 

1. Commercial General Liability Policy 
2. Automobile Liability Policy 
3. Worker’s Compensation Policy. 

 
B. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO ALL POLICIES 

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance shall be 
written by a carrier with a A- VII or better rating in 
accordance with the current Best Key Rating Guide. 

2. Only Insurance Carriers licensed and admitted to do business 
in the State of Texas will be accepted. 

3. Deductibles shall be listed on the Certificate of Insurance and 
are acceptable only on a per occurrence bases for property 
damage only. 

4. Claims Made Policies will not be accepted. 
5. The City of College Station, its officials, employees and 

volunteers are to be added as “Additional Insured” to the 
General Liability and the Automobile Liability policies.  The 
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to the CITY, its officials, employees or 
volunteers. 

6. A Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the City of College Station 
with respect to the General Liability, Automobile Liability, and 
Workers’ Compensation insurance must be included. 

7. Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage 
shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage 
or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the 
City of College Station. 

8. Upon request, certified copies of all insurance policies shall be 
furnished to the City of College Station. 

 
C. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

1. Minimum Combined Single Limit of $2,000,000 aggregate with 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. 

2. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance service’s 
Office form number CG OO OL. 

3. No coverage shall be deleted from the standard policy without 
notification of individual exclusions being attached for review 
and acceptance. 

 

Page 9 
Contract No.     

153



Ordinance No. __________ 

D. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 
1. Minimum Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 combined single 

limit per occurrence for Bodily Injury Property on any auto. 
2. The Business Auto Policy must show Symbol 1 in the Covered 

Autos Portion of the liability section on Item 2 of the 
declarations page. 

 
E. WORKER’S COMPENSATION 

1. Workers’ Compensation to statutory limits and employer 
liability of $500,000/$500,000/$500,000 as required. 

2. City of College Station shall be named as Alternate Employer 
on endorsement WC 99 09 OI unless written through 
TWCARP. 

3. Texas must appear in Item 3A of the Workers’ Compensations 
coverage or Item 3C must contain the following:  All States 
except those listed in Item 3A and the States NV, ND, OH, WA, 
WV, WY. 

 
F. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 

1. Certificates of Insurance shall be prepared and executed by the 
insurance company or its authorized agent, and shall contain 
provisions representing and warranting the following: 
a. The company is licensed and admitted to do business in 

the State of Texas 
b. The insurance set forth by the insurance company are 

underwritten on forms which have been approved by 
the Texas State Board of Insurance or ISO. 

c. Sets forth all endorsements as required above and 
insurance coverages as previously set forth herein. 

d. Shall specifically set forth the notice of cancellation, 
termination, or change in coverage provisions to the 
City of College Station. 

e. Original endorsements affecting coverage required by 
this section shall be furnished with the certificates of 
insurance. 

Page 10 
Contract No.     

154



Ordinance No. __________ 

 
XVIII. 

ASSIGNMENT 
 This Franchise Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may 
not be assigned by BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING without the specific prior written 
approval of the City Council.  
 

XIX. 
SAFETY AND LIABILITY FOR INJURIES TO CITY OR ABUTTING PROPERTY 

 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall perform the collection in accordance 
with the applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations of the United States, State of 
Texas, Brazos County, and City of College Station and in compliance with OSHA and 
other laws as they apply to its employees.  It is the intent of the parties that the safety 
precautions are a part of the collection techniques for which BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING is solely responsible.  In the carrying on of the services herein provided 
for, BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall use all proper skill and care, and BRAZOS 
VALLEY RECYCLING shall exercise all due and proper precautions to prevent injury to 
any property, or person(s).  
 

BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING assumes responsibility and liability and 
hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the City of College Station harmless from and 
against any and all claims, losses, property damage, personal injury or death arising 
out of or in connection with BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING’s failure to comply 
with applicable federal, state or local laws and regulations, touching upon the 
maintenance of a safe and protected working environment, and the safe use and 
operation of machinery and equipment in that working environment. 

 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING shall pay for all damages to City property 

resulting from the operation of its service and shall pay to every owner of property 
abutting the residential property on which the container is located that is injured by 
the operation of the franchise all physical damage caused by any act or omission of 
BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING or of any of its subcontractors or employees in 
the operation of the BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING service. 

 
XX. 

AD VALOREM TAXES 
 
 BRAZOS VALLEY RECYCLING agrees to render all personal property utilized 
in its solid waste operation services provided to Brazos County Appraisal District so that 
said personal property will be the subject of ad valorem taxation for the benefit of CITY. 

Page 11 
Contract No.     

155



Ordinance No. __________ 

 
XXI. 

NOTICES AND PAYMENTS 
 
 All notices and payments required under the terms of this Contract to be given by 
either party to the other party shall be in writing, and unless otherwise specified in 
writing by the respective parties, shall be sent to the parties at the addresses following: 
 
   City Manager   

City of College Station 
   P.O. Box 9960 
   College Station, Texas 77842 
 
   Charles Mancuso 
   President, CCAA, LLC, d/b/a    

Brazos Valley Recycling 
P. O. Box 5449 
Bryan, Texas  77805    

 
 All notices shall be deemed to have been properly served only if sent by 
Registered or Certified Mail, to the person(s) at the address designated as above 
provided, or to any other person at the address which either party may hereinafter 
designate by written notice to the other party. 
 

XXII. 
PENALTY 

 
 Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this ordinance shall be 
fined not exceeding $2,000.00 for each offense and each and every day said violation 
continues constitutes a separate offense. 
 

XXIII. 
AMENDMENTS 

 
 It is hereby understood and agreed by the parties to this franchise that no 
amendment to the terms of this franchise shall be made unless made in writing, approved 
by both parties, and attached to this Franchise Agreement to become a part hereof. 

 
XXIV. 

SEVERABILITY 
 
 If any section, sentence, clause or paragraph of this Franchise Agreement is for 
any reason held to be invalid or illegal, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining 
portions of the Franchise Agreement. 

Page 12 
Contract No.     

156



Ordinance No. __________ 

 
XXV. 

AUTHORIZATION TO EXCECUTE 
 
 The parties signing this Franchise Agreement shall provide adequate proof of 
their authority to execute this Franchise Agreement.  This Franchise Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors 
or assigns, but shall not be assignable by either party without the written consent of the 
other party. 
 

XXVI. 
TERM OF FRANCHISE. 

 
The term of this Franchise Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years 

beginning on the 26th day of November 2007.  
 

XXVII. 
ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE 

  
This grant of franchise and its terms shall be accepted by BRAZOS VALLEY 

RECYCLING by a written instrument, executed and acknowledged, filed with the City 
Secretary within thirty (30) days after the date of its passage.  The written instrument 
shall state the acceptance of this franchise and its terms.  BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING shall agree in the instrument to abide by the terms and declare that the 
statements and recitals in it are correct. 
 
 This franchise shall take effect sixty (60) days after the date of its passage by the 
City Council provided formal acceptance of the terms by BRAZOS VALLEY 
RECYCLING is filed with the City Secretary within the time provided herein.  
 

XXVIII. 
PUBLIC MEETING 

 
 It is hereby found and determined that the meetings at which this ordinance was 
passed were open to the public, as required by TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE § 551, as 
amended, and that advance public notice of time, place, and purpose of said meetings was 
given. 

Page 13 
Contract No.     

157



Ordinance No. __________ 

Page 14 
Contract No.     

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

158



Ordinance No. __________ 

 
 
First Consideration and Approval:       
 
Second Consideration and Approval:       
 
Third Consideration and Approval:       

Page 15 
Contract No.     

159



Ordinance No. __________ 

Exhibit “A” 
 

SCHEDULE OF RATES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 
Contract No.     

160



Ordinance No. __________ 

Exhibit “B” 
 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE 
 

Page 17 
Contract No.     

161



- - 

PBEDucEff 

Wm. BlaneharB & Assoc. 
F. 0 ,  Box 308 
Grenbury, T O X ~ Z J  7 6 0 4 8  

I&02-456-!396 - A ~ e ,  Paul Fire b m r i n o  fna. Co.--. 
C W A N Y  I 

C h a s -  BbQncusa, &a We h n t  rt, 
IRC . L BCS S k b g l ~ P c r + t i e s ,  &LC, eta1 
3Q30 9 .  T e x a n  A v e .  . . - - - . . . - . - .. 
Bryan. FX 7 7 8 0 2  

CERTIFICATE BOLDER P 9  NAMED ADDfTIONaL EMSURED &JETE3 WAIVER OF 
SUBROGATION. ALL PERSONB AND ORGAMTZAXIQNS ARE PRDTECTED AQ PROVXDEB 
BY WRITgEN COBJTRBCT. 

~ O U L O  AUV a mc A- mrnm RXIUD ( 1 ~  cuaum OCCQ~C WE 

C I T Y  O F  COLLEGE STATION, ITS m ~ n r r 0 ~ 1  mw, rm mu* u w ~ m  W ~ L  CNDEAVORTQ WL 

OFPICInLS , EMPLOYEES & VOLUNTEEREI m v s ~ ~ l m  NOTIQ m me mmmaw noincl~  turn w ~I(L LBT, 

p.0- aox 9960 ~ ~ l r ~ * ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ r n w r o m m c r ; n u o r p o s r m a ~ ~ ~ ~ l a n ~ n  

162



Ad:OWbbbb CERTIFICATE 
PRODUCW 

C r a v e ~ 1 9 / W ~ ~ ~ e a  6 Company 
P. 0 .  DOX 41328 
Hou~ton TX 77241-1328 

--I.-.. - , " Y ,  " " I  " 8  

?HIS C P R T i F l c R n  IS ISSUED AS A M A U E R  OF INFORMA~ION 
QNLY AND CQMFERB NO RlQtlTB UPON THECERTPlCATe 

1 ALTER THE COVERAQEAFFORDED BY THE POLICE8 BELOW, I 

n '  713-690-6020 
-. - .- . . . - . . . . . - -. . . - 

6FR:-N& h 4 f i V  IN1 R'' 

t?m:FM bic-x.-ATK -. . . . - - - . . . - 

AaL >WrlEI xmjr C(b'IL. IMCP 
::;I r01.1 rr: WTC,: Il W Yd4 ..iW 

l l i l  L W l l  Atlll, 

. - - - . . . . .- . . l ~ ~ ' + I ; l v ~ ~ 4 ~ ~  
(1% w a d )  

uOc~~~n( l t j  UF ;IPEW\TIJW I L U ~ A M C  1 VWlrYES I EXCLVIIUNi a , E D  BY ENWR2€M€t&T I SPGLXL PRUVCICR(S 

Co Employcco of O6A Paztncrc and CCAA, LLC aze inourcd under the rclcrcncod 
policy. Wltarnato Employer B ~ d o  Applies. Wnivor 01 Subrogation In favor Of 
thc CoxtaPac~tc Holdcr with rcspccts to Workcr s Compensation a6 rcquircd by 
writton contract Alternate employer: cr ty  of college strrtlon. 

I 
CERTIFICATE HOLDER tANCELLaTlON 

C i t y  of College S t a t i o n  
At.tn: Susan IMPOX NO a a ~ ~ a ~ n m  CR LmLm OF ANY HND UPON THE W : U R ~  m *GENE on 
P 0 .  Box 9960 
collogo Station TX 77842 

I I I 

ACORD 25 (2WlAB) Q ACORD CORPORATIDN 1989 

163



 

September 27, 2007 
 

Consent Agenda Item 2j 
 

 Claims Administration Services 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Julie O’Connell, Director of Human Resources                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on renewal agreement of 
Third Party Claims Administration with A S & G Claims Administration, Inc. for an annual 
expenditure of $50,000. Anticipated workers compensation claims for FY 08 are $328,000 
and anticipated liability claims for FY 08 are $300,000. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends the renewal of the fifth (and final) year option 
with A S & G Claims Administration, Inc. for the City’s third party claims administration and 
authorization to pay up to $628,000 for anticipated workers compensation and liability 
claims.  
 
Summary:  The City of College Station is Self- Insured which requires the service of claims 
adjustment on all workers compensation claims and significant liability claims. A S & G 
Claims Administration, Inc. has provided excellent customer service while continuing to 
assist the City in reducing the costs of the claims administration. Renewal is effective 
October 1, 2007. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available in the FY 08 budget in the Property 
Casualty Fund and the Workers Compensation Fund. Expenditures for the claims 
administration are the same as last year. 
 
Attachments: Renewal Agreement Letter  
 
 
 

 

164



165



166



 

September 27, 2007 
 

Consent Agenda 2k 
 

Excess Liability/Workers Compensation Coverage and Property, Boiler & 
Machinery, Mobile Equipment, Crime and EMT.  

 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Julie O’Connell, Director of Human Resources                         
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of policy 
renewal for Excess Liability and Workers Compensation to Star National Insurance Company 
for $261,243; policy renewal for Property/Boiler & Machinery to Affiliated FM for $95,600; 
policy renewal for Crime coverage to Federal Insurance Company for $4,522; and policy 
renewal for EMT Liability to Western World Insurance Company for $5,077. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of each of these policy renewals.   
   
Summary: The City of College Station requested our Broker, McGriff Seibels & Williams of 
Texas, Inc. to obtain renewal quotes from our present insurance carriers. The renewal 
quotes obtained are for the same coverage as in the prior fiscal year. Our Excess Liability 
and Workers Compensation coverage is in the third year of a three year rate guarantee. The 
City’s Property, Boiler & Machinery coverage, Crime coverage and Emergency Medical 
Technician Liability coverage are straight renewals without any rate guarantees. This 
renewal is effective October 1, 2007. 
 
Excess Liability & Workers Compensation insurance covers Auto liability, General liability, 
Directors and Officials, Law Enforcement liability, Employment Practices liability and 
Workers’ Compensation claims. Property, Boiler & Machinery insurance covers Buildings, 
Contents, Fine Arts, Valuable Papers & Records, Extra Expense and Motor Vehicle Coverage 
including Mobile Equipment. Crime insurance covers Employee Theft coverage, Premises 
Coverage, Transit coverage, Depositors Forgery coverage and Computer Theft & Fund 
Transfer Fraud. 
EMT Liability covers bodily injury, property damage, or personal injury arising out of a 
“Professional Incident”.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available in the proposed FY08 budget in the 
Property Casualty Fund and Workers Compensation Fund for these expenditures. The Excess 
Liability and Worker’s Compensation policy renewal represents an increase of 6% over last 
year’s premium; however the City’s payroll increased 6%. The Property, Boiler & Machinery 
policy renewal represents a slight increase of 1.6% over last year’s premium; while our 
values increased by $4,271,247. There are no changes on the Crime or EMT Liability policy 
renewals except for a slight reduction due to a change in the State Tax Stamping Office. 
 
Attachments: Letter from Broker with recommendations dated September 20, 2007. 
 
 
 
 

 

167



168



 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2L   

Annual Exemptions 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Discussion and possible action to approve purchase requests for FY'08, items 
exempt from competitive bidding as described more fully in Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 
252.022; and other expenditures for interlocal contracts or fees mandated by state law that are 
greater than $50,000. 
  
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the purchase requests as listed. 
 

Summary: The following are purchases that are exempt from competitive bidding in accordance 
with Local Government Code 252.022 (a) (7) (A); and other purchases greater than $50,000 
available from one source.  

The following purchase requests are available from only one source and thereby exempt from 
competitive bidding in accordance with LGC 252.022 (a)(7) (A) Items that are available from only 
one source because of patents, copyrights, secret processes, or other natural monopolies: 

U.S. Postmaster (postage - IT/Mail) FY08-$110,000; FY07-$110,000 

The following purchase requests are available from one source and thereby exempt from 
competitive bidding in accordance with LGC 252.022 (a)(7) (D) captive replacement parts or 
components for equipment, computer software and hardware maintenance and equipment lease 
and maintenance: 

EnRoute Emergency System LLC (formerly GEAC) (application software 
upgrade/maintenance - Public Safety System) FY08-$130,000; FY07-$126,500 

Ikon Office Solutions (copier maintenance/lease) FY08-$80,000; FY07-$50,000 

The following purchase requests are considered professional services and thereby exempt from 
competitive bidding in accordance with LGC 252.022 (a)(4) procurement for personal, professional, 
or planning services: 

Bickerstaff, Heath Attorneys (electric issues including condemnation) FY08-$50,000; 
FY07-$70,000 

Bickerstaff, Heath Attorneys (water issues including land purchase & condemnation) 
FY08-$500,000; FY07-$150,000 

Bickerstaff, Heath Attorney (Risk/General Liability) FY08-$25,000; FY07-$25,000 

Mathews & Freeland (CCN/groundwater issues) FY08-$150,000; FY07-$150,000 

Coats, Rose Ryman and Lee Attorneys (land acquisition lawsuit) FY08-$15,000; 
FY07-$50,000 

Bickerstaff, Heath Attorneys (BVSWMA condemnations)  FY08-$75,000; FY07-
$75,000 

Bruchez, Goss Attorneys (BVSWMA condemnations) FY08-$50,000; FY07-$50,000 

169



 

CME Testing (geotechnical testing services) FY08-$50,000; FY07-$70,000 

Buchanan Soil Mechanics (geotechnical testing services) FY08-$50,000; FY07-
$60,000 

Joe Orr Surveying (land surveying)  FY08-$100,000 FY07-$65,000 

JMP (land agent/acquisition) FY08-$50,000; FY07-$65,000 

Jo Ann Mikeska Sette dba J. Mikeska & Co. (real estate appraisal services) FY08-
$100,000; FY07-$100,000 

 
The following purchases are available from one source and thereby exempt from competitive 
bidding in accordance with LGC 252.022 (a) (7) (c) gas, water, and other utility service. 

City of Bryan (utilities for Wells 1-7, two shallow wells & Sandy Point Pump Station) 
FY08-$1,050,000; FY07-$950,000 

City of Bryan (purchase or water for well #4) FY08-$120,000; FY07-$90,000 

Verizon (local phone services) FY08-$150,000; FY07-$150,000 

 
The following purchases are made pursuant to interlocal agreements with various agencies:  
 

ILA with City of Bryan for Library services: 

Bryan Public Library (operational expenses for CS Public Library) FY08-$840,301; 
FY07-$817,811 

Bryan Public Library (Bryan and College Station book money) FY08-$80,000; FY07-
$80,000 

ILA with the Texas Building and Procurement Commission (State Contract): 

AT&T Wireless (formerly Cingular) (DIR)(wireless phone/data)  FY08-$100,000; 
FY07-$100,000 

Office Max (TxMAS)(office supplies) FY08-$150,000; FY07-$100,000 

 
The following purchase requests are for mandated state fees to the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ), and the Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District. 

TCEQ (quarterly disposal and permitting fees - BVSWMA) FY08-$400,000; FY07-
$350,000 

TCEQ (inspections/assessments, permitting fees - W/WW) FY08-$67,500; FY07-
$50,000 

BV Groundwater Conservation District FY08-$175,000; FY07-$150,000 

 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are either available and budgeted for each of the listed 
purchase requests in the fiscal year 2007-2008 budget in various funds of the City or if necessary 
will be made available by proposing an appropriate budget amendment or contingency transfer. 
 
Attachments:  None 
 

170



 

 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2m 

Copying and Printing Services 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of 
expenditures related to copying and printing services to Copy Max ($50,000) and Tops 
Printing ($25,000) through our Interlocal Agreement with CSISD and Copy Corner 
($50,000) and Newman’s Printing ($25,000) through our Interlocal Agreement with TAMU. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of expenditures to Copy Max ($50,000) 
and Tops Printing ($25,000) through our Interlocal Agreement with CSISD and Copy Corner 
($50,000) and Newman’s Printing ($25,000) through our Interlocal Agreement with TAMU. 
 
Summary: The College Station Print Shop will close effective October 1, 2007.  Staff is 
developing a request for proposal(s) for copying and printing services.  Between October 1, 
2007 and before a contract can be awarded by Council, staff recommends we utilize existing 
contracts approved by CSISD and TAMU through established interlocal agreements.  CSISD 
has awarded printing services contracts to Copy Max and Tops Printing; TAMU has awarded 
contracts to Copy Corner and Newman’s Printing.  Staff anticipates that it could take 3-4 
months to establish specifications, solicit proposals, evaluate proposals received and make 
recommendations to Council.  The proposed expenses are estimates only and are for this 
interim period.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in each Department for 
copying and printing services. 
 
Attachments: 

1. CSISD award letter to Copy Max and pricing summary 
2. CSISD award letter to Tops Printing and pricing summary 
3. TAMU purchase order to Copy Corner  
4. TAMU purchase order to Newman’s Printing 

 
 

171



172



OfficeMax.

i~ ~PRESS
PRINT & DOCUMENT SERVICES

Sample Inventory - Specifications identified are not necessarily identical to the samples providE
This also does not include some items that were not specified as to quanity, size, paper type.

IEstimatedTotalSpend J$ 82,981.50I
Does not include offset printed items ie business cards/Letterhead/Envelopes
Does not Include vended bindery ie die cutting and perforating

(EStimatedTotal Spend + 25% J$103,726.88 I
25% adjustment is due to various estimates in auxiliary costs ie thermal spine imprint

ation
iable to CSISD.

p for City College
od to be determined.

B
A numberof Total

All print items will be paid for at Costper Impression Multiply A
time of delivery. impression s xB
example 8.5x11 20# white SS 0.025 100 2.5
11x17 20# white OS 0.12 100 12
BW
BW 8.5x11 20# white SS 0.025
BW 8.5x11 20# white OS 0.05
BW 8.5x14 20# white SS 0.035
BW 8.5x14 20# white OS 0.07
BW 11x17 20# white SS 0.06
BW 11x17 20# white OS 0.12
8.5 11 AstroBright 24# 0.04
8.5 x 11 Card Cover 80# SS 0.09
Color
8.5x11 24# white SS 0.34
8.5x11 24# white OS 0.68
8.5x14 24# white SS 0.49
8.5x14 24# white OS 0.98
11x17 24# white SS 0.79
11x17 24# white OS 1.58
8.5x11 Card Cover 80# SS 0.44
8.5x11 Card Cover 80# SS GI( 0.83
11x17 Card Cover 80# SS Glo 1.6
Saddle Stitch Booklet made 0.2
Machine Fold 0.02
Folding by hand 0.05
8.5 x 11 pastel 0.03
8.5 x 11 Astrobrite 0.04
8.5 x 14 Pastel 0.08
8.5 x 14 Astro 0.085
11 x 17 24# white 0.14
8.5 x 11 12 pt 0.49
12 x 18 32 # white 1.75

This offer is being made in the interest of Drovidina Citv Colleae St
opertunity for outsourced Drintina and CODVwork at discount availi
Priceina is aood for 90 Davs. Business review to discuss next stel
Station October 2007. Price may continue after that time for a peril

173



174



Tops Printing

UNIT UNIT PRICE

1 Letterhead Envelope, Color #10, 24 lb.wht. wove, maroon ink, 500 per order Each $0.090
2 1000 per order Each $0.064
3 1500 per order Each $0.053

4
Letterhead Envelope, Maroon  #10 with Window, 24 lb. wht. wove window, 500 per order Each $0.092

5 1000 per order Each $0.066
6 1500 per order Each $0.055
7 Letterhead Stationery,  25% cotton water mark, maroon ink , 500 per order Each $0.098
8 1000 per order Each $0.071
9 1500 per order Each $0.061

10 Business Card with Logo, 1-Color, Matte Finish, flat ,500 per order Each $0.058
11 1000 per order Each $0.035
12 Business Card with Logo, 1-Color, Glossy Finish, flat , 500 per order Each $0.058
13 1000 per order Each $0.035
14 Business Card with Logo, Maroon brite wht. fiber White 80#, Matte, 500 per order Each $0.050
15 1000 per order Each $0.031

16
Student Code of Conduct, 48-50 pages, 11 x 17 page size folded 8 1/2 x 11 finish size, 60 

lb. wht. with 65# covers, saddle stitch and trim Each $0.712

17
Student Code of Conduct in Spanish, 48-50 pages, 11 x 17 page size folded, 8 1/2 11 

finish, 60 lb. wht., with 65# covers Each $1.650

18
School Menus 8 1/2 x 14 60# Astrobright front & back, 1600 per order, three times a year 

for intermediate schools Each $0.061

19
School Menus 8 1/2 x 14 60# Astrobright front & back,  5000 per order three times a year 

for elementary schools Each $0.052

20
Note Pads with letterhead, one color 4 1/4 x 5 ½, 50 sheets per pad, maroon ink 20# white, 

10 pads per order Pad $2.100

21
Note Pads with letterhead, one color 8 ½ x 5 ½, 50 sheets per pad, maroon ink 20#, 10 

pads per order Pad $2.200

22
Headstart Journals, 8 1/2 x 11 blank. spiral 20# white w/65# cover, coil spirals, one time 

print Each $1.450

23
High School Course Description Guide, 11 x 17 page size, white folded, 72 pages 65 # 

cover, saddle stitch and trim, one time print Each $0.984
24 Student Hall Pass  3 ¼ x 5 ¼ 20# green, cut and padded, 400 per order Pad $0.810
25 800 per order Pad $0.620
26 1200 per order Pad $0.557

27
Student Handbook, 11 x 17 page size folded 56 pages, 24# paper white with cover 65# 

maroon ink , saddle stitch and trim, one time printing for High School Each $0.662

28
Student Handbook, 11 x 17 page size folded, 60 # white inside, 65# cover front and 

backed/staple, 24 pages, two prints of   700 for the two middle schools Each $0.637

29
Student Handbook - 11 x 17 page size 60# White, Cover 65#, 28 pgs, saddle stitch and 

trim, two prints of 700 for the two intermediate schools Each $0.814

30
Student Handbook front & back fold/staple, 11 x17page size, 60# paper, 65# cover , 20 

pages, one time printing of 700 for six elementary schools Each $0.644
31 Task card 20# paper, 8 1/2 x 5 1/2, buff, front only,  5000 per order Each $0.016

32
Counselors Student packet mail out, 8 ½ x 11 page size, 20#, two sides, various colors, one 

time print of 2700 packets for High School Pk $0.328

33
Counselor registration sheets 20#, 8 1/2 x 14 white, front and back, one time order for High 

School (9) individual sheets, no fold Each $0.038

34
Guidance Request front only, 20# pink, cut and padded, 3 1/4 x 5, 50 sheets per pad, 30 

pads per order Pad $1.400
 150 pads per order Pad $0.960

36
Post Cards with return address, 5 1/2 x 4 1/4,  astrobright 65# (for report cards, open 

house, senior info, vehicle reg.), 100 per order Each $0.165
37 500 per order Each $0.048
38 1500 per order Each $0.031
39 2500 per order Each $0.028
40 Nurses daily log 8 ½ x 11 front, white 20#, padded, 100 sheets per pad, 100 per order Pad $2.100
41 School Nurse Letter 8 1/2 x 11 - 20# Orchid 2 sided, 100 per order Each $2.360
42 Immunization Letter 8 ½ x 11 front only, 20# white, 500 per order Each $0.036
43 1000 per order Each $0.028

44
Accident/Illness Card 8 1/2 x 5 1/2 front and back,blue,110 lb. card stock,  100 per order Each $0.210

45 500 per order Each $0.064
46 1500 per order Each $0.037
47 Faculty Handbook, 110 pages, one sided 20# bond, 65 # cover,15 tabs for high school Each $4.800

48
Teacher Handbooks 80 pgs 8 1/2 x 11, 20# 3 hole punch, front only, collated slip sheet,  6 

separate orders of 60 for elementary Each $2.400
49 100 per order Each $2.400

50
HS Graduation Program, 11 x 17 page size 70# white royal linen, maroon ink, 16 pages, 

front and back Each $0.432

Awarded Vendors RFB # 7-026

DESCRIPTION
Section I:  General Items 

1175



Tops PrintingAwarded Vendors RFB # 7-026

51
Programs for Choir, Orchestra UIL, 8 ½ x 11, 60# astrobright and astroparche,  6 pages, 

250 per order, Folded in half, saddle stitch with (1) insert
Each $0.396

52 500 per order Each $0.260
53 1500 per order Each $0.160

54
Senior Newsletter, 11 x 17 page size folded, 60# ,black ink, 12 pages, saddle stitch and 

trim, 900 six times per year Each $0.292

55
Tiger Tales 11 x 17 page size folded, 60# black ink, 12 pages, saddle stitch and trim, 2600 

six times per year Each $0.205
56 Flyers, 8 1/2 x 11 various color paper 20#, black ink, front only, 500 per order Each $0.040
57 1000 per order Each $0.030
58 1500 per order Each $0.027

59
Tiger Awards, Maroon Ink  5 1/2 x 8 1/2 - 70# cover, staple and trim, 28 pages, brite white 

fiber, one time print Each $0.659

60 Course Selection Book 68 pgs - 11 x 17 page size, 8 1/2 x 11 finish size - 60# white, 65# 
cover, two separate orders for two middle schools, 800 per campus, one time print Each $1.554

61 Student I.D. Cards 2 1/4 x 3 1/4, cardstock 110# colored Each $0.031

62
Textbook Condition Agreement 1/2 pg. 20# Blue, padded 100 sheet per pad for High 

School Pads $1.650

63
Student Directory 11 x 17 page size - 60 # White, 65# Cover 20 pgs,  folded, saddle stitch 

and trim, black ink, two separate prints of 650 for each intermediate schools Each $0.665

64
Student Directory 11 x 17 page size - 60 # White, 65# Cover 36 pgs,folded saddle stitch 

and trim, black ink , six separate prints of 700 for the six elementary schools Each $0.969

65 Report Cards Index front & back fold, 110 lb. manila 8 ½ x 14 Kindergarten & 1st grade, tri-
fold, six separate orders of 400 for each of the elementary schools Plans $0.233

66 Report Cards Index front & back fold, 110 lb. manila 8 ½ x 14 Kindergarten & 1st grade, tri-
fold, six separate orders of 400 for each of the elementary schools, Spanish, 50 per order Plans $0.640

67
Campus Improvement Plan 70 pgs 20# 8 1/2 x 11 - tan, loose one sided 3 hole punch, 

collated with 60# cover, plastic spiral binders 3 hole punch and collated or collated with 60# 
cover, plastic spiral binders Each $3.450

68
Course Selection Book 14 pgs - 11 x 17 page size, 8 1/2 x 11 finished - 60# white, 65# 

cover Each $0.405
69 Copies, Black and White, 1-Sided,  8 1/2 x 11 20# Each $0.028
70 Copies, Black and White, 2-Sided,  8 1/2 x 11 20# Each $0.050
71 Copies, Black and White, 1-Sided,  8 1/2 x 17 20# Each $0.060
72 Copies, Black and White, 2-Sided,  8 1/2 x 17 20# Each $0.100
73 Copies, Color, 1-Sided, 8 1/2” x 11” Each $0.290
74 Copies, Color, 2-Sided, 8 1/2” x 11” Each $0.490
75  Copies, Black and White, 1 sided 8 ½ x 14, 20# Each $0.028
76 Copies, Black and White, 2 sided 8 ½ x 14 , 20# Each $0.050
79 Copies,Black and White 1 sided 11 x 17, 20# Each $0.600
80 Copies, Black and White,  1 sided 11 x 17, 20# Each $0.100

2176



81 8 ½ x 11 2-Part NCR 3-Part NCR 4-Part NCR 5 Part-NCR
Qty
100 $21.00 $25.00 $31.00 $37.00
500 $64.00 $95.00 $122.00 $148.00
1000 $117.00 $159.00 $211.00 $249.00
5000 $396.00 $564.00 $754.00 $940.00

82 5 ½ x 8 ½ 2-Part NCR 3-Part NCR 4-Part NCR 5 Part-NCR
Qty
100 $20.00 $24.00 $30.00 $36.00
500 $46.00 $60.00 $73.00 $87.00
1000 $70.00 $98.00 $125.00 $151.00
5000 $314.00 $421.00 $547.00 $673.00

83 4 ¼ x 5 1/2 2-Part NCR 3-Part NCR 4-Part NCR 5 Part-NCR
Qty
100 $20.00 $24.00 $30.00 $36.00
500 $33.00 $42.00 $51.00 $60.00
1000 $49.00 $68.00 $87.00 $105.00
5000 $241.00 $319.00 $402.00 $490.00

84 4 ½ x 3 1/2 2-Part NCR 3-Part NCR 4-Part NCR 5 Part-NCR
Qty
100 $20.00 $24.00 $30.00 $36.00
500 $33.00 $42.00 $51.00 $60.00
1000 $49.00 $68.00 $87.00 $105.00
5000 $241.00 $339.00 $421.00 $498.00

All, add'l services:see bid
All available

$50.00 per hr
Webb not available

22 yrs
Yes
24 hrs - 7 working days
All
See bid
No
No
None
Freight on specialty items, cups, mugs, pencils
No

Yes
M-F 7:30 - 5:30, after hr drop offs by appt

Net 30, 2% discount if paid within 10 days from invoice 

Business Days:

Multiple Locations:
All items be furnished as

ordered without 

Minimum ordering:
Shipping Charges:

Normal Turnaround time:
Supported Platforms:

Online ordering:

Paper Capabilities:
Catalog:

Catalog Discount for all
Terms:

Years of Business:
24 Hours Turnaround:

Document Solutions:
Special Materials:

Design:
Type of Inhouse Printing

Section IV  NCR and Padded Forms
Tops Printing

Finishing Products:

177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



September 27, 2007 
Consent Item No. 2N  

Funding Agreement with Research Valley Partnership 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a funding 
agreement between the City of College Station and the Research Valley Partnership 
for FY08 in the amount of $293,287. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the funding agreement. 
 
Summary:  As part of the 2007-2008 budget process the City Council approved 
funding for the Research Valley Partnership in the amount of $293,287.  This funding 
is for the provision of economic development services for the area. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The funds for this agreement are budgeted and 
available in the 2007-2008 General Fund and Economic Development Fund in the 
total amount of $293,287.  $243,287 is to be used for the operations and 
maintenance of the Research Valley Partnership next year and is funded from the 
General Fund.  $50,000 is to be used for marketing efforts of the Research Valley 
Partnership and is funded from the Economic Development Fund. 
 
Attachments: 
Funding Agreement will be made available prior to the meeting.   

196



 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2O 

Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau Budget and Funding Agreement 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of 
the Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB); and presentation, possible action 
and discussion on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and the Brazos 
Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau for FY08 in the amount of $1,060,000. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the CVB budget and the funding 
agreement for FY07.   
 
Summary:  As part of the 2007-2008 budget process the City Council approved funding for 
the Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau in the amount of $1,060,000.  This 
funding is for the provision of tourism related services. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The funds for this agreement are budgeted and available 
in the 2006-2007 Hotel Tax Fund Budget.  A total of $1,060,000 is to be used for the 
operations of the Convention and Visitors Bureau next year.   
 
State law requires that the City Council adopt the budget of any organization that is to be 
funded through the Hotel Tax Fund.     
 
 
Attachments:  The following documents will be made available prior to the meeting:  

1. Brazos Valley Convention and Visitors Bureau Budget 
2. Funding Agreement  

 

197



 

September 27, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Competitive Matters Resolution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of Electric Utilities                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a competitive 
matters resolution relating to the College Station electric utility.  The current resolution is 
being changed to allow Customer Service Representatives more flexibility in discussing 
account information with utility customers.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
 
Summary:   The attached resolution will replace the current Resolution No. 12-14-2000-
13.10, approved on December 14, 2000, dealing with competitive matters for the Electric 
Utility.  The wording has been changed from the original resolution to clarify information 
relating to “Wholesale energy and billing information” and to remove individual customer 
rate/billing/account information from being considered a competitive matter.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  N/A  
 
 
Attachments: 
1.  Competitive Matters Resolution 
 
 

 

198



RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION DEFINING “COMPETITIVE MATTER” FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PROTECTING THE COMPETITIVE POSITION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION ELECTRIC UTILITY DEPARTMENT. 
 
WHEREAS, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE Section 552.131 provides for an 
exception to disclosure for public power utilities on competitive matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, “competitive matter” is a utility-related matter that the public power 
utilities’ governing body in good faith determines by a majority vote is related to 
the public power utilities’ competitive activity, including commercial information, 
and would, if disclosed, give advantage to competitors or prospective 
competitors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, a home-rule municipal 
corporation in the State of Texas, owns and operates its municipal electric utility 
department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend and clarify the previous Resolution 
No. 12-14-2000-13.10, approved on December 14, 2000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, as the governing body 
of the municipally owned electric utility, desires to adopt this Resolution defining 
“competitive matter” for the purpose of protecting the competitive position of its 
electric utility; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council of College Station, Texas, after review of the 

issues and Section 552.131 of the TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, 
hereby makes a good faith determination that the following 
categories of information are competitive matters, the disclosure of 
which would give advantage to competitors or potential competitors: 

 
A. Financial information, including but not limited to: 

 
1. Business and facilities plans. 
2. Capital improvement studies. 
3. Multi-year revenue and expense projections. 
4. Business forecasts. 

199



RESOLUTION NO. _______________              Page 2 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\vcasares\LOCALS~1\Temp\Resolution .docc 
09/18/07 

5. Strategic Plans, studies and supporting documents. 
6. Cost of service studies. 
7. Rates and pricing strategies and targets. 
8. Internal business performance information. 
9. Wholesale energy and billing information. 
10. Internal cost assignment and allocation methodology. 
11. Financial planning, sensitivity and scenario analysis. 
12. Fuel pricing and usage. 
13. Fuel hedging/risk management strategies. 

 
B. Purchasing and Contract Information – Power Supply, 

including but not limited to: 
 

1. Power supply pricing, proposals and contracts. 
2. Purchasing information, including bidders list, 

specifications, bids, proposals, contracts and bid 
results. 

3. Negotiations, modeling, data, correspondence, drafts 
and memoranda related to negotiations and 
considerations of the above contracts and pricing. 

4. Power sales pricing, proposals and contracts. 
5. Fuel contracts and proposals. 
6. Fuel pricing and usage. 
7. Power purchase contracts and proposals. 
8. Fuel transportation pricing and contracts. 
 

C. Business operations, including but not limited to: 
 

1. Work management studies, system configuration and 
system data. 

2. Benchmarking data, surveys and reports. 
3. Market plans and studies. 
4. Competitive intelligence systems and information. 
5. Product design information. 
6. Cost of service studies. 
7. Internal business performance information. 
8. Wholesale energy and billing information. 
9. Internal cost assignments and allocation method-

ology. 
10. Financial planning, sensitivity and scenario analysis. 
11. Competitive intelligence systems and information. 
12. Product design information. 

200



RESOLUTION NO. _______________              Page 3 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\vcasares\LOCALS~1\Temp\Resolution .docc 
09/18/07 

13. Forecast of sales and revenues. 
14. Contracts or proposals for retail energy sales. 
15. Sales incentive plans. 
16. Strategies, plans, contracts, proposals and budgets 

regarding marketing research. 
17. Strategies, plans, contracts, proposals and budgets 

regarding analysis, sales and marketing and 
promotion of retail products and services, or the 
development of same. 

18. Research regarding energy loads. 
19. Corporate business plans. 
20. Assessments, plans or strategies related to 

acquisition of other utilities. 
21. Strategies, plans or studies regarding debt allocation 

or refunding. 
22. Internal audit reports. 
23. Consulting reports. 
24. Financial, accounting or statistical data submitted 

confidentially to industry groups or other third parties 
regarding competitive matters. 

25. Alliance, and joint venture and aggregation of 
information for power generation. 

 
D. Competitive Customer Information 

 
1. Customer lists. 

 
PART 2: Information or records of the City of College Station, in any media, 

that are reasonably related to a Competitive Matter as defined in 
PART 1 above are excepted from the disclosure requirements of 
Chapter 552 of the TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. 

 
PART 3: The City Council of the City of College Station reserves the right to 

supplement or amend the list of Competitive Matters set out in this 
Resolution from time to time by addition or deletion or case-by-case 
determinations as may be appropriate and desirable in order to 
continue to operate and manage the City of College Station electric 
utility in a manner consistent with the interests of the City and its 
electric customers, and with the protections authorized by TEXAS 
GOVERNMENT CODE Section 552.131. 

 
PART 4: Notwithstanding any enumeration otherwise, this Resolution shall 

not deem as Competitive Matter any matter excluded from the 

201



RESOLUTION NO. _______________              Page 4 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\vcasares\LOCALS~1\Temp\Resolution .docc 
09/18/07 

definition of “competitive matter” described in Section 552.131(a)(3) 
(A-M) of the TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. 

 
PART 5: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 
 

ADOPTED this the ______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      _______________________________ 

    Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Harvey Cargill
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
__________________________ 
City Attorney 

202



 

 
September 27, 2007 

Consent Agenda  
Gateway Grant Revisions  

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Peggy Calliham, Community Relations Manager  
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding minor revisions 
to the flow chart of the Gateway Grant Policy, approved May 24, 2007.   
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff is seeking approval of the revisions  
 
 
Summary:   

• New Gateway Policy was approved by City Council on May 24, 2007 
 and supersedes the policy that was written in 1999. 
• Staff has since identified some minor procedural issues and responsibilities between 

departments.    
• These  have been addressed in this revised policy and do not change the basics of 

the policy other than some staff procedures.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  N/A 
 
 
Attachments:   Revised Gateway Policy 
      Resolution       
 
 

 

203



 
GATEWAY GRANT POLICIES 

Proposed revisions 7/13/07 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
College Station is committed to aiding registered neighborhood associations in developing 
attractive entrances into their neighborhoods, in order to promote the City and utilize citizen 
participation in making College Station a better place to live.  
 
The improvement of these entrances or gateways should only serve to better enhance the 
aesthetic value of our community and strengthen its natural character. 
 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
1. Subdivision or Neighborhood Gateway - A point of entrance or means of access into either 

a subdivision or neighborhood marked by plantings, signage and other decorative accents.  
 
2. Subdivision - as defined in Chapter 9, Section 3, of the City of College Station Code of 

Ordinances. The division of a lot, tract, or parcel of land into two or more lots or sites for the 
purpose of sale, division of ownership or building development.  

 
3. Neighborhood - an area of a community with characteristics that distinguish it from other 

areas and that may include distinct ethnic or economic characteristics, housing types, 
schools, or boundaries defined by physical barriers, such as major highways and railroads or 
natural features, such as rivers. 

 
4. Association- Homeowners Association or Neighborhood Association as defined below.   
 
5. Homeowners' Association (HOA)-  a homeowners association is an organization comprised 

of all owners of units, other than a condominium association, in a development in which 
individual owners share common interests and responsibilities for costs and upkeep of 
common open space or facilities.  

 
6. Neighborhood Association (NA) - an organization made up of residents and property 

owners within a self-defined boundary, having elected officers and operating under by-laws 
to fulfill a civic function.   

1
204



 
7. Private Improvement in the Public Right-of-way Permit (PIP)  
 A PIP permit is required under Chapter 3, Section 2 of the City of College Station Code of 

Ordinances for any improvements, as defined by code, that are placed and maintained in the 
City's right-of-way by a private entity. 

 
8. Right-Of-Way As set out by the City of College Station Code of Ordinances Chapter 3,            
 Section 2-D a Right-of-way means the surface of, and the space above and below a public 
 street, road, highway, freeway, land, path, public way or place, alley, court, boulevard, 
 parkway, drive, or other easement on or hereafter held by the City (including any street, as 
 defined, which is acquired by eminent domain) for the purpose of public travel and shall 
 include other easements or rights-of-way now or hereafter held by the City or  in which the 
 City has an interest (including any easements or rights-of-way  acquired by eminent domain) 
 which shall, with their proper use and meaning, entitle the City and a utility to use thereof for 
 the purpose of installing facilities, and other property as may ordinarily be necessary and 
 pertinent to a utility system 
 
 
SECTION I:  POLICIES 
 
A.  GATEWAY POLICY 

The City of College Station is committed to developing attractive gateways, as funding 
allows, into the community as a whole and will work diligently with Homeowners' 
Associations and Neighborhood Associations interested in developing and maintaining 
gateways into their neighborhoods and/or subdivisions. 

 
B.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. Purpose 
The following policies are principles and procedures to be followed by City of 
College Station staff in executing the gateway grant program.  These policies are 
intended to establish consistency and coherence in the implementation of gateway 
development. 
 

2. No Contract Created 
a. Neither this policy nor any application for City funds shall constitute a contract 

that prohibits or restricts the City’s right to withhold funds for any gateway 
development. 

b. The policies and procedures contained within this document shall be available for 
review and inspection upon request. 

 
3. Gateway Records 

a. Neighborhood and Community Relations staff will maintain all records relating to 
Gateway grant administration.  

b. Information contained in the files for the Gateway program is a matter of public 
record. 

2
205



 
4. Amendment of Policies 

The Policies contained within this document may be changed by the City Council.  
Changes to this document will be made available to the general public. 

 
C.  ELIGIBILITY 
 

1. Eligibility Policy 
 Neighborhood and Community Relations (NCR) staff will be responsible for 

determining gateway grant eligibility. The Design Review Board will serve as the 
final point of review and the NCR staff will award the grants. 

 
2. Homeowners' Associations and Neighborhood Associations  
 Any Association within the incorporated City Limits of College Station, Texas, which 

is registered in the City's Neighborhood Partnership Program, is eligible for gateway 
funding.  Sixty percent (60%) of the members of the Association must sign the 
application form.    

    
3. Developers 
 Developers are not eligible for funding. 
 

D. FUNDING 
 

1. City Council will determine the amount budgeted for the gateway grant program for 
each budget year.  Once budgeted funds are depleted, applications not awarded will 
be held pending until the next fiscal year and will be given priority over new 
applicants. 

 
2. The City of College Station will provide a 50%, monetary only, match of up to 

$7,500 per application for use by the applicant in the development of their gateway or 
corridor.  The award of grant money is contingent upon availability of funds.  
Applicants may apply no more than once in a five-year period. 

 
3. The Neighborhood and Community Relations staff will be responsible for 

prioritization of applications for grant funds.  Prioritization will take into 
consideration, but will not be limited to the following:  
a. Date of Application, 
b. Completeness of Application, and 
c. Amount of funds requested. 

 
E. LOCATION 
 

1. Private Property 
 Gateway development will be allowed on Private Property.  The development shall be 

clearly depicted on a layout plan which will be reviewed by City staff prior to 
approval of grant funds.  In order for grant approval, the fee simple owner of said 
property must sign an agreement indemnifying the City.  

 

3
206



2. City Right-of-Way 
 Gateway development will be allowed in the City Right-Of-Way subject to the 

requirements of Building Regulations Chapter 3, Section 2, of the City of College 
Station Code of Ordinances.  If any portion of the proposed project is planned in the 
right-of-way, a Private Improvement in the Public Right-of-Way Permit must be 
issued before work begins and before the first dispersal of grant funds will be 
released. 

 
F. MAINTENANCE 

 
1. The Association shall have the responsibility to provide for the operation, repair and 

maintenance of the project funded by the grant whether the grant funds are expended 
on improvements on common property, private property, public right-of-way or 
easement. 

 
2. The City shall have access at any time without liability when on official business.  

The City retains the right to remove any obstructions, failed landscaping, or objects in 
disrepair.  In the event that the City must remove the material funded by the grant, the 
Association will be assessed all costs of removal.    

 
G. GATEWAY MATERIAL 

All materials used for gateway improvements must comply with the City of College 
Station's Code of Ordinances.  
 

 
SECTION II:  PROCEDURES 
 
A. THE APPLICATION 

For consideration of a gateway grant, a registered Association must submit to the 
Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator, all specific instruments cited 
below: 
1. Completed application form containing sixty percent (60%) of the members of the 

Association’s signatures. 
2. Preliminary layout and design for the project, and 
3. Estimated cost of the entire gateway project. 
 

B. PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE 
 

1. Any registered Association interested in applying for a gateway grant will attend a  
pre-application conference with Planning and Development staff.  This meeting will 
be coordinated through the Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator.  
The purpose of pre-application conference is to:  
a. Define the scope and responsibilities of the project  
b. Clarify the application, review, and award process, and  
c. Clarify the fund dispersal procedures upon approval.  

 

4
207



  2. Upon completion of the Pre-Application Conference, required development 
 applications with supporting materials must be submitted to the Neighborhood and 
 Community Relations Coordinator.   

  
C. REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION 
   

1. Staff  
City Staff will review applications for completeness and against all applicable City of 
College Station codes and regulations. 
 

2. Design Review Board 
The Design Review Board will determine proposed gateway projects’ compliance 
with the City of College Station’s landscaping, streetscape, signage, and private 
improvement in the public right-of-way regulations as set forth by the Unified 
Development Ordinance.  The Board will forward their decision for funding to the 
Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator. 
 
After City staff and Design Review Board reviews have been completed and any 
necessary changes to the proposal approved, contractors may apply for necessary 
permits for construction.  

 
D.  REIMBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 
  At the completion of construction and final staff review of completed project, paid 

invoices must be submitted to the Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator 
in order for a reimbursement of gateway funds to be released to the Association.  

 
E.   APPEALS 
 

1. All appeals of the application process and/or the Design Review Board's decisions 
shall be made to City Council. 

 
 

5
208



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
FLOW CHART FOR GATEWAY GRANT PROGRAM 

 
1. Must be a neighborhood or homeowners association registered with the City of 

College Station's Neighborhood Partnership Program. Contact Neighborhood and 
Community Relations Coordinator (764-6262) for application materials. 

 
2. Complete the Gateway Grant Application form.  

 
3. Gather the printed names, addresses, and signatures of a minimum of 60% of the 

association's members.  
 

4.  Develop a preliminary design plan for the project with an estimated cost. 
 
5. Return application form, signatures and preliminary plans and estimated costs to the 

Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator, who will then set up a Pre-
Application Conference with the Planning and Development Services office for the 
purpose of: 
 Defining the scope and responsibilities of the project;  
 Clarifying the application, review, and award process; and  
 Clarifying the fund dispersal procedure upon approval. 

 
6. Attend the Pre-Application Committee (PAC) meeting and get direction from city 

staff regarding continuing the process. 
 

7. Submit to the Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator all required 
development applications (fees will apply) and materials for technical review and 
Design Review Board consideration: 
 A Design Review Board Gateway Application and, if applicable,  
 A Private Improvement in the Public Right-of-Way Permit (PIP) application (only 

if the project is in the city's right-of-way). 
 

8. City staff will perform a technical review of the application(s) and present the 
proposal to the Design Review Board when all standards have been met.  Applicant 
attendance at this meeting is highly encouraged. 

 
9. Upon approval of the Design Review Board, the required development and/or 

building permits (e.g. development permit, sign, electrical, irrigation) may be applied 
for by the appropriate contractors to begin construction (fees will apply). 

 
10. When construction/landscaping has been completed, City staff will make an 

inspection.  The Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator will be 
notified when all work for a project has been accomplished according to approved 
plans and successfully completed a final inspection.   

 
11. Grant fund dispersal may be made when a project has completed a successful final 

inspection and a copy of the paid invoice(s) is submitted to the Neighborhood and 
Community Relations Coordinator. 

6
209



 
RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING REVISIONS TO THE GATEWAY GRANT POLICY. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, through its Neighborhood 
Partnership Program, is committed to providing  opportunities for registered Neighborhood or 
Homeowners Associations, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station's annual budget provides funding for approved 
gateways to those neighborhoods, and 
 
WHEREAS, registered Neighborhood and Homeowners Associations may apply and receive 
approval for a match of up to 50% of their expenses, limited to $7,500 per association; now, 
therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: The the City Council hereby approves and adopts the revised Gateway Grant 

Policy, 
 
PART 2: That  the funding for this policy shall be as budgeted from the Neighborhood 

and Community Relations fund.   
 
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.  

 
ADOPTED this 27th day of September, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
CITY SECRETARY     MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
 
_______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Resolution .doc9/20/2007 

210



September 27, 2007 
Consent Item No. 2r 

Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 2 – Water Oversize Participation Request 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion for 
Oversize Participation (OP) for a water line improvement in the Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 
2 being made per City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 9, Subdivision Regulations, Section 9, 
Responsibility for Payment for Installation Costs, 9-A Oversized Participation for a total 
requested City participation of $153,605.50. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
Summary:  Associated with the development of Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 2, the City 
required the construction of a 24 inch water line for the larger City system.  Subsequently, 
the developer’s engineer demonstrated that an 8 inch water line was adequate for the 
developer’s specific development.  This oversized participation request is the construction 
cost difference for upsizing an 8 inch water line to a 24 inch water line for a 1,229 linear 
feet section along William D. Fitch Pkwy. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds for this request are available. 
 
 
Attachments:  
1. Oversize Participation Agreement 
2. Exhibit A - Vicinity Map 
3. Exhibit B – Utility Location Map 
4. Exhibit C – Final Plat 
5. Exhibit D – Engineer’s Estimate and Request Letter 
6. Internal Utility OP Funding Form 
 
 

211



OVERSIZE PARTICIPATlON AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into this day of , 200-, by and 
between the City of CoIIege Station, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (hereinafter 
''CITY"), and BCS Development Company, a Texas corporation (hereinafter "OWNER'"). 

WHEREAS, OWNER owned, subdivided, platted and is developing property within the City of 
ColIege Scation, more partjcularly described as Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 2, College Srdion, 
Brazos County, Texas (hereinafter "Property") as depicted and described on the final plat 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on August 2.2007. a vicinity map of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A: and 

WHEREAS, CHAPTER 9 of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINAN~ES requires that 
OWNER conform to CITY'S standards and master plans for streets and utilities and pay for all 
costs of materials and installation of streets, alleys, sidewalks, drainage, and utilities except 
where CITY agrees to participate in the cost of oversi7.e of such improvements; and 

WHEREAS, CITY' s Utility Master Plan requires a twenty four-inch (24") water line; as depicted 
in Exhibit B; and 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed the data, reports and analysis provided by 
OWNER'S engineers and determined that OWNER'S rcqucst for utility par~icipaliun qualifies for 
participation funding under the criteria estabIished in CHAPTER 9, SECTION 9, CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the recitations above and the promises and 
covenants herein expressed, the parties hereby agree as follo~vs: 

I. 
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Approved Plans meals the plans and specifications that meet the requirements of this 
Oversize Participation Agreement, the City of College Station Codes and Ordinances and any 
other applicable laws and that have been submitted to, reviewed and approved by the City of 
College Station Devclopn~ent Services Department, the City Engineer, 

1.2 CITY or College Station means the Cily of College Station. a Texas home rule 
rrlunicipal corporation located at 1 10 1 'I'exas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77840. 

1.3 Certificate of Acceptance: A certificate issued by the City Engineer stating that the 
construction conforms to the plans, specifications and standards contained in or referred to in 
CHAPTER 9 of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDJNANCES. 

Contract No. 
L'. m & ~ m ? n t s  ond Stlings Randy ~ ~ n c h  ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ e t t i n g s l ~ e m ~ o n ] ~  Internet Files!OLK7iOP Agmt.dw 212



1.4 Certificate of Completion/Compliance. As defined in Section 1702 of the 
INTERVATIONAL BUILDING CODE. 2000 Edition, as adopted and amended by thc City Council of 
the City of College Station, a certificate stating that work was done in compliance with approved 
construction docurnentslApprovcd Plans. 

1.5 Effective Date. The date on which this Agreement is signed by the last party whose 
signing makes the Agreement fully executed. 

1.6 Final Completion. The term "Final Completion" means that all the work on the Project 
has been completed, all final punch list items have been inspected and satisfactorily completed, 
all payments to materialmen and subcontractors have been made, all documentation, and all 
closeout documents have been executed and approved by the OWNER. Certificates of 
Completion and Acceplarlce have been issued for the Project, all Reports have been submitted 
and Reporting Requirements have been met, and DEVELOPER has fully performed any other 
requirements contained herein. 

1.7 OWNER means BCS Development Company, a Texas corporation whose principal 
office is located at 4090 S Highway 6 ,  Collcgc Station. Texas 77845. 

1.8 Property means Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 2, College Station, Brazos County, Texas, 
as depicted and described on the iind plat approved bg the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
August 2,2007. a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

1.9 Project means the construction of the water improvements as detailed in Exhibit D 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

11. 
OVERSIZE COST PARTICIATION 

2.1 CITY agrees to cost participate to oversize the improvements as follows: 

1. Thedifferencebetu~eenrheconstructionofatwentyfour-inch(24~~)waterlineand 
a eight-inch (8") water line for a 1,229 linear foot section. 

2.2 The total cost of the project is EIGHT HUNDRED AND EIGHTY THOUSAND, SIX 
HUNDRED AND FORTY AND NOllOO DOLLARS ($880,640.00). CITY agrees to cost 
participate with OWNER for the actual construction cost not to exceed 17.45% or ONE 
HUNDRED AND FIFTY-THREE THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED AND FIVE AND 501100 
DOLLARS ($153,605.50) of the specified improvements, whichever is less. IT CITY'S 
participation exceeds 30% of the Project, then the Project must be competitively bid under 
SECTION 252.002 et seq. of the TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE as amended. If CITY 
participation exceeds 30% uf the Project, CITY shall be responsible for advertising and obtaining 
bids or negotiating proposals for the construction of the Project. OWNER shall pay for all costs 
associated with advertising, printing, and distributing plans and specifications for the Project. 

Contract No. 
C.lJlnruna~nts rind S e ~ r i n g s ' ~  Frcncl~ ~Locai S r f t i ~ ~ g s  I Tempura?y Internet FtkaiULK 7!0P Agmbdoc 213



2.3 OWNER'S engineer's delailed cost estimate of the improvements is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit D. 

2.4 This Agreement and payments made hereunder are contingent upon but not limited to 
each of following terms and conditions: 

( I )  the Final Completion of the improvements in accordance with the 
Approved Plans; 

(2 )  issuance of Certificates of Completion and Acceptance; 
(3) OWNER'S compliance with all CITY Codes, Ordinances and standards 

relating to the Property and its subdivision and development; 
(4) dedication of the Iand for the right-of-way either by plat or by general 

warranty deed; 
( 5 )  a current title report as of the date of land dedication and updated within 

sixty (60) days of  the date of this Agreement; 
( 6 )  lien reIeases or subordinations from all lenders as required by CITY. 

2.5 Oversize Participation Payment. OWNER shall submit the witten application for 
oversize participation payment within thirty (30) days after Final Completion or OWNER shall 
be ineligible to receive the oversize participation payment specified in this Agreement and 
CITY'S obligation to cost participate shall terminate without any liability, Applications may not 
be submitted prior to Final Completion. 

2.6 CITY will pay oversize participation funds in one payment within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of a complete written application for oversize payment from OWNER. 

2.7 Reports, books and other records. OWNER shall make its books and other records 
related to the prqiect available for inspection by CITY. OWNER shall submit to CITY any and 
all information or reports requested to verify thc expenditures submitted for oversize 
participation zligibiIity including but not limited to bid documents, payment applications, 
including any supporting information, cancelled checks, copies of construction and engineering 
documents, as determined by the City Engineer in l i s  sole discretion, for the veritication of the 
cost of the infrastructure detailed in Exhibit D of this Agreement. The submission of these 
reports and information shall be the responsibility of OWNER and shall be certified by 
OWNER'S Licenscd Profcssio~~al Erlgillcer at OWNER'S expense and signed by an authorized 
official of the entity. 

111. 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE 

CITY is a political subdivision of the state and enjoys governmental immunity. By entering 
into this Agreement, CITY does not consent to suit, waive its governmental immunity, or 
the limitations as to damages under the Texas Tort Claims Act. 

OWNER agrees to and shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend CITY and its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of 

3 o f 8  
Contract No. 
C:'Docurmnrs m ~ d  .~e=r'h* French'Lmol b;t.ngs;Temgor~ly Interrler Fdes!OLK7:OP Agmrdclc 214



action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, 
expert fees and attorney's fees, for injury to or death of any person, or for damage to any 
property, or for breach of contract, arising out of or in connection with the work done by 
OWNER under this Agreement, regardless of whether such injuries, death, damages or 
breach are caused in whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party 
indemnified hereunder, or the OWNER 

OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any cIaims of suppliers or 
subcontractors of OWNER for improvements constructed or caused to be constructed hy 
OWNER. 

OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any and all injuries to or claims of 
adjacent property owners resulting from or relating to their performance under this 
Agreement. 

OWNER assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder, and releases, 
relinquishes and discharges CITE', its officers, agents and employees, from all claims, 
demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, including the cost of defense 
therefore, for any injury to or death of any persons and any loss of or damage to any 
property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out of, or in connection with, 
OWNER'S work to be performed hereunder. This release shall apply whether or not said 
claims, demands, and causes or action are covered in whole or in part by insurance and 
regardless of whether or not said claims, demands, and causes of action were caused in 
#bole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party released hereunder, or 
OWNER 

IV. 
PROJECT AND CONSTKUCTION 

4.1 Right to Inspect the Work. CITY may inspect the improvements for compliance with 
the Approvcd Plans during construction. In the event that it is determined by CITY that any of 
the work or materials h i s h e d  is not in strict accordance with the Approved Plans, CITY may 
withhold funds until the nonconforming work conforms to the Approved Plans or terminate this 
Agreement at CITY'S clection without a ~ y  further liability. 

4.2 Independent Contractor. OWNER shall be solely responsible for selecting, 
supervising, and paying the construction contractor(s) ur subcontractors and for complying with 
all applicable laws, including but not limited to all requirements concerning workers 
compensation and construction retainage. 

The parties to this Agreement agree and understand that all employees, volunteers, personnel and 
materials furnished or used by OWNER in the installation of the specified improvements shall be 
the resprrnsjbility of OWNER and shall not bc dcemcd employees or  agents of CITY for any 
purpose. 

Contract No. 
T~'Jocumenfs andS<frrngs1&n& Frerri-h lLoca1 S@trrng~\7emporan~ I j r ~ m e t  F1lrs!oLK7iOP Am! doc 215



4.3 Payment for materials and labor. OWNER shall be solely and excIusively responsible 
for compensating any of its contractors. employees, subcontractors, materidmen and/or suppliers 
of any type or nature whatsoever and insuring that no claims or liens of any type will be filed 
against any property owned by CITY arising out of or incidental to the performance of any 
service performed pursuant to this Agreement. In the event a statutory lien notice is sent to 
CITY, OWNER shall, where no payment bond covers the work, upon witten notice from the 
CITY, immediately obtain a bond at its expense and hold CITY harmless from any losses that 
may result from the filing or enforcement of any said Lien notice. 

4.4 Affidavit of bills paid. Prior to the issumce of a Certificate of Acceptance of the 
improvements, OWNER shall provide CITY a notarized affidavit stating that all bills for labor. 
materials, and incidentals incurred have been paid in full, that any claims from manufacturers, 
materialmer~, and subcontractors have been released, and that there are no claims pending of 
which OWNER has been notified. 

4.5 This Agreement does not alter, amend modify or replace any other requirements 
contained in the Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Code, or other applicable law. 

v. 
GUARANTEE OF PERFORMANCE 

5.1 OWNER shall execute a perfom~ance bond for the construction of the improvements to 
ensure completion of the project and payment of subcontractors. The bonds must be executed by 
a corporate surety in accordance with CHAPTER 2253. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. The bonds 
shall be in the total amount of the contract price as approved by CITY. 

VI. 
GENERAL PROWSIONS 

6.1 Amendments. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless 
and until it is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized rcpreseiitatives of both parties. 

6.2 Choice of law and Venue. This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed 
by thc laws of the State of Texas. Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Bcazos 
County, Texas, United States of America. 

6.3 Authority to enter into Agreement. Each party represents that it has the full power and 
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement. The person executing this Agreement on 
behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enkr  inlv this Agreement. 
The person executing this Agreement on behalf of OWNER represents that he or she is 
authorized to sign on behalf of OWNER and agrees to provide proof of such authorization to the 
CITY upon request. 

6.4 Agreement read. The parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intcnd to 
be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Contract No. 
C:lJocr,mnrs and Settirlgsl&nclly FrenuhiLocalSe~rtngsiTempra~ Irofemet FilesiOLK7IOP Apr .doc  216



6.5 Notice. All notices and documents required herein shall be sent and provided to the 
parties at the addresses and telephone numbers listed below: 

BCS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY City of College Station 
RANDY FRENCH - PRESLDENT City Engineer 
4090 SOUTH HIGHWAY 6 P.O. Box 9960 
COT.,T ,EGE STATION, TX 77845 Collegc Station, TX 77842 

With copies to: 
City Attorney and City Manager 
1 101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, TX 77842 

All notices and documents shall be deemed received when mailed with sufficient postage and 
deposited in a regular mailbox of the United States Post Office. The parties may change 
addresses upon thirty (30) days' written notice sent certified mail, return receipt requested. 

6.6 Assignment. This Agreement and the righ~s and obligations contained herein may not be 
assigned by OWNER without the prior written approval of the CITY. 

6.7 Default. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by OUWER, CITY may terminate 
ent and exercise any and all legal remedies available to i t .  

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

BY: 
Mayor 

ATTES'I ': 

City Secretary 

6 o f 8  
rontract No. 
C. Inonrwn:s and %lttngs'&4 Fwnch;LocnI kttingsi Temporary Intemet Files10LK710P Agm~doc 217



APPROVED: 

City Manager 

Chief Financial Officer 

THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS j 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared RANDY 
FRENCH as PRESIDENT of BCS DEVELOPMEN'L' COMPANY, a Texas limited liability 
company, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, 
and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the bf4day of Q!h br, 2 0 0 3  

l I 

D . . L I ; ~  in and for theutate of Texas 

Contract No. 
r .  Documents and ~ ~ f t r n n g s ~ & ~ &  FrenvhlLocal Svttmgsi.Ternporar?. Insnner Frles!UlK7iOP dgmt.doc 218



THE STATE OF TEXAS 
1 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 

Before me. the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
as Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, known to me 
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the - day of ---* ZOO-. 

Notary Public in and for the Statc of Texas 

Contract No. 
C: Wmmenrs and Sei;ings'&ndy French lLocaf Setti!igs1Temporaly Itl;emt Fs/~s'~OLK?:OP Agmf.doc 219



220



221



222



MGZTRE 8r BROWNE ENGINEFMNGBIJRVEYMG, INC. 

t O O s W ~ D r h % , ~ 1 0 3 * ~ ~ T - n 8 4 5  
(919) 693-3838 0 Fur: (9f9) 693-2554 BmPtl: M c C - V d  

Re; S o n o m a S u b d M r k n , P h e r o z - - ~ ~ ~  

223



I ' .  - 
k MK'LURE & BROWNE ENGINEERINGISURVEYING, INC. 

II 1-- fl 
1008 WoodffPdr Driw, Suite 103 Co- Statian, Texas 77845 

(979) 693-3338 Fur: (979) 493-2554 Emmil: McChrPBrmn@Vmimn~ 

224



225



L . 4  

SONOMA SUBDMSXON 
O F m  8" WATER LINE 

t OvERslm PARTIcIPATlON 
J*&= 

-NO. 10530009 

226



227



228



ProjoFt ~ame: 1 ~ ~ h v ~ e 2 - ~ ~ ~ a r t ~ v ~ ~  I 

- Tbe 24" Waterline along norfh ROW dSW0 par ths b h h  P k  
P m B P O l X l Q l s S ~ b ~  7 - = a  -7 

229



 

September 27, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 

Dove Crossing Parking Restrictions 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, discussion, and possible action on 
consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” to restrict parking on 
Crystal Dove Avenue, Dove Crossing Lane, Dove Landing Avenue, Turtle Dove Trail, and 
Whitewing Lane. 
 
Recommendation(s):     Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amendment. 
 
Summary:  This item will amend Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” by restricting parking on the 
north side of Crystal Dove Avenue, the west side of Dove Crossing Lane, the north side of 
Dove Landing Avenue, the north side of Turtle Dove Trail, and the south side of Whitewing 
Lane. 
 
The Fire Department received several calls regarding cars parked along these streets 
making them difficult for residents, much less an emergency vehicle, to drive down.  Upon 
inspection, the Fire Department confirmed that emergency vehicle access was restricted by 
the parked cars.  This request was discussed at the August meeting of the Traffic 
Management Team, and the team recommended that the parking be removed from the fire 
hydrant side of the street.  
 
A letter was sent to the impacted property owners notifying them of the proposed ordinance 
and when it would be presented to the City Council.  Staff has received several calls and 
emails both in support of and opposition to the proposal to remove parking from one side of 
these streets. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The “No Parking” signs are planned operation and 
maintenance expenses accounted for in the Public Works Traffic Operation budget. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 
2. Location Map 

 

230



Grah
am

 R
d

W
hit

ew
ing

 Ln

Crys
tal

 D
ov

e A
ve

Tu
rtle

 D
ov

e T
rl

Dov
e L

an
din

g A
ve

Dove Crossing Ln

Dove Hollow Ln

Dove Crossing Subdivision
No Parking

0 200100
FeetÊ 231



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY 
AMENDING SCHEDULE XII AS REFERENCED IN SUBSECTION E.2 OF 
SECTION 4 THEREOF; PROHIBITING PARKING ALONG CERTAIN PORTIONS 
OF STREETS WITHIN THE DOVE CROSSING SUBDIVISION; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas, be amended by amending schedule XII as 
referenced in subsection E.2 of Section 4 thereof as set out in Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be 

void or unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of 
the remaining provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of 

this chapter shall be deemed liable for a civil offense and, upon a finding 
of liability thereof, shall be punished by a civil penalty of not less than 
One Dollar ($1.00) nor more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00). Said 
Ordinance becomes effective ten (10) days after date of passage by the 
City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of 
College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ______ day of  _______________, 2007. 
 

     APPROVED: 
 

          
   __________________________________ 
   Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 

_

E-Signed by Mary Ann Powell
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_____ 
City Attorney 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance .doc9/20/20074:51:10 PM 

232



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That the Traffic Control Device Inventory - Schedule XII as referenced in Chapter 10, 
“Traffic Code”, Section 4, “Administrative Adjudication of Parking Violations,” Sub-
section E is hereby amended to include the following: 
 
 

“Crystal Dove Avenue – No Parking on the north side of Crystal Dove Avenue 
between Dove Crossing Lane and Alexandria Avenue. 
 
Dove Crossing Lane – No Parking on the west side of Dove Crossing Lane between 
Graham Road and Dove Landing Avenue. 
 
Dove Landing Avenue – No Parking on the north side of Crystal Dove Avenue 
between Dove Crossing Lane and Dove Hollow Lane. 
 
Turtle Dove Trail – No Parking on the north side of Crystal Dove Avenue between 
Dove Crossing Lane and Dove Hollow Lane. 
 
Whitewing Lane – No Parking on the south side of Crystal Dove Avenue between 
Dove Crossing Lane and Dove Hollow Lane.” 

 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance .doc9/20/20074:51:10 PM 

233



 

September 27, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 2 

Richards and Sterling Streets – Right of Way Abandonment 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works  
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 
two ordinances vacating and abandoning a portion of the right-of-way of Richards Street 
and a portion of the right-of-way of Sterling Street, said portions being part of the Richards 
Addition, according to the plat recorded in Volume 137, Page 25, of the Deed Records of 
Brazos County, Texas. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the ordinance. 
 
Summary: The Richards Right of Way proposed to be abandoned is a 3210 square foot 
portion of a fifty (50) foot wide Richards Street Right of Way, said portion lying along Lots 
27 & 54, Block 1, of the Richards Addition.  There is no existing infrastructure in the subject 
Right of Way to be abandoned, nor is there a foreseeable public need for the subject Right 
of Way. 
 
The Sterling Right of Way proposed to be abandoned is a 1748 square foot portion of a 
twenty-five (25) foot wide Sterling Street Right of Way, said portion lying along Lots 60 & 
66, Block 1, Richards Addition.  There is no existing infrastructure in the subject Right of 
Way to be abandoned, nor is there a foreseeable public need for the subject Right of Way. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments:  
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Richards Abandonment Location 
3. Sterling Abandonment Location 
4. Richards Ordinance 
5. Richards Legal Description 
6. Sterling Ordinance 
7. Sterling Legal Description 
8. Application for Abandonment 
 
 
 

 

234



235



236



237



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  _________________ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE MAKING CERTAIN AFFIRMATIVE FINDINGS AND 
VACATING AND ABANDONING A 3210 SQUARE FOOT PORTION OF THE 
FIFTY (50) FOOT WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY, SAID PORTION LYING ALONG LOTS 
27 & 54, BLOCK 1, OF THE RICHARDS ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 137, PAGE 25, OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF 
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, has received an application for the 
vacation and abandonment of a portion of the fifty (50) foot Width Right-of-Way, said 
portion lying along Lots 27 & 54, Block 1, of the Richards Addition, according to the plat 
recorded in Volume 137, Page 25, of the Official Records of Brazos County, Texas, as 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (such portion hereinafter referred to as the 
“Right-of-Way”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in order for the Right-of-Way to be vacated and abandoned by the City 
Council of the City of College Station, Texas, the City Council must make certain 
affirmative findings; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS:  
 
PART 1: That after opening and closing a public hearing, the City Council finds the 

following pertaining to the vacating and abandoning of the Right-of-Way 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance 
for all purposes. 

 
1. Abandonment of the Right-of-Way will not result in property that 

does not have access to public roadways or utilities. 
 
2. There is no public need or use for the Right-of-Way. 

 
3. There is no anticipated future public need or use for the Right-of-

Way. 
 

4. Abandonment of the Right-of-Way will not impact access for all 
public utilities to serve current and future customers. 

 
PART 2: That the Right-of-Way as described in Exhibit “A” be abandoned and 

vacated by the City.  
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\richards ordinance .doc 

238



ORDINANCE NO. __________________      Page 2 
 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _________________, 2007. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

______________________________ 
City Attorney 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\richards ordinance .doc 

239



C3 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 

c3 
OF A 

0.70 ACRE TRACT 
PORTION OF luCHARUS STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY 

RICFbUWS ADDRION 
COLLEGE STATlON, B M m ! 3  COUNTY, TEXAS 

METES AM) BOLMB DESCRIPTION OF ALL THAT CERTAIN TRaCT OF LAm LYING AND BEWG 
SITUATED IN COLLEGE STATXON, BRAZOS COUN'IY, TEXAS. SAID TRACT BETNG A PORTION OF 
RICHARDS STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OFRICHARDS ADDITIONRECORDED DJ 
VOEUME 137, PAGE 25 OF THB DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

SAID TMCT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A 4: INCI-I IRON ROD FOUND ON TWE NORTHWEST LINE OF M-S STREET (50' 
R0.W.) MARKING 'XHE EAST CORNER OF LMT 3R, HOLLEMAN PLACE, ACCORDMG TO THE PLAT 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 5852, PAGE 230 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND A SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF A C U E D  626 ACRE TRACT AS DEXRBEDBY A DEED 
TO GRID PROJECT 105, LTD- RECORDED IN VOLUME 5879, PAGE 163 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS; 

THENCE: N 41" 24' 25" E ALONG THE NORTHWEST LINE OF RICHARDS STREET* SAME BEING A 
SOUTHEAST LIElE OF SAlD 6.26 ACRE TRACT, FOR A DISTANCE OF 63.55 FEET I0 A 'k INCH IRON ROD 
FOUND MARKING TEE NORTH CORNER OF THIS HEREM DESCRIBED TRACT; 

TEIENC3: S 49" 37' 45" E ALONG THE PLATTED NORTHEAST LINE OF RICHARDS STREET, SAME BEING 
A SOUTHWEST LINE OF SAID 6.26 ACRE TRACT, FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.1 1 FEET TO A 5PS INCH IRON 
ROD FOUND MARKING THE EAST CORNER OF THlS HEREIN DESCRIBED mcT., 

THENCE: S 41' 30' 02" W ALONG THE SOUTHEAST LME OF RICHARDS STREET, SAME BEMG A 
NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID 6.26 ACRE TRACT, FOR A DISTANCE OF 64.75 FElT TO A 1R INCH IRON ROD 
FOUND MARMNG THE NORTH CORNER OF BLOCK 3, RICHARDS ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 448, PAGE 363 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND RE- 
RECORDED EN VOLUME 481, PAGE 67 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS; 

THENCR N48" 15' 19" W THROUGHTHE RIGHT-OF-WAY OFRICHARM STREETFORA DISTANCE OF 
49.99 FEET TO THE POMT OF BEGINNING CONTAINING 0.70 OF AN ACRE OF LAND, MORE OF LESS, AS 
SURVEYED ON THE GROUND JULY, 2200. BEARING SYSTEM SHOWN HEREIN IS BASED ON GRUI 
NORTH AS ESTABLISHED FROM GPS OBSERVATION. 

BRAD KERR 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR No. 4502 

240



a,, .. kjq;' ,33y,+,l2\i --*>k-Tx~i:' ." . />,dm* .Y-'* hk :+r4; '&.r 

I 

. . 

SCALE: 1" = 30' 

PORTK)N OF 
RICHARD S T W  

07" W 4881.16' 

COT 1, BLOCK 3 
RICHARDS ADDmON 
PLAT 448/363 & 48?/67 / 

241



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  _________________ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE MAKING CERTAIN AFFIRMATIVE FINDINGS AND 
VACATING AND ABANDONING A 1748 SQUARE FOOT PORTION OF THE 
TWENTY-FIVE (25) FOOT WIDTH RIGHT OF WAY, SAID PORTION LYING 
ALONG LOTS 60 & 66, BLOCK 1, OF THE RICHARDS ADDITION, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 137, PAGE 25, OF THE OFFICIAL 
RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, has received an application for the 
vacation and abandonment of a portion of the twenty-five (25) foot Width Right-of-Way, 
said portion lying along Lots 60 & 66, Block 1, of the Richards Addition, according to 
the plat recorded in Volume 137, Page 25, of the Official Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (such portion hereinafter referred to as 
the “Right-of-Way”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in order for the Right-of-Way to be vacated and abandoned by the City 
Council of the City of College Station, Texas, the City Council must make certain 
affirmative findings; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS:  
 
PART 1: That after opening and closing a public hearing, the City Council finds the 

following pertaining to the vacating and abandoning of the Right-of-Way 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance 
for all purposes. 

 
1. Abandonment of the Right-of-Way will not result in property that 

does not have access to public roadways or utilities. 
 
2. There is no public need or use for the Right-of-Way. 

 
3. There is no anticipated future public need or use for the Right-of-

Way. 
 

4. Abandonment of the Right-of-Way will not impact access for all 
public utilities to serve current and future customers. 

 
PART 2: That the Right-of-Way as described in Exhibit “A” be abandoned and 

vacated by the City.  
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Sterling ordinance.doc 

242



ORDINANCE NO. __________________      Page 2 
 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _________________, 2007. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

______________________________ 
City Attorney 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Sterling ordinance.doc 

243



mw. a%.b ;uh+. L, , ,r I, 

D-ON 

0.40 ACRE TRACl' 
PORTION OF ;PTERLING m T  RiGET-OF-WAY 

RIcmmSADI)FFH)N 
COLLEGE STATION, BRAU)G COUNTY, TExM 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPnON OF ALL 'IHAT CERTAIN T h C T  OF U N D  LYING AND BEING 
SlTUATED IN COLLEGE STATTON, BRAZOs COUNTY, THXAS. SAID TRACT 3EWG A PORTlON OF 
-0 STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY ACCORDING TO THE PUT OF ADDITION RECORDRD IN 
VOLUME 137, PAGE 25 OF DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

SAID TMCT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FaLDWS: 

COMMENCING AT A 54 INCH RON ROD FOUND MARKING ,= S O W  CORNER OF A CALLED 626 
ACRE TMCT AS DESCRIBED BY A DEBD TO GRID PRO= 105, LTD. RMK)RDED W VOLUME 5879, 
PAGE I63 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TBXAS, AND THB EASTCOIWBR 
OFBLOQC3,RI~SADDITION,A~INGTOTHEP~T~DPB~VOU]MB481,PA~67OF 
THB DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, AND R E m R D E l l  IN VOLUME 448, PAGE 363 OF 
THE DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COlNlY, TEXAS; 

TMENCE: N 4 8 O  15' 19" B ALONG THE COMMON LINE OF SAID 626 ACRE TRACT AND SAID BLOCK 3 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 113.11 FRRT 7'0 A 5/8 INCH IRON ROD FOUND MARMNG I I E  P I N T  OF 
BEGINNING OF THE HBRHN DESCRIBED TRACT; , . . -. p - . 

-*. . : :. 
I:' 

' h .  . & &  , ,  .. ,.-5" 
T E E N a  N 480 IS 19" W ALONG THE NOR'IHEAST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 3 AND THROUGH THE 
ORIGINAL -4F-WAY OF STBRLWG STREET FOR A DISTANCE OF 24.98 FEET TO A 513 INCH IRON 
RODFOUND MARKING THE WESTCORNEROF THIS HERBIN DESCRIBED TRACT; 

TRENCIE: ALONG THE COMMON LINE OF SAID 6.26 ACRE TRACT AND SAID PORTION OF SlERLING 
STPtEET RIGHT4F-WAY FOR THE FOLLOWING CALLS: 

W 4 I O 37 m" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 69.62 FEET TO A 3/8 INCH IRON ROD FOUND; 

S 49" 30' 35" B FOR A DISTANCE OF 25.06 FEET TO A 318 INCH RON ROD FOUNQ 

S41°W49" WFORA DISTAPICEOF70.13 FBETTOTHE~I;NTOFBEGINNIN~CONTAlNlNG 
-4AQDF AN ACRE-OF WWD, MOREDF-LESS, AS SURYEYEDDN 'EIIE-QWI)ND~ZDM, 

BRARING SYSTEM SHOWN HERHN XS BASED ON ORID NORTH AS ESTAB- FROM GET 
OBSBRVATION. 

BRADKBRR 
RBGISmRm F X ~ I O N A L  
JAMD SURVEYOR NO. 4502 1 

VJWORK/MABm740 1 B.MAB 

244



245



ABANDONMENT OF PUBLIC 
ROW-OF-WAYIEASEMENT APPLICATION 

MINIMUM SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

$300 Abandonment of Public Right-of-way (ROWYEasement application fee. - 
A completed copy of the heattached Abandonment of Public ROWEasement application. - 
All exhibits processed (except for ExhlMt No. 4, which will be processed by staff). 

A completed copy of the Easement Dedication Sheet application with all requirements. - I 
ADDRESS The Lofts. Wotf Pen Creek 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION Remainder 6.20 acre tract of Woodstock Phase I filed October 17.1879 In 

volume 430. ~ I E I  481 of the OPncial Records of Brazos Countv. Texas. 

APPLICANT (Primary Contact for the Project): 

Name EMall NatalWiPsaKHI~.us 

Street Address 51 1 (!&ersii Drive mt, S-5 
City State Texas Zip Code n840 

Phone Number (9791 848-9259 Fax Number 979446-9259 

PROPERTY OWNER'S INFORMATION (i d i m  from above): 
Name Mark Llndlev. Ass& Plus CorrxKation E-Mail ml indlev~asset~ lusm.~~rn 
Street Address 51 51 San Feliw. Suite 2050 

Clv Houston S t a t e _ f e x a n  Up Code 77056 
Phone Number 71 3--122 fax Number 

The applicant has prepared thls appllcatlon and cWtBs that the fads stated hemin and 
exhibits aif- herefo am h!e and correct. 

rl \ 

Date 

246



APPLlC TlON FOR A THE A W N  NMENT OF A 
PU -IC RIGHT-OF-WAYIEASEMENT 

Date: Juhr 1- 

Locetion of Rpht+f-Wayrtasement to noandand: 
ria hts-of-wav or Sterlim &&. , 

TO THE MAYOR  AN^ ClTV COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION: 

The undersigned hew makes application for the abandonment of that portion of the 
above right&-y prtmlady described in Exhibit No. 1, attached. In support of this 
application, the undersigned represents and wananis the following: 

1. The undersigned will hold the City of College Station harmless, and indemnify it 
against all sub, costs, expenses, and damages that may arise or grow out of 
such abandonment. 

2. Attached, marked Exhibit No. 1, are two SWW mtes and bounds descri 
dividing the area in hatf) of the area  sou^ : to be abandoned, p r e p  k egistered Public Sumyor. 

3. Attached, marked Exhi# No. 2, are two copies of a plat or detailed sketch of that 
podion of the public right1of1~~yleasemnt M to be abandmd and the 
surrounding area to tfm neamt sh&s in all di Y% ns, showingtheabuttin lots 
and Mack, and the subdivision in w h i  the above described rig -of- 
wayfeasment b situated, bgether with the record owners of such lo2s. 

Rt 
4. Attached, marked Exhibi No. 3, is the consent of all public utilities to the 

abandonment. 

5. Attached, marked Exhibit No. 4, is the eonsent of the City of College Station sCaff 
to the abandonment. 

6 Attadred, marked Exhibit No. 5, h the consent of all the abutting property 
owners, except the following: (if none, so date) 

UP Pgdemn. Fifkc-Three PrQeertie9. LM. and Bill Mather. Grid Proiect 100, 
L .  M ~ n o t i f i t  ofthe via a lettat ( s e ~  

I mailed on Julv 
date. we have not received a wsmnse: however. we will continue to fdbw=uo 
with both orooertv wmm, 

247



5 .  Such public right-of-way should be abandoned m u s e :  

The riaht+f+av la undevelooed and no extension ol 
s 

St~rliqg 

Street is 

8. Such public rlght6f-way/easemgnt has been and is being used as hlW: 

Cumntlv vacant with no utllitles. 

I swear that all of the informath c h i n d  in this application is true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge and bllef 

Ownets Signertun \ \  
Ownets Name: Mark Lindley 

Owner's Address: 51 51 San Fellpe Suite 2050 

Houston, Texas 77050 

one Number (71 3) 782-5800 

STATE OF TEXAS 

C O U W  OF HARRIS I ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

248



L W  at fhe t&, Wdf Pen Creek 

Attached are two sealed t b  public right- 
of-way-nt iontotheCityof  
College Statian, Bram Cou 

249



mw. a%.b ;uh+. L, , ,r I, 

D-ON 

0.40 ACRE TRACl' 
PORTION OF ;PTERLING m T  RiGET-OF-WAY 

RIcmmSADI)FFH)N 
COLLEGE STATION, BRAU)G COUNTY, TExM 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPnON OF ALL 'IHAT CERTAIN T h C T  OF U N D  LYING AND BEING 
SlTUATED IN COLLEGE STATTON, BRAZOs COUNTY, THXAS. SAID TRACT 3EWG A PORTlON OF 
-0 STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY ACCORDING TO THE PUT OF ADDITION RECORDRD IN 
VOLUME 137, PAGE 25 OF DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

SAID TMCT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FaLDWS: 

COMMENCING AT A 54 INCH RON ROD FOUND MARKING ,= S O W  CORNER OF A CALLED 626 
ACRE TMCT AS DESCRIBED BY A DEBD TO GRID PRO= 105, LTD. RMK)RDED W VOLUME 5879, 
PAGE I63 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TBXAS, AND THB EASTCOIWBR 
OFBLOQC3,RI~SADDITION,A~INGTOTHEP~T~DPB~VOU]MB481,PA~67OF 
THB DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, AND R E m R D E l l  IN VOLUME 448, PAGE 363 OF 
THE DEED RECORDS OF BRAZOS COlNlY, TEXAS; 

TMENCE: N 4 8 O  15' 19" B ALONG THE COMMON LINE OF SAID 626 ACRE TRACT AND SAID BLOCK 3 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 113.11 FRRT 7'0 A 5/8 INCH IRON ROD FOUND MARMNG I I E  P I N T  OF 
BEGINNING OF THE HBRHN DESCRIBED TRACT; , . . -. p - . 

-*. . : :. 
I:' 

' h .  . & &  , ,  .. ,.-5" 
T E E N a  N 480 IS 19" W ALONG THE NOR'IHEAST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 3 AND THROUGH THE 
ORIGINAL -4F-WAY OF STBRLWG STREET FOR A DISTANCE OF 24.98 FEET TO A 513 INCH IRON 
RODFOUND MARKING THE WESTCORNEROF THIS HERBIN DESCRIBED TRACT; 

TRENCIE: ALONG THE COMMON LINE OF SAID 6.26 ACRE TRACT AND SAID PORTION OF SlERLING 
STPtEET RIGHT4F-WAY FOR THE FOLLOWING CALLS: 

W 4 I O 37 m" E FOR A DISTANCE OF 69.62 FEET TO A 3/8 INCH IRON ROD FOUND; 

S 49" 30' 35" B FOR A DISTANCE OF 25.06 FEET TO A 318 INCH RON ROD FOUNQ 

S41°W49" WFORA DISTAPICEOF70.13 FBETTOTHE~I;NTOFBEGINNIN~CONTAlNlNG 
-4AQDF AN ACRE-OF WWD, MOREDF-LESS, AS SURYEYEDDN 'EIIE-QWI)ND~ZDM, 

BRARING SYSTEM SHOWN HERHN XS BASED ON ORID NORTH AS ESTAB- FROM GET 
OBSBRVATION. 

BRADKBRR 
RBGISmRm F X ~ I O N A L  
JAMD SURVEYOR NO. 4502 1 

VJWORK/MABm740 1 B.MAB 

250



Lieation for Abandonment of 
P u b l i c  R i g M l o f - W a y ~ e n t  

L& at The Lofts, Wotf Pen Creek 

- bi& b o  copies of a plat or detailed sketch of the public rigmlof+/easement 
sought to be abandoned in the abovementioned app l ion ,  showing the sumndin 
area to the nearest stmeb in all dimtiom, & ""Bt lots, the ~ o d c  or black in wt i  d 
the portion of the wk r l g h t + f - m y I ~  swg to be wmbd is m, and the 
addrtion ar s u b d i i  in which the P of the public @ht4 /emmen4 sought 
to be abandoned is situated. Also, names of d ownen of abutbing lob are 
shown. 

"tX, 

251



252



n for Abandonment of 
a ublic Right-of-WayE8sment 'fp"" 
Located at The tofts, Wolf Pen Creek 

EXHIBIT NO. Q 

The undm' ned public utility companb, using or entitled to use, under the tema and 
p r n v L b n s ~ a r ~ ~ w ~ ~ t h e ~ i i a f c o l ~ ~ t a r * , t h a t p o r ( b n d  
the public rightd-wayhrtllity easmmt sought to be abandoned in the for 
Abandonment a h  demd to, do hemby consent to the a a t h s  
described partial tktwf. 

ATMOS ENERGY 

BY: -- - - -. - 

A; . 
, .  - 

VERIZON TELEPHONE COMPANY 

BY: 
T I  

SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS 

BY: 
Title 

BRYAN TEXAS UTl LIT1 ES 

BY: 
rrtle 

253



Loeatsd at The LC&, Wolf Pen Creek 

: 'i4iWiH 
The unders' ned public u t i l i  earnpanicis, Wng or enbitled to use, under the terns and 
provisions 8 our fmnd&m with the C i  of Cdlege Station, that porbion of 
the public right+f=lity eaamd sought to be abandoned in the App- for 
Abandonmed above Mend to, do hereby msmt to the abandon- of the 
desdbed p-. -on thereof. 

ATMOS ENERGY 

BY: 
Tll 

VERLZOM TELEPHONE COMFANY 

SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS 

BY: 
Trtle 

BRYAN TEXAS UTILITIES 

BY: 
r!J 

254



Ap Ha MI for Abandonmenr or 
a & ~ ~ h r  . Yiht-of-WtyIEasement 

Loeaded at The L&s, Wolf Pen Creek 

lBlT NO. 3 

The undersi ned public utility companies, using or entitled to use, under the terms and 
provisions o 7 our respective franchises with the Ci of College Station, that portion of 
the public right-of-waylutili easement s w g M  to be abandoned in the Application for 
Abandonment above referred to. do herebv consent to the abandon-, .- of the 
described portion thereof. 

ATMOS ENERGY ' 

BY: 
Mle 
- -** * 3 ' , - > 
.re +' 

BY: 

Title 

BY: & 7 9 7 m 7  

BRYAN fEXAS UTILITIES 

BY: 
T i e  

255



M o n  for Abandonment of 
a ubli Right-of-WayIEasmmt 9"8' 

{BIT NO. 3 

Ttw unde ' n d  publk utility companies, using or entjded to use, under the femrs a 
rnvisid? our respeclive f ranchi  with city of ~olw ~tal i~1, that portion2 &le public rightotwayIubility eawment sought to be abandoned h the Appllcatkn foi 

AbandomW above referred to, do hereby eonsent to the abandonment of the 
d=uibed DO- - - ~ n  t"=w* ? a , *,< .. ,. - 

I .  " ->; 

AWOS ENERGY f i 
BY: 
Title 

BY: 
T I  

256



lbtion Ibr Abandonment of 
a ubk R i ~ h t d - W a y E a m n t  7 
Located at The tofts, Wolf Pen Creek 

The the Chy of College Statbn, ceMy that haw amfully 
for Abandamm of tRe puMic right %-nt 

standpoint of City of College Sation ord inam and with 
b ~ t e n d f u t u m d d t h e C W o f ~ S t a t i o n d s e e n a a b f o c t k n  

to e requast& abandonment from the C i s  sbndpoint. h";R" 

ti&& 
City of dkge Stag00 

Ere Marshal 
clly of C d h p  Strrtbn 

257



EXkWT NO. 4 

258



~ b f A h l d o n m e n t o f  
a P u M i e R i g M o f - W d E w  

bmed at The Loft$, W M  Pen Creek 
'4% 

rc . J4; 

259



m w l f o r m - o f  
blic Rightd-WmyIEament x 

L o w  at The Ldb, Wolf Fkn Cmk 

EXHIBIT NO. 4 

of fie ~i 6f college station, certify that 2 ha$ oak~ity 
for Abandonment of the public right -way/easement 

rlBfemd to &ow standpoint of City of Cdlege Station ordinances and with 
re8 eci to present and future W s  of the City of Colhge Station and see no objection 
to t Rn muesW abndorwnent fmn the C i s  standpoint, 

. s n i ~  Citv C o ~ ~  Station 
$ire Marshal 
CityofCobgeSMon 

p@@ 5,07 
Water mes 08 merit 
~ lyof~ol legedm 

260



~ p p l k t i m  for Abandonment of 
a PuMIc R i g l h t ~ - W a y I E ~ ~  

L-d at The Lofts, Woff Pen C W  

: ~ d 2 c A  
uponthat ortionofthepublic - o w n n * ~ ~ % 3 p ~ 8  wa l e a a m a t  mmed and de r A b a ~ ~  ofa v-dF ubk  

R&t-of-vveym-r~ r n m d  to above, do m- to suoh abemiaimrmt. 

Bill Maw, Grkl Project 100, Ltd* 

13127 KImbsrley Lane 

Doug redenon, Fm-Tree Propertigs, LM. 
T T . J - =  --. 

'1407 South College ~ v e n u d . ~  .* ",- 

Wan, TX 77801-1214 

261



July 19,2007 

. The Low Wdf Pea Creek dmtbpmemt im Cdqge S?adm, Texas 

Hey Bi, 

We've prepared the -through tfse City of College Won and worlr;ad witb 
l o c a l ~ t y c o m ~ t o ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ f - ~ y ~ a o t i m ~ ~ ~ t  
promawners. T h e ~ f - w y ~ ~ w b d t y ~ w i t b i n ~ P l w ' s ~ .  As* 
o f t h e ~ ~ b p h ~ ~ - ~ y , t f r ; t ~ o f ~ S ~ ~ t h a t  
~ ~ ~ 1 t a C t ~ ~ o w n a r s b d t b e a n ~ o f o u r ~ a a d & p ~ ~ t h e  
abandonment applidon, A- is a cqy  of an "AbendorrmknS of-ef-Way" 
~ ~ h m t h e C i t y o f C o 1 1 ~ ~ r h r d ~ ~ ~ f a r y a b ~ & b  
relfssc d E  dgbwf-wfy. 

East, Suite 21 1 262



IPS Group 
P l a n n i n g  S o l u t i o n s  -4 

July 19,2007 

. - - .  .-.- - . . .-. 

I'm mprcmtiog Asset Plus, who is dcveluphg a ntw multi-family aed re t&&-  
comerof Ihrmozzthand H o ~ ~ - s o u n d  familiar? Anyway, aspart&, 
need to abandon two sections of undevetopd right-of-way for Ri&&~i&j!$& 

a b m d c i m  application, AtEtached is a oapy of au "Almn&mm& of-Eau 
@& & cw of &uege S& that wc like fw y,&f&!a , -4, 

release the rights-of-way. 
e 

. . , , --. :: -: .: - ,. 3 2 @ y ; r i p ~  - ?-<=++ 
.'>?<% . < ,.> 7.2 -- 

263



September 27, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item No. 3  

Unified Development Ordinance Amendment – Design Review Board 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Bob Cowell, Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 
ordinance amendment to Chapter 12 of the Code of Ordinances, Unified Development 
Ordinance Section 2.4 Design Review Board and Section 2.8 Summary of Review Authority. 
 
Summary: The College Station Design Review Board is a review body established to hear 
and rule on sign, building, and site design issues, including architectural issues as specified 
in the Unified Development Ordinance, by bringing expertise from the community to bear on 
these issues in designated design districts.  As development standards and expectations 
continue to evolve, Staff should continually evaluate our review bodies to insure that they 
have the ability to meet those needs.  Staff has identified two elements of the Design 
Review Board for consideration and potential revision. 
 
Gateway Grants 

The Planning & Development Services department has coordinated with the Neighborhood 
and Community Relations staff to create a Gateway Grant program for registered 
neighborhood associations that wish to improve the entrances to their neighborhoods and 
enhance the aesthetics with signage, plantings, and other decorative accents.   
 
This grant program will be funded by the City and applications will be processed and 
reviewed by the Neighborhood and Community Relations department.  After the application 
has been reviewed by staff for completeness, it will be presented to the Design Review 
Board to determine compliance with City codes and regulations.  The Unified Development 
Ordinance should be amended to reflect this new duty. 
 

Board Membership 

Currently, the Design Review Board consists of seven regular members and two alternate 
members, eight of which are appointed by the City Council.  The members of the DRB 
include: 

1. Registered architect 
2. Business person 
3. Landscape architect 
4. Developer or land owner in a design district 
5. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic judgment 
6. Citizen-at-large 
7. Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, or his designee 

 
Of those members, at least two must be owners of property or a business, a resident or an 
individual employed within a design district.  The seventh regular member is the Chairman 
of the Planning & Zoning Commission, or his designee. 
 

264



In recent years, there have been difficulties in filling many of these positions, resulting in 
the lack of a quorum for scheduled meetings.  Staff is recommending an amendment to the 
requirements of board membership as described below:   
 
Recommendation:  Seven member board and two alternates, consisting of: 

1. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic or architectural  design issues 
2. Business person 
3. Landscape architect 
4. Person with general knowledge of development codes and processes 
5. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic judgment 
6. Citizen-at-large 
7. Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, or his designee 
• Alternate – Person meeting one of the following criteria: knowledge in aesthetic or 

architectural design issues, business person, landscape architect, general knowledge 
of development codes and processes, knowledge in aesthetic judgment 

• Alternate – Citizen-at-large 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission heard these proposed amendments at their September 
6, 2007 meeting and unanimously recommended approval. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 
2. Gateway Grant Policy 
3. Ordinance 

 
 
 

265



 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES  
Regular Meeting  

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Thursday, September 6, 2007,  

at 7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

College Station City Hall  
1101 Texas Avenue  

College Station, Texas  

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairman John Nichols, Derek Dictson, Harold 
Strong, Bill Davis, Glenn Schroeder, Marsha Sanford and Noel Bauman 
  
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: None 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Senior Planners Jennifer Prochazka and Lindsay Boyer, 
Transportation Planner Ken Fogle, Graduate Civil Engineer Carol Cotter, Acting City 
Engineer Alan Gibbs, Assistant Director Lance Simms, Planning Administrator Molly 
Hitchcock, First Assistant City Attorney Carla Robinson, Information Services 
Representative Mandi Luedecke, Staff Assistants Brittany Korthauer and Nicole 
Menchaca. 

1. Call meeting to order. 

Chairman John Nichols called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. 
 

2. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 
ordinance amendment to Chapter 12 of the Code of Ordinances, Unified 
Development Ordinance Section 2.4 Design Review Board. Case #07-500004 
(MH) 

Molly Hitchcock, Planning Administrator, presented the first amendment stating 
that the Design Review Board may review Gateway Grants as per the Gateway 
Grant Program.  She then presented the next amendment which would be an 
amendment to the requirements of board membership.  Staff offered two options 
for the Commission: 
Option 1: Seven member board and two alternates, consisting of: 

1. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic or architectural design issues 
2. Business Person 
3. Landscape Architect 
4. Person with general knowledge of development codes and processes 
5. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic judgement 

266



6. Citizen-at-large 
7. Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, or his designee 
• Alternate – Citizen-at-large 
• Alternate – Citizen-at-large 

 
Option 2: Five Member board and two alternate members, consisting of: 
 

1. Business Person 
2. Landscape Architect 
3. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic judgement 
4. Citizen-at-large 
5. Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, or his designee 
• Alternate – Citizen-at-large 
• Alternate – Citizen-at-large 

She answered questions from the Commission regarding the requirements of the 
board membership and stated that there have been difficulties in filling many 
positions, resulting in the lack of a quorum for meetings. 

No one spoke at the public hearing. 

Commissioner Davis motioned to accept Option 1A which would eliminate 
one Alternate – Citizen-at-large.  Commissioner Schroeder seconded the 
motion. 

Commissioner Sanford made a motion to amend the previous motion stating 
that one of the Alternates should have the qualifications of one of the 1st five 
board members (i.e., person knowledgeable in aesthetic or architectural 
design issues, business person, landscape architect, person with general 
knowledge of development codes and processes, or a person knowledgeable 
in aesthetic judgement).  Commissioner Bauman seconded the motion, 
motion passed (5-2). 

The amended motion passed (7-0). 

Commissioner Schroeder motioned to include the Gateway Grants in the 
powers and duties of the Design Review Board.  Commissioner Sanford 
seconded the motion, motion passed (7-0). 

3. Adjourn. 

Commissioner Davis motioned to adjourn.  Commissioner Sanford seconded 
the motion, motion passed (7-0). 

Meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 

 
 

267



 
GATEWAY GRANT POLICIES 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
College Station is committed to aiding registered neighborhood associations in developing 
attractive entrances into their neighborhoods, in order to promote the City and utilize citizen 
participation in making College Station a better place to live.  
 
The improvement of these entrances or gateways should only serve to better enhance the 
aesthetic value of our community and strengthen its natural character. 
 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
1. Subdivision or Neighborhood Gateway - a point of entrance or means of access into either 

a subdivision or neighborhood marked by plantings, signage and other decorative accents.  
 
2. Subdivision - as defined in Chapter 9, Section 3, of the City of College Station Code of 

Ordinances. The division of a lot, tract, or parcel of land into two or more lots or sites for the 
purpose of sale, division of ownership or building development.  

 
3. Neighborhood - an area of a community with characteristics that distinguish it from other 

areas and that may include distinct ethnic or economic characteristics, housing types, 
schools, or boundaries defined by physical barriers, such as major highways and railroads or 
natural features, such as rivers. 

 
4. Association- Homeowners’ Association or Neighborhood Association as defined below.   
 
5. Homeowners' Association (HOA)-  a homeowners’ association is an organization 

comprised of all owners of units, other than a condominium association, in a development in 
which individual owners share common interests and responsibilities for costs and upkeep of 
common open space or facilities.  

 
6. Neighborhood Association (NA) - an organization made up of residents and property 

owners within a self-defined boundary, having elected officers and operating under by-laws 
to fulfill a civic function.   

  
7.   Private Improvement in the Public Right-of-way Permit (PIP) - A PIP permit is required 

under Chapter 3, Section 2 of the City of College Station Code of Ordinances for any 

268



improvements, as defined by code, that are placed and maintained in the City's right-of-way 
by a private entity. 

 
8.  Right-of-Way - As set out by the City of College Station Code of Ordinances Chapter 3,            
 Section 2-D a Right-of-Way means the surface of, and the space above and below a public 
 street, road, highway, freeway, land, path, public way or place, alley, court, boulevard, 
 parkway, drive, or other easement on or hereafter held by the City (including any street, as 
 defined, which is acquired by eminent domain) for the purpose of public travel and shall 
 include other easements or rights-of-way now or hereafter held by the City or in which the 
 City has an interest (including any easements or rights-of-way acquired by eminent domain) 
 which shall, with their proper use and meaning, entitle the City and a utility to use thereof for 
 the purpose of installing facilities, and other property as may ordinarily be necessary and 
 pertinent to a utility system. 
 
 
SECTION I:  POLICIES 
 
A.  GATEWAY POLICY 

The City of College Station is committed to developing attractive gateways, as funding 
allows, into the community as a whole and will work diligently with Homeowners' 
Associations and Neighborhood Associations interested in developing and maintaining 
gateways into their neighborhood and/or subdivision. 

 
B.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. Purpose 
The following policies are principles to be followed by City of College Station staff 
in executing the Gateway Grant program.  These policies are intended to establish 
consistency and coherence in the implementation of gateway development. 
 

2. No Contract Created 
a. Neither this policy nor any application for City funds shall constitute a contract 

that prohibits or restricts the City’s right to withhold funds for any gateway 
development. 

b. The policies and procedures contained within this document shall be available for 
review and inspection upon request. 

 
3. Gateway Records 

a. Neighborhood and Community Relations staff will maintain all records relating to 
Gateway Grant administration.  

b. Information contained in the files for the Gateway program is a matter of public 
record. 

 
4. Amendment of Policies 

The Policies contained within this document may be changed by the City Council.  
Changes to this document will be made available to the general public. 

 

269



C.  ELIGIBILITY 
 

1. Eligibility Policy 
 Neighborhood and Community Relations (NCR) staff will be responsible for 

determining Gateway Grant eligibility.  
 
2. Homeowners' Associations and Neighborhood Associations  
 Any association within the incorporated City Limits of College Station, Texas, which 

is registered in the City's Neighborhood Partnership Program, is eligible for gateway 
funding.  Sixty percent (60%) of the members of the Association must sign the 
application form.    

    
3. Developers 
 Developers are not eligible for funding. 
 

D. FUNDING 
 

1. City Council will determine the amount budgeted for the Gateway Grant program for 
each budget year.  Once budgeted funds are depleted, applications not awarded will 
be held until the next fiscal year and will be given priority for funding consideration 
over new applicants. 

 
2. The City of College Station will provide a 50% match, monetary only, of up to 

$7,500 per application for use by the applicant in the development of their gateway or 
corridor.  Applicants may apply no more than once in a five-year period.  This is 
contingent upon availability of funds. 

 
3. The Neighborhood and Community Relations staff will be responsible for 

prioritization of applications for grant funds.  Prioritization will take into 
consideration, but not be limited to the following:  
a. Date of application, 
b. Completeness of application, and 
c. Amount of funds requested. 

  
E. LOCATION 
   

1. Private Property 
 Gateway development will be allowed on Private Property.  The development shall be 

clearly depicted on a layout plan which will be reviewed by City staff prior to 
approval of grant funds.  In order for grant approval, the fee simple owner of said 
property must grant an indemnity agreement.  

 
2. City Right-of-Way 
 Gateway development will be allowed in the City Right-Of-Way subject to the 

requirements of Building Regulations Chapter 3, Section 2, of the City of College 
Station Code of Ordinances.  If any portion of the proposed project is planned in the 
right-of-way, a Private Improvement in the Public Right-of-Way Permit must be 

270



issued before work begins and before the first dispersal of grant funds will be 
released. 

 
F. MAINTENANCE 

 
1. The Association shall have the responsibility to provide for the operation, repair and 

maintenance of the project funded by the grant whether the grant funds are expended 
on improvements on common property, private property, public right-of-way or 
easement. 

 
2. The City will be given written permission for practical access at any time without 

liability when on official business, as well as permission to remove visual and 
easement obstructions, failed landscaping, objects in disrepair upon non-compliance 
by the Association of any terms of this agreement.  In the event that the City must 
remove the material funded by the grant, the Association will be assessed all costs of 
removal.    

 
G. GATEWAY MATERIAL 

All materials used for gateway improvements must comply with the City of College 
Station's Code of Ordinances.  
    

 
SECTION II:  PROCEDURES 
 
A. THE APPLICATION 

For consideration of a Gateway Grant, an association must submit to the Neighborhood 
and Community Relations Coordinator, all specific instruments cited below: 
1. Application form with 60% of the associations’ signatures; 
2. Preliminary layout and design for the project; and 
3. Estimated cost of the entire project. 
 

B. PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE 
 

1. Any registered Association interested in applying for a Gateway Grant will attend a 
pre-application conference with Planning and Development Services staff.  This 
meeting will be coordinated through the Neighborhood and Community Relations 
Coordinator.  The purpose of preliminary discussion is to:  
a. Define the scope and responsibilities of the project; 
b. Clarify the application, review, and award process; and  
c. Clarify the fund dispersal procedures upon approval.  

 
  2. Upon completion of the Pre-Application Conference, required development 

 applications with supporting materials must be submitted to the Neighborhood and 
 Community Relations Coordinator.   

  
C. REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION 
   

271



1. Staff  
City Staff will review applications for completeness and against all applicable City of 
College Station codes and regulations. 
 

2. Design Review Board 
a. The Design Review Board will determine each proposed gateway projects’ 

compliance with the City of College Station’s landscape, streetscape, signage, and 
private improvement in the public right-of-way regulations as set forth by the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and evaluate proposals based on the following 
criteria: 

1. Gateway developments shall have good scale and be in harmonious 
conformance with the neighborhood. 

2. Materials shall be selected for harmony of the neighborhood. 
3. Materials shall be selected for suitability to the gateway developments and the 

design in which they are used and shall be architecturally harmonious with the 
neighborhood. 

4. Materials shall be of durable quality. 
5. Gateway developments shall have good proportions and relationships to their 

surroundings. 
6. Colors shall be harmonious with the neighborhood and shall use only 

compatible accents. 
7. Plant material shall be selected for interest in its structure, texture, and color, 

and for its ultimate growth. Plants that are indigenous to the area and others 
that will be hardy, harmonious to the design, and of good appearance shall be 
used. 

8. Gateway developments shall not impede traffic, including pedestrian and 
bicycle traffic. 

 
b. The Design Review Board will be responsible for evaluating proposals based 

upon stated criteria and make a recommendation to the NCR staff on whether 
funds shall be granted.  After City staff and Design Review Board reviews have 
been completed and any necessary changes to the proposal approved, contractors 
may apply for necessary permits for construction.   

 
D.  DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 
  At the completion of construction and final staff review of the completed project, paid 

invoices must be submitted to the Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator 
in order for a disbursement of Gateway funds to be released to the Association.  

 
E. APPEALS 
 

1. All appeals of staff denial of funding will be to the Design Review Board. 
 

2. All appeals of the application process and/or the Design Review Board's decisions 
shall be made to City Council. 

272



EXHIBIT A 
FLOW CHART FOR GATEWAY GRANT PROGRAM 

 
1. Must be a neighborhood or homeowners’ association registered with the City of 

College Station's Neighborhood Partnership Program. Contact Neighborhood and 
Community Relations Coordinator (764-6262) for application materials. 

 
2. Complete the Gateway Grant Application.  

 
3. Gather the printed names, addresses, and signatures of a minimum of 60% of the 

association's members.  
 

4.  Develop a preliminary design plan for the project with an estimated cost. 
 
5. Submit application, signatures, preliminary plans and estimated costs to the 

Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator, who will then set up a Pre-
Application Conference with the Planning and Development Services staff for the 
purpose of: 
 Defining the scope and responsibilities of the project;  
 Clarifying the application, review, and award process; and  
 Clarifying the fund dispersal procedure upon approval. 

 
6. Attend the Pre-Application Conference (PAC) meeting and get direction from City 

staff regarding continuing the process. 
 

7. Submit to the Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator all required 
development applications (fees will apply) and materials for technical review and 
Design Review Board consideration: 
 A Design Review Board Gateway Application and, if applicable,  
 A Private Improvement in the Public Right-of-Way Permit (PIP) application (only 

if the project is in the City's right-of-way). 
 

8. City staff will perform a technical review of the application(s) and present the 
proposal to the Design Review Board when all standards have been met.  Applicant 
attendance at this meeting is highly encouraged. 

 
9. Upon approval by the Design Review Board, the required development and/or 

building permits (e.g. development permit, sign, electrical, irrigation) may be applied 
for by the appropriate contractors to begin construction (fees will apply). 

 
10. When construction/landscaping has been completed, City staff will make an 

inspection.  The Neighborhood and Community Relations Coordinator will be 
notified when all work for a project has been accomplished according to approved 
plans and successfully completed a final inspection.   

 
11. Grant fund dispersal may be made when a project has completed a successful final 

inspection and a copy of the paid invoice(s) is submitted to the Neighborhood and 
Community Relations Coordinator. 

273



ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE,” 
ARTICLE 2 “DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BODIES” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS AS 
SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances 

of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, 
attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 

chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof 
shall be punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor 
more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall 
continue or be permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said 
Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date 
of passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the 
City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 27th day of September, 2007. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

274



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  PAGE 2 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
College Station, Texas, is hereby amended by amending Article 2, Sections 2.4.B, 2.4.D and 2.8 
to read as set out in Appendix I attached hereto. 
 
 
 
 
 

275



Article 2. Development Review Bodies 
Section 2.4 Design Review Board 

2.4 Design Review Board 

A. Creation 

A Design Review Board is hereby established by the City of College Station for the purpose of 
enhancing the City’s ability to review sign, building, and site design issues, including 
architectural issues as specified in this UDO, by bringing expertise from the community to 
bear on these issues in designated design districts.  

B. Membership and Terms 

1. The Design Review Board shall consist of seven regular members and two alternate 
members.  Six of the regular members and the two alternate members shall be 
appointed by the City Council.  City Council shall appoint the following to the Design 
Review Board:  

a. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic or architectural design issues 

b. Business person 

c. Landscape architect 

d. Person with general knowledge of development codes and processes 

e. Person knowledgeable in aesthetic judgment 

f. Citizen-at-large 

• Alternate – Person meeting one of the following criteria: knowledge in aesthetic or 
architectural design issues, business person, landscape architect, general 
knowledge of development codes and processes, knowledge in aesthetic judgment 

• Alternate – Citizen-at-large 

Of the members listed above, at least two shall be owners of property or a business 
within a design district, a resident within a design district, or an individual employed 
within a design district. 

The seventh regular member shall be the Chairman of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission or his designee. 

 
2. Members shall be appointed for two-year terms.  

3. The Design Review Board is a governmental body and shall comply with the OPEN 

MEETINGS ACT.  

C. Officers, Meetings, Quorum 

1. Officers 

A Chairperson shall be appointed annually by the City Council.  The Board shall select a 
Vice-Chair from among its members as needed. 

2. Meetings 

Members of the Design Review Board shall meet regularly and the Chairperson shall 
designate the time and place of such meetings.  All meetings of the Board where a 
quorum is present shall be open to the public. 

3. Quorum 

Four members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business.  Any 
recommendation or decision which does not receive a majority of positive votes from 
those members present shall be deemed a negative report.  

4. Rules of Proceeding 

The Design Review Board shall adopt its own rules of procedure.  

  2-5 
Unified Development Ordinance 6/25/07 City of College Station 

APPENDIX I

276



Article 2. Development Review Bodies 
Section 2.4 Design Review Board 

5. Minutes 

The Design Review Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote, 
indicating such fact, and shall keep records of its examinations and other official 
actions, all of which shall be immediately filed in the office of the Administrator and 
shall be a public record.  

D. Powers and Duties 
The Design Review Board has the following powers and duties: 

 
1. Site Plans 

The Design Review Board shall hear and take final action on design district site plans. 
Per Ordinance No. 2981 (May 24, 2007) 

 
2. Wolf Pen Creek District and Overlay District Review  

The Design Review Board shall approve or deny any sign materials and colors in the 
Wolf Pen Creek District (WPC), and shall approve or deny all alternate building or fence 
materials and fence height in the Krenek Overlay District, as specified within this UDO.   

 
3. Wolf Pen Creek Parking Waivers 

The Design Review Board shall hear and decide requests to vary from the amount of 
required parking in the Wolf Pen Creek District (WPC). 

 
4. Northgate District Standards Waivers 

The Design Review Board shall hear and decide requests to vary from the standards to 
Section 5.6.B. Northgate Districts as listed in Section 5.6.B.14 Waivers. 

 
5. Driveway Appeals 

The Design Review Board shall hear appeals to decisions of the Development Engineer 
regarding driveway appeals. 

 
6. Appeal of Requirement Based on Site Plan Review Criteria 

The Design Review Board shall hear and decide appeals of the Administrator's 
application of site plan requirements to assure compliance with Section 3.5.E, Site Plan 
Review Criteria. 

 
7. Buffer Appeals 

The Design Review Board shall hear appeals of buffer requirements listed in Section 
7.6, Buffer Requirements. 

 
8. Non-Residential Architectural Standards Appeals 

The Design Review Board shall hear and decide alternate building materials, colors, 
required screening, architectural relief elements, and parking lot concepts for non-
residential structures, as specified in Section 7.9, Non-Residential Architectural 
Standards. 

Per Ordinance No. 2881 (March 23, 2006) 
 
9. Gateway Grants 

 The Design Review Board shall hear and decide proposals for subdivision and 
neighborhood gateways as described in the Gateway Grant policy. 

E. Staff 

The Administrator shall provide staff, as needed, to the Design Review Board. 

 

 

2-6 
Unified Development Ordinance 6/25/07 City of College Station 277



Article 2. Development Review Bodies 
Section 2.8 Summary of Review Authority 
 

  2-9 
Unified Development Ordinance 6/25/07 City of College Station 

2.8 Summary of Review Authority 
The following table summarizes the authority of the various review bodies and staff. 

City P & Z Zoning Design Admini- Building Dev. PROCEDURE 
Council Comm. Bd. of Adj. Rev. Bd. strator Official Eng. 

CITY COUNCIL        

Oversize Participation D      R 

Development Agreement D    RR  R 

Conditional Use permit D R   RR   

Zoning Map Amendment D R   RR   

PDD/P-MUD Concept Plan D R   RR   

Text Amendment D R   RR   

Comp. Plan Amendment D R   RR   

Impact Fee/CIP Priorities D R      

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION        

Master Plans  D   RR  R 

Preliminary Plat  D   RR  R 

Final Plat  D   RR  R 

Development Plat  D   RR  R 

Waiver of Subdivision Standard  D   RR  R 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT        

Variance   D  RR RR RR 

Administrative Appeal   D  R   

Zoning Map Interpretation   D  R   

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD        

Wolf Pen Creek District Site Plan  A  D R   

Wolf Pen Creek District 
Building/Sign Review 

 A  D R   

WPC Parking Waivers  A  D R   

NG Waivers    D R   

Non-Residential Architectural 
Standards Waiver 

   D RR   

Gateway Grants A   D RR   

ADMINISTRATOR        

Interpretation  A** A  D   

Sign Permit   A  D   

Site Plan  A  A* D   

Administrative Adjustment   A  D   

Wolf Pen Creek District Building or 
Sign, Minor 

  A  D   

Minor or Amending Plat  A   D  R 

PD Concept Plan Minor Amend.  A   D   

NG Roof Color Palette Amendment  A   D   

Alternative Parking Plans  A   D  R 

BUILDING OFFICIAL        

Building Permit      D  

Certificate of Occupancy     R D  

Certificate of Completion     R D R 

DEVELOPMENT ENGINEER        

Development Permit       D 

Driveway Application    A   D 

Alternative Const. Material    A   D 

*Section 3.5.E Site Plan Review Criteria and 3.6.E Wolf Pen 
Creek Design District General Site Plan Review Criteria only. 

**Subdivision Regulations only. KEY: A=Appeal     D=Final 
Action/Decision  R=Recommend RR=Review/Report 

Per Ordinance No. 2881 (March 23, 2006) 

278



September 27, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item #4 

Public Hearing and Consideration of Budget Amendment #3  
and Presentation, Possible Action and Discussion  

on an Interfund Budget Transfer 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
Budget Amendment #3 amending ordinance number 2923 which will amend the 
budget for the 2006-2007 Fiscal Year and authorizing amended expenditures in the 
amount of $167,485; and presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 
interfund budget transfer in the amount of $32,000. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends the City Council hold the public 
hearing on Budget Amendment #3, and approve the budget amendment ordinance 
and recommends approval of the interfund budget transfer. 
 
 
Summary: The proposed budget amendment is to increase appropriations in the 
2006-2007 budget by $167,485.  The charter of the City of College Station provides 
for the City Council to amend the annual budget in the event there are revenues 
available to cover increased expenditures and after holding a public hearing on such 
budget amendment.  A number of items have been identified that need to be 
considered in a budget amendment.  Attached is a list of the items in the proposed 
budget amendment. 
 
Also, the Fiscal Policies of the City require that interfund transfers be approved by 
City Council. This action is for a transfer of budget and funds between the Facilities 
and Technology Capital Improvement Projects Fund and the General Fund. $32,000 
is currently budgeted in the Facilities and Technology Capital Improvement Projects 
Fund for the installation of a generator at City Hall. This action will transfer the 
budget and the funds to the General Fund for appropriation and expenditure.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The City has resources or can reasonably expect 
resources to cover each of the appropriations in the budget amendment. 
 
The funds for the interfund transfer are already budgeted; this action will have no 
net financial impact on the budget.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Budget Amendment #3 and Interfund Transfer Detail List 
2. Ordinance 

279



Fiscal Year 2006-2007 Budget Amendment #3 and Budget Transfer Detail Listing 

The proposed budget amendment is to increase the appropriations for the items listed below by $167,485. 
 

1. BVCOG Litter Abatement Grant - $25,000: On January 11, 2007, Council approved an interlocal agreement 
between the City of College Station and the Brazos Council of Governments (BVCOG) and a funding 
agreement between the City of College Station and Keep Brazos Beautiful (KBB) for a Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality Regional Solid Waste Grant. The grant, in the amount of $24,999.97 is to assist in 
funding a litter abatement education outreach program for the BVSWMA in partnership with KBB. A municipal 
partner was required by KBB to qualify for grant funding as the BVCOG will only distribute grants to cities and 
other public entities. The funding agreement allows KBB to administer the litter abatement education outreach 
program, and requires reporting to the City in order for the City to receive reimbursement of grant funds. This 
item provides the appropriation for expenditure by BVSWMA. The funds will be expended by BVSWMA and 
will be reimbursed by the BVCOG upon the completion of the funding requirements. The funds are available in 
the BVSWMA fund balance. 

 
2. TxDOT Right of Way Payment - $55,603: On August 23, 2007 Council approved the payment of $484,956.59 

to TxDOT for the City’s portion right-of-way costs on the State HW40 project, the Texas Avenue Widening 
project and the FM2154 project. A portion of this budget was approved as part of the FY07 budget amendment 
#2. This additional amount was requested by TxDOT after the approval of budget amendment #2. The balance, 
$210,000, will be transferred from the Jones-Butler Street Extension project which came in under budget. The 
funds for this item are available in the Streets Capital Improvement Projects Fund and come from interest 
earnings in the Fund. TxDOT has indicated that the ROW acquisition is still on-going for the Texas Ave 
Widening project and FM2154 project, so additional funds may be requested by TxDOT in the future.  

 
3. EMS Reporting - $20,000: This item will appropriate an additional $20,000 to the Emergency Medical Services 

(EMS) Reporting project. This project is part of the CIP program and is currently budgeted at $100,000. The 
updated system will provide better reports in a quicker time frame. Requests for proposals were solicited and 
proposals received indicate that the cost of the project will be approximately $120,000. This item will 
appropriate the additional $20,000. The funds for this item are available in the Facilities and Technology 
Capital Improvement Projects Fund and come from interest earnings in the Fund. 

 
4. Cove of Nantucket Park - $13,500: This item is to appropriate to the Zone 12 Parkland Dedication Fund an 

additional $13,500. Funds in the amount of $34,000 are currently appropriated for FY07. However, the project 
is anticipated to begin sooner than expected and the total $47,500 appropriation will be needed in FY07. These 
funds are currently available in the Zone 12 Parkland Dedication Fund. 

 
5. Steeplechase Park - $3,586: This item is to appropriate $3,586 to the Zone 5 Parkland Dedication Fund. 

Steeplechase Neighborhood Park is a 9-acre park located in Park Zone 5. The project was funded through 
certificates of obligation, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds and Zone 5 Parkland 
Dedication Funds. The project is complete; however, additional expenses were incurred related to some 
concrete work done in an area prone to erosion. This item will appropriate $3,586 of Zone 5 Parkland 
Dedication funds for this expenditure.  

 
6. Fire Department Reimbursements - $18,239: The item will appropriate to the Fire Department budget funds 

in the amount of $18,239. These funds are for expenses incurred by the Department in response to emergency 
situations throughout the State as part of the Texas Task Force 1 deployment. The City of College Station 
received reimbursements for this amount from TEEX and the funds are available in the General Fund balance. 

 
7.  Police Department Reimbursements - $27,362: The item will appropriate to the Police Department budget 

funds in the amount of $27,362. These funds are for expenses incurred and anticipated to be incurred by the 
Department for providing Police security and traffic enforcement at Texas A&M University football games. 
Reimbursements in the amount of $22,801.47 have been received and it is anticipated that the balance will be 
received from Texas A&M University before the end of FY07. The funds are available in the General Fund 
balance. 

 

280



8. Police Seizure Funds - $4,195: This request will appropriate $4,195 that is available in the Police Seizure 
Fund balance. Revenue received in this fund is from the sale of property seized during criminal investigations 
and can only be expended for criminal justice purposes. The Police Department identified a number of 
equipment items eligible for purchase with Police Seizure funds and this item appropriates those funds for 
expenditure.   

 
The proposed budget transfer is to transfer $32,000 from the Facilities and Technology Capital Improvement 
Projects Fund to the General Fund.  
 
1. City Hall Generator Installation - Funds in the amount of $32,000 for the installation of the generator at City 

Hall are currently budgeted for expenditure in the Facilities and Technology Capital Improvement Projects 
Fund. These funds were previously transferred from General Fund contingency. It has now been determined 
that it would be more appropriate to pay for the installation out of the Public Works departmental budget. This 
item will authorize the transfer of $32,000 from the Facilities and Technology CIP Fund to the General Fund 
will appropriate the funds for expenditure within the Public Works Department budget. This transfer will not 
result in an increase in budget appropriations.  

 
 
 

281



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE (BUDGET AMENDMENT 3) AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 
2923 WHICH WILL AMEND THE BUDGET FOR THE 2006-2007 FISCAL YEAR AND 
AUTHORIZING AMENDED EXPENDITURES AS THEREIN PROVIDED.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, approved its Budget 
Ordinance for the 2006-2007 Fiscal Year on September 14, 2006; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, desires to amend the 
approved Budget Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, this amendment was prepared and presented to the City Council and a public 
hearing held thereon as prescribed by law and the Charter of the City of College Station, Texas, 
after notice of said hearing having been first duly given; now, therefore,  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS:  
 
Part 1: That Part 1 of the Budget Ordinance for the 2006-2007 Fiscal Year is amended to read as 

follows:  
 

"PART 1: That the proposed budget as amended by the City Council of the City 
of College Station, which is made a part hereof to the same extent as if set forth 
at length herein, is hereby adopted and approved, a copy of which is on file in the 
Office of the City Secretary in College Station Texas. Amended appropriations for 
fiscal year 2006-2007 for the General Fund are $46,434,673, for the Police 
Seizure Fund are $24,195, for the Streets Capital Improvement Projects Fund 
are $10,222,422, for the Facilities and Technology Capital Improvement Project 
Fund are $8,741,101, for the Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management Agency 
Fund are $7,141,834, and for Parkland Dedication Funds are $1,414,596. All 
other appropriations as originally adopted and amended by the City Council 
remain in full force and effect."  

 
Part 2: That this ordinance shall become effective immediately after passage and approval.  
 
PASSED and APPROVED this _________ day of __________________________2007.  
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED:  
 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
City Secretary       Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED:  
 

E-Signed by Harvey Cargill
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
________________________ 
City Attorney 

282



September 27, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item No. 5  

Amending Junk Motor Vehicle Ordinance 
 

To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Eric Hurt, Fire Marshal 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, discussion on an ordinance amending 
Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas 
by amending section 5: Junked Motor Vehicles. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the ordinance amendment be approved. 
 
Summary: State laws have changed regarding junk, abandoned and antique vehicles. The 
changes in the law will affect the way we abate junk and abandoned vehicles as public 
nuisances. The new laws will allow the city to remove junk and abandoned vehicles after a 
hearing is conducted. This amendment will bring the city into compliance with state law. 
 
   
Attachments: 
 

1. Chapter 10, “Traffic Code” Section 5. 
2. Ordinance  

283



SECTION 5:  JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE REGULATIONS 
 
A. DEFINITIONS
 

For the purposes of this Section, the following phrases, terms, words, and their 
derivations shall have their meaning given herein.  When not inconsistent with the 
context, words used in the present tense shall include the future.  Words used in the 
plural number include the singular number.  Words used in the singular number include 
the plural number.  The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory. 

 
(1) Antique Vehicle means a passenger car or truck that is at least twenty-five (25) 

years old. 
 
(2) Junked Motor Vehicle means any motor vehicle as defined in Texas 

Transportation Code Title 7, Chapter 683, as amended: 
 

(a) that is self-propelled; and 
 

(b) does not have lawfully affixed to it: 
 

(1) an unexpired license plate; and 
 

   (2) a valid motor vehicle safety inspection certificate, and 
 

(c) is: 
 
 (1) wrecked, dismantled, partially dismantled, or discarded; or 
  

(2) inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than: 
  

 (i) 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; 
or 

(ii) 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property 
 

(3) Motor Vehicle Collector means a person who owns one or more antique or 
special interest vehicles; and acquires, collects or disposes of an antique or 
special interest vehicle, or part of an antique or special interest vehicle, for 
personal use to restore and preserve an antique or special interest vehicle for 
historic interest. 

 
(4) Person means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, association, 

company or organization of any kind. 
 

(5) Special Interest Vehicle means a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 
altered or modified from the original manufacturer's specifications, and because 
of its historic interest, is being preserved by hobbyists. 

 
B. JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES DECLARED PUBLIC NUISANCE
 

Junked motor vehicles or parts of junked motor vehicles which are located in any place 
where they are visible from a public place or public right-of-way are detrimental to the 
safety and welfare of the general public, tend to reduce the value of private property,  
invite vandalism, create fire hazards, constitute attractive nuisances creating a hazard to 
the health and safety of minors, and produce urban blight which is adverse to the 
maintenance and continuing development of the City of College Station, Texas.  Because 
of this, they are public nuisances.  
 

C. OFFENSE 
 

A person commits an offense if the person maintains a public nuisance as described in 
this Section. 
 

D. INAPPLICABILITY OF DECLARING JUNK MOTOR VEHICLES AS PUBLIC 
NUISANCES

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 10.doc9/20/20074:54:04 PM 

284



 
Vehicles or parts of vehicles are not public nuisances if one or more of the following 
apply: 

 
(1) The motor vehicle or part thereof is completely enclosed within a building in a 

lawful manner and is not visible from the street or other public or private property; 
 

(2) The motor vehicle or part thereof is stored or parked in a lawful manner on 
private property in connection with the business of a licensed vehicle dealer or 
junkyard, or that is an antique or special interest vehicle stored by a motor 
vehicle collector on the collector’s property, if the vehicle or part and the outdoor 
storage area, if any, are: 

(a) maintained in an orderly manner; 
(b) not a health hazard; and 
(c) screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, 

including a fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery.  
 

E. NOTICE TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
             (1)        Not less than 10 days' notice of the nature of the nuisance will be given by                       
personal delivery or sent by certified mail with a five-day return requested or delivered by the 
United States Postal Service with signature confirmation service to: 

  (a)  the last known registered owner of the nuisance;                          
  (b)  each lienholder of record of the nuisance;  and                           
  (c)  the owner or occupant of:                                                 
   (i)  the property on which the nuisance is  
                                         located;  or                     
   (ii) if the nuisance is located on a public  
                                         right-of-way, the property adjacent to the right-of-way. 
 
(2)        The notice shall state that:                                                
  (a)  the nuisance must be abated and removed not later  
                          than the 10th day after the date on which the notice was personally  
                          delivered or mailed;  and 
  (b)  any request for a hearing must be made before that  
                          10-day period expires. 
 
(3)       If the post office address of the last known registered  
         owner of the nuisance is unknown, notice may be placed on the  
           nuisance or, if the owner is located, personally delivered. 
 
(4)       If notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the  
         nuisance shall be continued to a date not earlier than the 11th day  
         after the date of the return. 
 

F. PUBLIC HEARING
 

(1) A public hearing shall be held on request of a person who receives notice as 
provided by this Section if the request is made not later than the date by which 
the nuisance must be abated and removed and shall be held no earlier than the 
11th day after the date of the service of the notice.  Such hearing shall be held 
before the City Manager or his designee.  At the hearing, the junked motor 
vehicle is presumed, unless demonstrated otherwise by the owner, to be 
inoperable.  

 
(2) Upon a finding that a nuisance as described in this Section exists, the City 

Manager or his designee will order such owner or occupant to remove the junked 
motor vehicle or vehicle part within ten (10) days after the order is issued. The 
order shall include a description of the vehicle, the vehicle identification number 
and the license number, if the information is available. 

 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 10.doc9/20/20074:54:04 PM 

285



G. REMOVAL WITH PERMISSION OF OWNER OR OCCUPANT
 

Within ten (10) days after receipt of notice to remove and abate the nuisance, as herein 
provided, the owner or occupant may give his written permission to the Chief of Police or 
his duly authorized agent for removal of the junked motor vehicle, or parts thereof, from 
the premises.  The giving of such permission shall be considered compliance with the 
provisions of this Section.  Cost of removal will be borne by the City.  City may offset the 
cost of removal with any funds received as scrap value of the vehicle. 
 

H. MUNICIPAL COURT
 

If the nuisance is not removed and abated within the time prescribed by order issued by 
the City Manager or his designee, or if a public hearing is not requested within the ten 
(10) day period as provided above, a complaint concerning this public nuisance may be 
filed in the Municipal Court of the City of College Station.  Following a hearing and trial, 
upon a finding of guilty the defendant shall pay a fine in accordance with the penalty 
provision in this Section.  On conviction, the Judge of the Municipal Court shall order 
abatement and removal of the nuisance within 10 days from the date the order is issued, 
the same being a reasonable time unless the Judge sets forth a different time period no 
shorter than 10 days as reasonable. If the defendant fails to attend the hearing where the 
order is issued, a College Station police officer will deliver or will cause to be delivered 
such order to the last known address of the defendant. If the defendant fails to remove 
and abate the nuisance within the period ordered by the Judge, the Judge may issue an 
order directing the Chief of Police to have the nuisance removed, and the Chief of Police 
or his duly authorized agent shall take possession of the junked motor vehicle or part 
thereof and remove it from the premises.  The order shall include a description of the ve-
hicle, the vehicle identification number and license number of the vehicle, if the 
information is available. 
 

I. RECONSTRUCTION
 

A junked motor vehicle, shall not be reconstructed or made operable after it has been 
removed. 

 
J. RELOCATION OF JUNKED VEHICLE
 

Relocation of a junked vehicle that is a public nuisance to another location within the City 
or county after a proceeding for the abatement and removal of such public nuisance has 
commenced has no effect on the proceeding if the junked vehicle constitutes a public 
nuisance at the new location. 

 
K. DISPOSAL OF JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES
 

(1) A junked motor vehicle, or part thereof, may be removed to a scrap yard, a motor 
vehicle demolisher, or a suitable site operated by a city or county.   

 
(2) The City may operate a disposal site if the City Council determines that com-

mercial channels of disposition are not available or are inadequate. The City may 
finally dispose of a junked vehicle or vehicle part, or transfer it to another 
disposal site if the disposal is scrap or salvage only. 

 
L. NOTICE TO HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
 

The City Manager or his delegee shall give notice to the Texas Department of 
Transportation not later than the fifth (5th)day after the date of removal of the junked 
motor vehicle or part thereof.  Said notice shall identify the vehicle or vehicle part. 
  

M. ADMINISTRATION
 
 The administration of this Section shall be by regularly salaried, full-time employees of 

the City, except that any authorized person may remove the public nuisance. 
 

N. AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 10.doc9/20/20074:54:04 PM 

286



The City Manager or his delegee authorized to administer this Section may enter private 
property to examine a public nuisance, to obtain information to identify the nuisance, and 
to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance. The Municipal Court Judge may issue 
orders necessary to enforce this subsection. 

 
O. PENALTY
 

Anyone violating this Section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall 
be punished by a fine not to exceed $200.00. 

 
P. EFFECT OF ARTICLE
 

This article does not affect the law authorizing the immediate removal, as an obstruction 
to traffic, of a vehicle left on public property. 

 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 10.doc9/20/20074:54:04 PM 

287



 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Chapter 10.doc9/20/20074:54:04 PM 

288



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY 
AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT BELOW; DECLARING JUNKED 
VEHICLES TO BE PUBLIC NUISANCES; PROVIDING REGULATIONS 
PERTAINING THERETO; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING 
A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached 
hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be 

void or unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way affect the validity of 
the remaining provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of 

this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction 
thereof shall be punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars 
($25.00) nor more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day 
such violation shall continue or be permitted to continue, shall be deemed 
a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes 
effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City Council, as 
provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _________________, 2007. 
 

     APPROVED: 
 
 

   ____________________________________ 
   Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

_____

E-Signed by Mary Ann Powell
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

____ 
City Attorney 
 

289



ORDINANCE NO. ________________      Page 2 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc9/20/20074:54:27 PM 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  
 

That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, Section 5, “Junked Motor Vehicle Regulations” of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby amended by 
replacing it in its entirety as set out hereafter to read as follows: 
 
 
“SECTION 5:  JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLE REGULATIONS 
 
A. DEFINITIONS
 

For the purposes of this Section, the following phrases, terms, words, and their 
derivations shall have their meaning given herein.  When not inconsistent with the 
context, words used in the present tense shall include the future.  Words used in the 
plural number include the singular number.  Words used in the singular number include 
the plural number.  The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory. 

 
(1) Antique Vehicle means a passenger car or truck that is at least twenty-five (25) 

years old. 
 
(2) Junked Motor Vehicle means any motor vehicle as defined in Texas 

Transportation Code Title 7, Chapter 683, as amended: 
 

(a) that is self-propelled; and 
 

(b) does not have lawfully affixed to it: 
 

(1) an unexpired license plate; and 
 

   (2) a valid motor vehicle safety inspection certificate, and 
 

(c) is: 
 
 (1) wrecked, dismantled, partially dismantled, or discarded; or 
  

(2) inoperable and has remained inoperable for more than: 
  

 (i) 72 consecutive hours, if the vehicle is on public property; 
or 

(ii) 30 consecutive days, if the vehicle is on private property 
 

(3) Motor Vehicle Collector means a person who owns one or more antique or 
special interest vehicles; and acquires, collects or disposes of an antique or 
special interest vehicle, or part of an antique or special interest vehicle, for 
personal use to restore and preserve an antique or special interest vehicle for 
historic interest. 

 
(4) Person means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, association, 

company or organization of any kind. 
 

(5) Special Interest Vehicle means a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 
altered or modified from the original manufacturer's specifications, and because 
of its historic interest, is being preserved by hobbyists. 

 
B. JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES DECLARED PUBLIC NUISANCE
 

290



ORDINANCE NO. ________________      Page 3 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc9/20/20074:54:27 PM 

Junked motor vehicles or parts of junked motor vehicles which are located in any place 
where they are visible from a public place or public right-of-way are detrimental to the 
safety and welfare of the general public, tend to reduce the value of private property,  
invite vandalism, create fire hazards, constitute attractive nuisances creating a hazard to 
the health and safety of minors, and produce urban blight which is adverse to the 
maintenance and continuing development of the City of College Station, Texas.  Because 
of this, they are public nuisances.  
 

C. OFFENSE 
 

A person commits an offense if the person maintains a public nuisance as described in 
this Section. 
 

D. INAPPLICABILITY OF DECLARING JUNK MOTOR VEHICLES AS PUBLIC 
NUISANCES

 
Vehicles or parts of vehicles are not public nuisances if one or more of the following 
apply: 

 
(1) The motor vehicle or part thereof is completely enclosed within a building in a 

lawful manner and is not visible from the street or other public or private property; 
 

(2) The motor vehicle or part thereof is stored or parked in a lawful manner on 
private property in connection with the business of a licensed vehicle dealer or 
junkyard, or that is an antique or special interest vehicle stored by a motor 
vehicle collector on the collector’s property, if the vehicle or part and the outdoor 
storage area, if any, are: 
(a) maintained in an orderly manner; 
(b) not a health hazard; and 
(c) screened from ordinary public view by appropriate means, including a 

fence, rapidly growing trees, or shrubbery. 
 

E. NOTICE TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
 (1) Not less than 10 days' notice of the nature of the nuisance will be given by 
personal delivery or sent by certified mail with a five-day return requested or delivered by the 
United States Postal Service with signature confirmation service to: 

(a) the last known registered owner of the nuisance; 
(b) each lienholder of record of the nuisance; and 
(c) the owner or occupant of: 

(i) the property on which the nuisance is located; or 
(ii) if the nuisance is located on a public right-of-way, the property 

adjacent to the right-of-way. 
 

(2) The notice shall state that: 
(a) the nuisance must be abated and removed not later than the 10th day after 

the date on which the notice was personally delivered or mailed;  and 
(b) any request for a hearing must be made before that 10-day period expires. 

 
(3) If the post office address of the last known registered owner of the nuisance is 

unknown, notice may be placed on the nuisance or, if the owner is located, 
personally delivered. 

 
(4) If notice is returned undelivered, action to abate the nuisance shall be continued 

to a date not earlier than the 11th day after the date of the return. 
 

F. PUBLIC HEARING

291



ORDINANCE NO. ________________      Page 4 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc9/20/20074:54:27 PM 

 
(1) A public hearing shall be held on request of a person who receives notice as 

provided by this Section if the request is made not later than the date by which 
the nuisance must be abated and removed and shall be held no earlier than the 
11th day after the date of the service of the notice.  Such hearing shall be held 
before the City Manager or his designee.  At the hearing, the junked motor 
vehicle is presumed, unless demonstrated otherwise by the owner, to be 
inoperable.  

 
(2) Upon a finding that a nuisance as described in this Section exists, the City 

Manager or his designee will order such owner or occupant to remove the junked 
motor vehicle or vehicle part within ten (10) days after the order is issued. The 
order shall include a description of the vehicle, the vehicle identification number 
and the license number, if the information is available. 

 
G. REMOVAL WITH PERMISSION OF OWNER OR OCCUPANT
 

Within ten (10) days after receipt of notice to remove and abate the nuisance, as herein 
provided, the owner or occupant may give his written permission to the Chief of Police or 
his duly authorized agent for removal of the junked motor vehicle, or parts thereof, from 
the premises.  The giving of such permission shall be considered compliance with the 
provisions of this Section.  Cost of removal will be borne by the City.  City may offset the 
cost of removal with any funds received as scrap value of the vehicle. 
 

H. MUNICIPAL COURT
 

If the nuisance is not removed and abated within the time prescribed by order issued by 
the City Manager or his designee, or if a public hearing is not requested within the ten 
(10) day period as provided above, a complaint concerning this public nuisance may be 
filed in the Municipal Court of the City of College Station.  Following a hearing and trial, 
upon a finding of guilty the defendant shall pay a fine in accordance with the penalty 
provision in this Section.  On conviction, the Judge of the Municipal Court shall order 
abatement and removal of the nuisance within 10 days from the date the order is issued, 
the same being a reasonable time unless the Judge sets forth a different time period no 
shorter than 10 days as reasonable. If the defendant fails to attend the hearing where the 
order is issued, a College Station police officer will deliver or will cause to be delivered 
such order to the last known address of the defendant. If the defendant fails to remove 
and abate the nuisance within the period ordered by the Judge, the Judge may issue an 
order directing the Chief of Police to have the nuisance removed, and the Chief of Police 
or his duly authorized agent shall take possession of the junked motor vehicle or part 
thereof and remove it from the premises.  The order shall include a description of the ve-
hicle, the vehicle identification number and license number of the vehicle, if the 
information is available. 
 

I. RECONSTRUCTION
 

A junked motor vehicle, shall not be reconstructed or made operable after it has been 
removed. 

 
J. RELOCATION OF JUNKED VEHICLE
 

Relocation of a junked vehicle that is a public nuisance to another location within the City 
or county after a proceeding for the abatement and removal of such public nuisance has 
commenced has no effect on the proceeding if the junked vehicle constitutes a public 
nuisance at the new location. 

 
K. DISPOSAL OF JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES
 

(1) A junked motor vehicle, or part thereof, may be removed to a scrap yard, a motor 
vehicle demolisher, or a suitable site operated by a city or county.   

292



ORDINANCE NO. ________________      Page 5 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc9/20/20074:54:27 PM 

 
(2) The City may operate a disposal site if the City Council determines that com-

mercial channels of disposition are not available or are inadequate. The City may 
finally dispose of a junked vehicle or vehicle part, or transfer it to another 
disposal site if the disposal is scrap or salvage only. 

 
L. NOTICE TO HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
 

The City Manager or his delegee shall give notice to the Texas Department of 
Transportation not later than the fifth (5th)day after the date of removal of the junked 
motor vehicle or part thereof.  Said notice shall identify the vehicle or vehicle part. 
  

M. ADMINISTRATION
 
 The administration of this Section shall be by regularly salaried, full-time employees of 

the City, except that any authorized person may remove the public nuisance. 
 

N. AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE
 

The City Manager or his delegee authorized to administer this Section may enter private 
property to examine a public nuisance, to obtain information to identify the nuisance, and 
to remove or direct the removal of the nuisance. The Municipal Court Judge may issue 
orders necessary to enforce this subsection. 

 
O. PENALTY
 

Anyone violating this Section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall 
be punished by a fine not to exceed $200.00. 

 
P. EFFECT OF ARTICLE
 

This article does not affect the law authorizing the immediate removal, as an obstruction 
to traffic, of a vehicle left on public property.” 

 

293



September 27, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item No. 6  

Arts Council Budget and 
Funding Agreements With Arts Council of Brazos Valley 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the 
budget of the Arts Council of Brazos Valley; and presentation, possible action and 
discussion on two (2) funding agreements between the City of College Station and 
the Arts Council of Brazos Valley for FY07 totaling $240,000.  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the Arts Council budget and 
approval of the funding agreements. 
 
Summary:  As part of the 2007-2008 budget process the City Council approved 
funding for the Arts Council of Brazos Valley in the amount of $440,000.  
 
Of this total, $100,000 is from the General Fund for operations and maintenance of 
the Arts Council. $140,000 is from the Hotel Tax fund for operations and 
maintenance associated with the administration of Hotel Tax funds. Finally, $200,000 
is from the Hotel Tax fund for affiliate grants.  
 
This item is consideration of the operations and maintenance funding agreements.  
The affiliate funding agreement will be brought back in the near future. 
 
State law requires that the City Council adopt the budget of any organization that is 
to be funded through the Hotel Tax.     
 
The City Council may come back and make changes to this funding agreement once 
Council Subcommittee reviewing the Arts Council reports back to the City Council 
with any recommendations for change. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The funds for this agreement are budgeted and 
available in the 2007-2008 General Fund in the amount of $100,000 and the Hotel 
Tax Fund Budget in the amount of $140,000.  
 
Attachments:  The following documents will be made available prior to the meeting:   
Arts Council of Brazos Valley Budget 
Arts Council of Brazos Valley General Fund Funding Agreement 
Arts Council of Brazos Valley Hotel Tax Fund O&M Funding Agreement 
 

294



27 September 2007 
Regular Item No. 7 

Banner Resolution for the Big State Music Festival  
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Bob Cowell, Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a resolution authorizing  
banners for the Big State Music Festival. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends adopting the resolution as submitted. 
 
Summary: In recognition of the Big State Music Festival, this resolution allows the 
installation and display of 36” x 96” (27 sq. ft.) banners on the east side of Texas Avenue 
between University Drive and Southwest Parkway and on both sides of University Drive from 
Earl Rudder Freeway to Texas Avenue. The banners will be attached to existing light 
standards and the installation cost will be borne by the festival promoter. The resolution 
also authorizes the banners to be installed from 3 October until 15 October.  
  
Section 7.4.E.1 of the City of College Station Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 
exempts banners from UDO regulations where there has been a resolution of the City 
Council that finds that the display of the signs (a) promotes a positive image for the City of 
College Station for the attraction of business or tourism; (b) depicts an accomplishment of 
an individual or group; or (c) creates a positive community spirit.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Big State Music Festival Banner 
2. Letter from the Applicant 
3. Resolution  

295



TEXAS WORLD SPEEDWAY

2 DAYS
5 STAGES
50 ARTISTS
BBQ SHOWDOWN
STOCK CAR RACING
AND MUCH MORE!

BIGSTATEFESTIVAL.COM
296



RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE DISPLAY OF SIGNS IN RECOGNITION OF THE BIG 
STATE MUSIC FESTIVAL. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the promoters of the Big State Music Festival propose to erect and display signs on 
the east side of Texas Avenue from University Drive to Southwest Parkway and on both sides of 
University Drive from Earl Rudder Freeway to Texas Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Big State Music Festival promotes a positive image for the City of College 
Station for the attraction of business or tourism and creates a positive community spirit; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 7.4.E of the City of College Station Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) exempts signs from UDO regulation where there has been a resolution of the City of 
College Station City Council that finds that the display of the signs (a) promotes a positive image 
for the City of College Station for the attraction of business or tourism; (b) depicts an 
accomplishment of an individual or group; or (c) creates a positive community spirit; now, 
therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS:  
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that the display of Big State Music Festival 

signs promotes a positive image for the City of College Station for the attraction 
of business or tourism, and creates a positive community spirit. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby delegates City staff to approve the location of the 

signs. 
 
PART 3: That the City Council hereby allows the Big State Musical Festival signs to be 

displayed from October 3, 2007, to October 15, 2007. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

 
ADOPTED this _________ day of _________________________________, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
 
________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 

297



 

 
September 27, 2007 

Regular Agenda Item 8 
Red Light Camera Program 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer  
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding appointments 
for the Red Light Photo Enforcement Citizen Advisory Committee. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the City Council appoint the seventh member to the 
Red Light Enforcement Citizen Advisory Committee. 
 
Summary:  HB 1119, effective September 1, 2007, requires the City to report the results of 
a traffic engineering study to a citizen advisory committee consisting of one person 
appointed by each member of the Council.  The committee is responsible for advising the 
Council on the installation and operation of the red light camera system.  Each Council 
member is responsible for appointing one person to the committee.    
 
The following committee members were appointed at the September 13 City Council 
Meeting as follows: 
 
Council    Appointee    
Ben White, Mayor     Tom Herrmann 
John Crompton, Place 1    Don Hellriegel, Ph.D. 
James Massey, Place 2    William L. Eisele, Ph.D., P.E. 
Lynn McIlhaney, Place 3    Mike Perrone 
Chris Scotti, Place 4     Ryan Clarke 
David Ruesink, Place 5    Dillon Briers 
 
One additional appointment from Mayor Pro Tem Ron Gay needs to be made: 
Ron Gay, Mayor Pro Tem    John Hogg, Ph.D. 
 
All committee members have been contacted and advised of the meeting dates and times as 
follows: 
 
Tuesday, October   2, 2007 6-8 p.m. Present history and research conducted to date 
Tuesday, October   9, 2007 6-8 p.m. Presentation from traffic engineering study 
Tuesday, October 23, 2007 6-8 p.m. Finalize report to Council 
Thursday, October 25, 2007   Council presentation 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: There is no financial impact at this time. 
 
 
Attachments:   
None 
 
 
 

 

298


	Agenda
	Consent 2a:  Minutes 
	Draft Minutes Workshop  9132007
	Draft Minutes Regular 913

	Consent Item 2b:  Three Phase Electrical Substation Transformer, Bid 07-109
	Coversheet
	Bid Tab 
	resolution 

	Consent Item 2c:  Amendment to Engineering Design Contract for Parallel Transmission Line phase 3
	Coversheet
	Amendment

	Consent Item 2d:  Award Contract for Improvements to John Crompton Park
	Coversheet
	Resolution 
	Bid Tab 
	Location Map 
	Site Plan 

	Consent Item 2e:  BVSWMA TAMU Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event User Agreement
	coversheet
	User agreement
	Location Map 

	Consent Item 2f:  CSU Meeting and Training Facility (WF0847168) 
Alternate Bid Method

	Coversheet
	Resolution 
	site map 

	Consent Item 2g:  Real Estate Contracts for Wells 8, 9, and 10
	Coversheet
	Charles Rowe contract 
	Willie Allen contract 
	Henry Allen contract 
	water well resolution 
	location map 

	Consent Item 2h:  Enviromed Medical Waste Hauling Franchise Third and Final Reading
	Coversheet
	Franchise Ordinance

	Consent Item 2i:  Construction and Demolition Debris Hauling Franchise Third and Final Reading
	Coversheet
	Franchise Ordinance

	Consent Item 2j:  Claims Administration Services
	Coversheet
	Renewal Letter

	Consent Item 2k:  Excess Liability/Workers Compensation Coverage and Property, Boiler & Machinery, Mobile Equipment, Crime and EMT.
	Coversheet
	Renewal letter

	Consent Item 2L:  Annual Exemptions
	Coversheet

	Consent Item 2m:  Copying and Printing Services
	Coversheet
	CSISD Copymax Pricing
	CSISD Tops Pricing
	TAMU Copy Corner
	TAMU Newman

	Consent Item 2n:  RVP Funding Agreement
	Coversheet

	Consent Item 2o:  CVB Funding Agreement
	Coversheet

	Consent Item 2P:  Competitive Matters Resolution
	Coversheet
	Resolution 

	Consent Item 2Q:  Gateway Policy 
	Coversheet
	Revised Gateway Policy 
	Resolution 

	Consent Item 2r:  Sonoma Subdivision, Phase 2 – Water Oversize Participation Request
	Coversheet
	Participation agreement
	Vicinity Map 
	Utility Location map 
	Final Plat
	Engineers Estimate and Request Letter
	Internal Utility OP Form

	Regular Agenda Item No. 1:  Dove Crossing Parking Restrictions
	Coversheet
	Location Map 
	Ordinance 

	 Regular Item No. 2:  Richards Street and Sterling Street Right of Way Abandonments

	Coversheet
	vicinity map 
	Richards abandonment location 
	sterling abandonment location 
	richards ordinance 
	Richards Legal description 
	Sterling ordinance
	Sterling legal description 
	Application for Abandonment

	Regular Item No. 3:  Unified Development Ordinance Amendment – Design Review Board
	coversheet
	draft P&Z minutes 
	gateway grant policy 
	Ordinance

	Regular Item No. 4:  Budget Amendment #3
	coversheet
	Detail Listing 
	Ordinance

	Regular Item No. 5:  Amending Junk Motor Vehicle Ordinance
	coversheet
	Chapter 10
	Ordinance

	 Regular Item No. 6:  Arts Council Funding Agreement
	Coversheet

	Regular Item No. 7: Banner Resolution for the Big State Music Festival 
	Coversheet
	Banner design 
	Resolution banner

	Regular Item No. 8:  Red Light Camera Committee Appointment
	Coversheet


